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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents
of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:- (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading, (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading, and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after
due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman)
Mr. Shi Liang
Mr. Zhang Qing Lin
(appointed on 17 May 2010)
Mr. Fu Shou Gang
(appointed on 29 December 2010)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim

(resigned on 18 December 2010)
Mr. Ye Jinxing

(resigned on 29 December 2010)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Luo Wei Kun
Mr. Yan Chang Ming (resigned on 6 August 2010)
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong
Mr. Wang Zhi He
(appointed on 29 September 2010)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Luo Wei Kun
Mr. Yan Chang Ming (resigned on 6 August 2010)
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (chairman of audit committee)
Mr. Wang Zhi He

(appointed on 29 September 2010)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Luo Wei Kun

Mr. Yan Chang Ming (resigned on 6 August 2010)
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(appointed on 29 September 2010)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Luo Wei Kun

Mr. Wang Zhi He (chairman of remuneration committee)
(appointed on 29 September 2010)

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong

Mr. Yan Chang Ming (resigned on 6 August 2010)

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT & COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lui Chi Keung FCCA, CPA
COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng
Mr. Lui Chi Keung

HEAD OFFICE & PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Rm 802 Wing On Plaza,
Tsim Sha Tsui East,
Kowloon

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Century Yard
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681 GT
George Town
Grand Cayman
British West Indies
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OFFICE

Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
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Hong Kong
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China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) currently
conduct the business of manufacture and sales of liquefied coalbed
gas through Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy Development Company
Limited whose operations are also located in the PRC. The Company
was incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability in July 2002 and was initially listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 12 August 2003.

The Group is principally engaged in production and sales of liquefied
coalbed gas. Headquartered in Beijing. The Group’s production of
liquefied coalbed gas is in Shanxi Qinshui Basin which boasts the
richest liquefied coalbed gas, while its distribution network extends
to Shanxi, Guangxi and Guangdong Provinces, etc. In particular,
Guangxi Beiliu Gas Company Limit acquired by the Group in July
2009 has enabled the Group’s coalbed gas to reach the end-user
market.

In order to better utilize resources and focus on more profitable new
energy coalbed gas business, the Group stripped its software solution
R&D business for the financial and securities industries in current
year, the Group devotes all the resources and efforts to expanding
its presence in the natural gas and coalbed gas liquefying industry
chain so as to maintain its leading position in China’s natural gas
market.

The Group will adhere to the principle of “social responsibility is of
overriding importance” while exploring and developing in the new
energy sector with the aim to provide the world with high-quality
clean energy and keep improving and promoting the harmonious
coexistence of man and nature.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Corporate Profile

ATBIE I

hEBERIREEEAR AR ([ARF) hE
i@ AR (R [ NKE]) BRiEsEaEs
R ZIWPFLKIBEZREERERABR R RIETT
BICREBREERHEES - ARBN_-F
T_FLAEFREREEMRLARHLE
[RAR  ARRRONR-_TZ=F\A+=
BYIREBEHE X ZMARRAREIER
(TRIZMR]) £E77 -

AEBEBRMEIERERCEBREENEE
E75 o ARBEZABRNIER - SEHARL
REREERZRNKEBRRRZEENILA
KA - HEXRBIRELT - ER 0 BER
Fih o B KB _ZTTAFLARBHE
PRAb AR AR A R B R E R E R R
REHPME -

AT BN REIR KR &P A5 B RARRL
o B FRFTRER K ERER - ARBERSF
BRIt B a2 R SR BT R RRR TS
RMEEE - KE2HIRARAR - KER
BICEFXBOEMBR - BREREEBESD
BRART SN EBRFREMLA -

AEERRBAE HEEESR )N ITIERE
B BHEFERBITARENER - &
ANERHEENBRER @ FERSMEE
ANEBARNMGE R -



Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the audited financial results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2010.

In the current year, with the completion of Group’s detachment from
the software solutions R&D business for the finance and securities
sector, we have fully committed to developing and expanding the
natural gas-liquefying industry chain. The Group also completed the
acquisition of Million Ideas Investment Limited in Shanxi, a
shareholding company, further perfecting the Group’s expansion in
the natural gas and the coalbed gas-liquefying industry chain.

LIQUEFIED COALBED GAS BUSINESS

In the current year, the coalbed gas-liquefying plant in Shanxi, a plant
invested and constructed by the Group, entered the mature stage
gradually from the trial production stage. During the year, further
equipment upgrade and a better production flow well prepared the
Group for full production. However, due to consistent shortage of
gas sources, currently the gas-liquefying plant has yet to achieve its
full production capacity.

Equipment upgrade in the current year impacted on the output of
liquefied coalbed gas to a certain extent. Coupled with consistent
shortage of gas sources, in the current year the Group only managed
to maintain an approximate balance between normal operating
income and expenditure. Entering Year 2011, following the
completion of equipment upgrade plus gradual exploration and an
increased supply of new gas sources, output will restore gradually
and the Group’s results will grow and improve quickly.

Hebei Shuntai Energy Resource Company Limited, a company
established by the Group early this year for the industrial and
transportation hub in Hebei Province, has begun its infrastructure
construction. It is expected that its services launch in mid 2011 will
result in a higher market share and an improved profit for the Group’s
market expansion in Hebei.

In order to rapidly achieve a higher market share for the natural gas
and coalbed gas businesses, in the current year the Group also
actively considered acquisition and expansion of the market share
in the Henan region.
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OUTLOOK

As the Chinese government pays more attention to improving air
quality and lowering carbon emissions, it is intensifying its promotion
of clean energies across the territory. Therefore, there is huge and
still growing demand for natural gas in Chinese markets. Backed by
its leading position in China’s natural gas-liquefying industry, the
Group will continue perfecting the industry chain of the natural gas-
liquefying industry, expanding businesses into the up-and
downstream industry in an effort to maintain the Group’s leading
position in China’s natural gas market and bring long-term and stable
returns to our shareholders.

To keep its gas business thriving, the Group will continuously open,
develop and station new consumer markets for coalbed gas and
natural gas; expand the Group’s market shares in those markets;
develop and seek for new energies such as new natural gas and
coalbed gas; and strengthen its capabilities in liquefaction,
transportation and distribution of gases.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to avail myself of this
opportunity to express our heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders,
customers and business associates for their continuous support for
the Group.

Wang Zhong Sheng
Chairman

30 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Market Review
Liquefied Coalbed Gas Business

In the current year, the coalbed gas-liquefying plant in Shanxi, a plant
invested and constructed by the Group, entered the mature stage
gradually from the trial production stage. During the year, further
equipment upgrade and a better production flow well prepared the
Group for full production. However, due to consistent shortage of
gas sources, currently the gas-liquefying plant has yet to achieve its
full production capacity.

Equipment upgrade in the current year impacted on the output of
liquefied coalbed gas to a certain extent. Coupled with consistent
shortage of gas sources, in the current year the Group only managed
to maintain an approximate balance between normal operating
income and expenditure. Entering Year 2011, following the
completion of equipment upgrade plus gradual exploration and an
increased supply of new gas sources, output will restore gradually
and the Group’s results will grow and improve quickly.

Hebei Shuntai Energy Resource Company Limited, a company
established by the Group early this year for the industrial and
transportation hub in Hebei Province, has begun its infrastructure
construction. It is expected that its services launch in mid 2011 will
result in a higher market share and an improved profit for the Group’s
market expansion in Hebei.

In order to rapidly achieve a higher market share for the natural gas
and coalbed gas businesses, in the current year the Group also
actively considered acquisition and expansion of the market share
in the Henan region.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a consolidated turnover of approximately
RMB237,015,000 for the year, representing an increase of
approximately 158% compared with last year. The increase were
mainly attributable to:

° Due to the increase in production capacity and sales of liquefied
coalbed gas in Shanxi together with the sales of piped natural
gas and gas supply connection services.

Loss attributable to shareholders for the year was approximately
RMB20,493,000, compared with the loss attributable to shareholders
of approximately RMB58,741,000 for last year.

The increase in loss was mainly attributable to the following reason:

° the impairment loss on goodwill during the very substantial
acquisition in mid of 2009 amounted to approximately
RMB52,971,000.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT
PROSPECTS

During the year, there was a high demand in liquefied coalbed gas.
Under the improvement in production, capacity and the market
condition, the board expects the Group will be rewarding in the
coming year’s.

o As at 31 December 2010, the Group had an aggregate of 155
employees, of which 10 were research and development staffs,
14 were finance and account staffs, 29 were administrative
staffs and 18 were marketing staff, 68 production staff and 16
were security staff.

° During the year, as the liquefied coalbed gas started production
and sales, it created a significant increase in turnover. It is
expected that this business will bring a stronger increase in
turnover and revenue of the Group in future.

The Directors believe that following the improvement of the market,
through its enhanced capacities in technology and research and
development, as well as reinforcement in promotions of the
Company’s professional corporate image together with the liquefied
coalbed gas business’s production and sales, the Group’s business
prospects is very bright.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEF &S

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

During the year, there has been no change in the capital structure of
the Company. The Group mainly utilized internally generated cash
flow and proceeds from fund raising activities to satisfy its operational
and investing requirements.

Despite the difficult operating environment in the industry, as at
31 December 2010, the Group had net assets of approximately
RMB443,817,000, including cash and bank deposit balance of
approximately RMB23,567,000. The Group has implemented prudent
financial and risk managements. After taking into account the Group’s
existing financial resources, it is expected that the Group’s existing
financial resources and cash flow from operating activities will be
adequate to satisfy the requirements from its continuing operation,
which will be used mainly in future investments in product and
technological development.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had an aggregate of 155
employees, of which 10 were research and development staffs, 14
were finance and account staffs, 29 were administrative staffs and
18 were marketing staff, 68 production staff and 16 were security
staff.

During the year, the staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration)
was approximately RMB21,041,000 (2009: approximately
RMB28,735,000).

The salary and bonus policy of the Group is principally determined
in accordance with the performance of the individual employee. The
Group will, on an ongoing basis, provide opportunity for professional
development and training to its employees.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31st December 2010, RMB13,000,000 (2009:
RMB15,000,000) of the bank borrowings were secured by the
Group’s property, plant and equipment with a total carrying amount
of approximately RMB38,161,000 (2009: 41,259,000) and prepaid
lease payments for land under operating leases of approximately
RMB8,705,000 (2009: RMB10,295,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RISK IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The operations of the Group are located in the PRC and the majority
of its sales and purchases were denominated in Renminbi. Therefore,
there is no foreign exchange risk that may affect the Group’s operating
results.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Tax exposure in relation to the disposal of Shine
Science BVI Group

Pursuant to the Notice on Strengthening Administration of Enterprise
Income Tax for Share Transfers by Non-PRC Resident Enterprises
(Circular 698) issued by the State Administration of Taxation on 10
December 2009, where a foreign investor transfers its shares in an
overseas holding company which holds chinese resident companies
in the PRC, and if the PRC tax authority considers that the foreign
investor adopts abusive arrangement in order to avoid PRC tax, it
will disregard the existence of the overseas holding company and
the gains derived from such transfer may be subject to the PRC
withholding tax at a rate of 10%. Accordingly, the directors made a
provision on tax liability and tax surcharge in respect of the disposal
of Shine Science BVI Group (note 40) of approximately
RMB3,492,000 and RMB410,000 respectively in the consolidated
financial statements.

Apart from the tax liability and tax surcharge mentioned above, the
PRC tax authority may impose a further tax penalty to the Company.
As the amount of tax penalty is not ascertainable, it has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not have significant investment as at 31 December
2010.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEF &S

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Very Substantial Disposal — Disposal of Equity
Interests in Subsidiaries

On 9 February 2010, the Company, as vendor, entered into the sale
and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with
the purchasers pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to sell 100% of the issued share capital of Shine Science &
Technology (BVI) Company Limited (“Shine Science BVI”) (the
“Disposal”), for an aggregate consideration of RMB60,000,000. Shine
Science BVI beneficially holds 100% equity interest in Fujian Shine
Science & Technology Co., Limited (f& & # Z & AR A &), Fuzhou
Xinwangluo Network Company Limited (f& M ¥ E#F B 4E B R A 7))
and Shanghai Shine Science & Technology Co., Limited (/8 ¥ =
R ABR A7), which altogether form the Shine Science Group.
On 21 April 2010, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement with the purchasers (the “Supplemental Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Company, at the Completion and subject to
the terms and conditions of the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
agreed to waive a sum of approximately RMB15,491,000 due by
the Shine Science Group to the Company as at 31 December 2009,
and neither party shall have any claims against the other in respect
thereof. The Disposal constituted a very substantial disposal on the
part of the Company. The Disposal obtained the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 10 May 2010. For details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 11 February 2010 and 21 April 2010, and the
circular of the Company dated 23 April 2010.

Major Transaction Involving Issue of Convertible
Bonds

On 11 May 2010, the Group has executed an acquisition agreement
in respect of the acquisition of Million Ideas Investment Limited (8
& AR A 7)) in Shanxi (the “Shanxi Acquisition Agreement”) for a
consideration of RMB178,000,000 of which RMB165,000,000 was
settled by the zero coupon convertible bond in a principal amount of
HK$187,500,000 issued by the Company to the Vendor or its
nominee(s) (the “Convertible Bonds”). Consent of the shareholders
for this acquisition has been obtained in the extraordinary general
meeting held on 12 July 2010. The acquisition was completed on
16 July 2010. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 13 May 2010 and the circular of the Company dated
23 June 2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Up to the date as at 31 December 2010, the Company allotted and
issued 622,500,000 new shares upon exercising the conversion
rights attached to the Convertible Bonds of HK$124,500,000
pursuant to the Acquisition Shanxi Agreement at the price of HK$0.20
per share.Save as disclosed herein, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposal during the year. Save as disclosed
herein, the Group did not have any material disposal during the year.

FUTURE PLANS RELATING TO MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSET

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has not executed any agreement
in respect of proposed acquisition during the year.

LIQUEFIED COALBED GAS BUSINESS

The Group’s two coalbed gas-liquefying plants are developed for
liquefied coalbed gas business in the PRC. One of the coalbed gas
liquefying plant is in production and sales incurred. It is expected
that it will bring a long term source of revenue for the Group.

As the growth of the PRC’s economy, the domestic demand for fuel
and resources has been expanding. Therefore, it is expected that
the liquefied coalbed gas business will have promising prospect. It
is anticipated that the liquefied coalbed gas industry will provide the
Group with a stable and new revenue source and will further enhance
the Company’s value, as well as its shareholders’ return. In addition,
diversifying into a new business will broaden the Group’s revenue
sources and diversify the Group’s overall business risks.

PROSPECT

With the increasing demand for fuel and resources in the PRC, it is
expected that the new liquefied coalbed gas business will become
one of the driving forces in the Group’s profit growth in the future.
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Corporate Governance Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(a)

(b)

Application of Corporate Governance Principles

The Group is committed to promoting good corporate
governance, with the objectives of (i) the maintenance of
responsible decision making, (ii) the improvement in
transparency and disclosure of information to shareholders, (iii)
the continuance of respect for the rights of shareholders and
the recognition of the legitimate interests of shareholders, and
(iv) the improvement in management of risk and the
enhancement of performance by the Group. The Group has
applied the principles set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“HKSE Code”) contained in Appendix
15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”) with these objectives in mind.

Promulgation of Company’s Corporate
Governance Code

To this end, the Group has promulgated a set of Code on
Corporate Governance (“Company Code”) which sets out the
corporate standards and practices used by the Group to direct
and manage its business affairs. It is prepared by referencing
to the principles, code provisions and recommended best
practices set out in the HKSE Code, which came into effect on
1 January 2005. In addition to formalizing existing corporate
governance principles and practices, the Company Code also
serves the purpose of assimilating existing practices with
benchmarks prescribed by the HKSE Code and ultimately
ensuring high transparency and accountability to the Group’s
shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report

(c) Compliance of Company and HKSE's Code’s
Provisions

The Group has complied with all provisions in the Company
Code and the HKSE Code with the deviations mentioned below.

On 12 August 2005, the Company set up the following board
committees and adopted the company code, being its own
code on corporate governance: —

(@) Remuneration Committee;
(b)  Nomination Committee.

The Company Code contains all the Code Provisions of the
HKSE Code and other provisions.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than those as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of the directors of the Company, all directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings and code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors as set out in the code
of conduct for the year 2010.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company is entrusted with
the overall responsibility for promoting the success of the Company
by the direction and supervision of the Company’s business and
affairs.

The Board comprises a total of seven Directors, with four Executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman); Mr. Shi Liang;
Mr. Zhang Qing Lin and Mr. Fu Shou Gang and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun, Mr. Wang Zhi He
and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong. Ms. Pang Yuk Fong has appropriate
professional qualifications, accounting and financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
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Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines.

APPOINTMENT TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under Code Provision of the HKSE Code non-executive directors
should be appointed for specific terms, subject to re-election.
Currently, the Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-
executive Directors have no set term of office but are subject to
retirement by rotation at annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Roles of Directors

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for appointing and
supervising senior management to ensure that the operations of the
Group are conducted in accordance with the objectives of the Group.
The principal roles of the Board are:

° to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

° to monitor and control operating and financial performance
through the determination of the annual budget; and

° to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board is directly accountable to the shareholders and is
responsible for preparing the accounts.

BB TEZTCDRAIERLETRANE
S.09RELFEBYMER - RAIRR &
B IFMITESHIENARIER EMARR
SE5.091FTE VB T 13| - WRIEZIESI
IR R B B A L e

FMITEREZEH

MRIBEE S PSRN SO S RIS - FRRTTE
ERBEEEY  WRERIEE - BAT - F
WITESFMEIFNTESWEETE TN
HARBEARRZ ARMEBERRARRN AR
AIRRBEFASHESR

EFAE

EXeRARERERARANET  RAR
SREEZENREESNELE - ARERAE
RAZEENEAEBZAR -EFENT
ERER:

. HEAEENHEE -
BEtel

RS - BUOR N E

s RBABTEFMHREE  ERLES
LENMUMBRIR R

s HIEEEMEREEBR -
B r RS B AR -

&

EEERARRAEE  YAAEREKAE -

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR



Corporate Governance Report

Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management responsibility
to the management staff under the instruction/supervision of the
Board.

The management staff of the Company are principally responsible
for:

1. exercising all such other powers and perform all such other
acts as may be exercised and performed by the Directors, save
and except for those that may specifically be reserved by the
Board/or thee committees set up by the Board for decision
and implementation; or those that may only be exercised by
the Board pursuant to the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company, the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable Laws and regulations.

2. formulating and implementing policies for business actives,
internal controls and administration of the Company;

3. planning and deciding the Company’s strategies on its business
activities; and

4.  keeping proper written records of its decisions taken which
may be inspected by any members of the Board or the Board
committees upon request.

The Board will review those arrangements on a periodic basis to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”)

Under the Code Provision A.2.1 of the HKSE Code, the roles of
chairman and CEO should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Currently, Mr. Shi Liang is holding the title of
CEOQO. Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng is the Chairman of the Board. The
Board meets regularly to consider major matters affecting the
business and operations of the Group. The Board considers that
this structure will balance the power and authority between the Board
and management and believes that this structure enables the Group
to make and implement decision promptly and efficiently.
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BOARD OPERATION

Regular Board meetings are held normally every three months, with
additional meeting arranged, if and when required. In 2010, the Board
held 13 meetings. The attendance record of each member of the

Board is set out below:

EFESEF

i%‘\—ﬂﬁ’;i_fﬂ TH—R TEER

RRIHEm EFERN_FTZTFYE
BITTZREZE  BEFTENENHFELE
(N

Attendance
w2
Executive Directors
WITES
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman) 13/13
TRBEE (FE)
Mr. Shi Liang 11/13
hsE S A
Mr. Zhang Qing Lin (appointed on 17 May 2010) 10/13
REMEE (R—F—FEFAATHLHAEZE)
Mr Fu Shou Gang (appointed on 29 December 2010) 1/13
NERIEE RZE—ZFF+ AT NAEZE)
Non-executive Director:
EHITES
Mr. Kwok Shum Tim (resigned on 18 December 2010) 10/13
HEELEE (RZFE—FF+ZHT/\NHEE)

Mr. Ye Jinxing (reS/gned on 29 December 2010) 2/18
BeWAEE (RZFE—ZBF+ AT /LHELT)
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BIERTES
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 10/13
BEERE
Mr. Yan Chang Ming (resigned on 6 August 2010) 7/13
BRAXLE (RZFE—FF/\ANHEFE)
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong 9/13
ZEFLL
Mr. Wang Zhi He (appointed on 29 September 2010) 5/13

EFZ2NEE (R=ZF—FFAA-TLAEZE)

Directors are free to contribute alternative views at meetings and
major decisions would only be taken after deliberation at Board
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and would

abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.
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All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with, and advising the Board on compliance matters.

Directors’ Duties

Every Director is kept abreast of his responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company:

° A comprehensive director’s handbook is issued to every
Director, which sets out guidelines on conduct by making
reference to the relevant sections of the statutes or the GEM
Listing Rules, and reminds Directors of their responsibilities in
making disclosure of their interests and potential conflict of
interests.

° Orientation programmes are organised for providing induction
to new Directors to help them familiarise with the Company’s
management, business and governance practices.

° Management provides appropriate and sufficient information
to Directors and the committee members in a timely manner to
keep them apprised of the latest development of the Group
and enable them to discharge their responsibilities. Directors
also have independent and unrestricted access to senior
executives of the Company.

CONDUCT ON SHARE DEALINGS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as referred to in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company, having made specific enquiries to its
directors and supervisors, confirms that, throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2010, all directors and supervisors met
the criteria laid down in the said code for securities transactions by
directors.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

As mentioned above, a remuneration committee was established
on 12 August 2005 for, inter alia, the following purposes: —

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on policies and
structure for remuneration of directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on such remuneration;

to determine the remuneration packages for executive directors
and senior management and to make recommendations to the
board on the remuneration of non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is made up of all of the Company’s
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun,
Mr. Wang Zhi He (Chairman) and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong. The duty of
Remuneration Committee is to review and determine the
remuneration policy and packages of the executive directors and
executives.

In 2010, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each member of the Committee is set out
below:
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Attendance
w2
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 1/1
BERRE
Mr. Wang Zhi He (Chairman) 1/1
FzMEE (FE)
Ms. Pang Kuk Fong 1/1
ZEFLL

During the meeting, members of the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the remuneration packages and overall benefits of the
Directors by taking into account factors such as remuneration
packages and benefits offered by comparable companies, the
respective contribution of each of the Directors to the Group and
the business objectives of the Group.
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The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for reviewing
all relevant remuneration data and market conditions as well as the
performance of individuals and the profitability of the Group, and
proposing to the Remuneration Committee for consideration and
approval, remuneration packages for the executive directors and
executives.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

As mentioned above, a Nomination Committee was established on
12 August 2005 for, inter alia, the following purposes: —

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship; and

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or reappointment of directors and
succession planning for directors.

The Nomination Committee is made up of all of the Company’s
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Luo Wei Kun,
Mr. Wang Zhi He (Chairman) and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong.

In 2010, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each member of the Committee is set out
below:
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Attendance
s
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 1/1
Mr. Wang Zhi He (Chairman) 11
F2MEE (/)
Ms. Pang Kuk Fong 1/1
ZEFTL
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At the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Company’s Board of Directors, made
reference to criteria including, inter alia, reputation for integrity,
accomplishment and experience in the relevant industry, professional
and educational background, and commitment in respect of available
time and relevant interest. The Nomination Committee was satisfied
with the existing composition of the Company’s Board of Directors
and recommended no change in the near term.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee was established on 28 July 2003
and is currently composed of all three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun, Mr. Wang Zhi
He and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (Chairman). The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual reports, financial
statements, interim reports and quarterly reports; (b) To serve as a
focal point for communication between Directors, the external
auditors and internal auditors; (c) To assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities by providing an independent review and supervision
of financial reporting, and the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control system; and (d) To review the appointment of external auditors
on an annual basis as well as to ensure independence of the
continuing auditor.
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In 2010, the Audit Committee held four meetings. The attendance BZZEEN T —TFELEITINEHE °

record of each member of the Committee is set out below: BELZEENEMEFLENT :
Attendance

=

Mr. Luo Wei Kun 4/4

BERRE

Mr. Yan Chang Ming (resigned on 6 August 20170) 1/4

BRELE (R=ZF—ZFF/\ ANHEFE)

Ms. Pang Kuk Fong (Chairman) 4/4

ZEFLLT(EE)

Mr. Wang Zhi He (appointed on 29 September 2010) 2/4
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At the meetings, the Audit Committee has carefully reviewed the
Company’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results and its system
of internal control and has made suggestions to improve them. The
Committee also carried out and discharged its other duties set out
in HKSE Code. In the course of doing so, the Committee has met
the company’s management and qualified accountant several times
during 2010. Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted
access to the Group’s external auditors and the Management.

During the financial year 2010, the audit committee has held four
meetings. The Group’s results for the year 2010 have been reviewed
and commented by the audit committee members.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
annual accounts which give a true and fair view of the Group’s state
of affairs of the results and cash flow for the year. In preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2010, the Directors have:

° adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

° made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and ensured the accounts are prepared on a going
concern basis.

The company recognises that high quality corporate reporting is
important in reinforcing the trust relationship between the company
and the its stakeholders and aims at presenting a balanced, clear
and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in all corporate communications. The annual,
interim and quarterly results of the Company are announced in a
timely manner within the required limits after the end of the relevant
periods.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010

SREABE

gL BERZBQCHABRHARANETE
BE  PHRERFER  UNRAIEERE
o YEREAEZS - ZTEETCKBR
PrrRIETTREITEMEBE - BEH - £8
ER_FT-TFREQANEEBRAEER
SETENRITZREE - ARRALERGIZEF
“EBeKEBAEEINEZBE R EEE

R-E-TERREER  BREARYS
mRE  TAEEZ - -BEEEY

EXREEEFERBZGHE  NUEERYF
R ANEERE R 2 BEAXENMRER
BN RREBE_ZT-—ZF+ A=+
—HUEFERAE  EFC

. RAEAZEHBETEHER R

o (FHEEAIEZHE RMAF - ARE
RERB DRFFEREEERE -

EANSIEAVA IS E S 0NCIE =g 1 Ea Pl EC RN
NEEEER A ZENEEFTER - Bt
PrA R EERIG KAFE - BHRE2E
WRHERRBIMRIR - RREATR © AR A
MFEE - FRRFERED BIEBREIRET
IR RERMAERER



Corporate Governance Report
TEREGHRSE

Internal Control

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control over
financial, operational and compliance issues for the year 2010. The
Audit Committee concluded that, in general, the Group has set up a
sound control environment and installed necessary control
mechanisms to monitor and correct noncompliance. The Board,
through the review of the Audit Committee, is satisfied that the Group
in 2010, fully complied with the code provisions on internal controls
as set forth in the Code.

In order to maintain a high quality of Corporate Governance, the
Group employed a Qualified Accountant in current year and will still
employ a Qualified Accountant in the coming years. The Audit
Committee also concluded that the Group has employed sufficient
staff for the propose of accounting, financial and internal control.

External Auditors

The Group’s external auditors are CCIF CPA Limited. The Audit
Committee is mandated to ensure continuing auditors’ objectivity
and safeguard independence of the auditors, and it has:

° determined the framework for the type and authorisation of
non-audit services for which the external auditors may provide.
In general, the engagement of the external auditors to perform
non-audit services is prohibited except for tax related services;
and

o agreed with the Board on the policy relating to the hiring of
employees or former employees of the external auditors and
monitored the applications of such policy.

During 2010, the fees paid to the Company’s external auditors for
audit services amounted to RMB693,000.

The Group has not employed any staff who was formerly involved in
the Group’s statutory audit.

Corporate Communication

The Group recognizes the importance of shareholder feedback and
the need for ongoing communication with its stakeholders, including
the general public, investors, and the institutional and individual
shareholders. The Company published annual, interim and quarterly
reports which contained detailed information about the Group.
Inquiries by shareholders are directed and dealt with by senior
management of the Group.
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DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (“Mr. Wang”), aged 47, has been appointed
as Chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the compliance
officer of the Company since May 2006. From 9 January 2004 to 26
May 2006, Mr. Wang was an executive director of Tianjin Tianlian
Public Utilities Company Limited (“Tianjin Tianlian”), a company listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
8290), and was responsible for its business strategies. He graduated
from the University of Tianjin with a bachelor degree in engineering
in 1984. Mr. Wang is also a director of Tianjin Leason Investment
Group Company Limited (K& B B¢ 1% & & B B R 2 7). Mr. Wang
is a director of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and is beneficially
interested in 92% of the entire issued share capital of Jumbo Lane
Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the company which
holds 332,790,000 Shares, representing approximately 24% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.
Accordingly, Mr. Wang is deemed to be interested in these
332,790,000 Shares under the SFO.

Mr. Shi Liang (“Mr. Shi”), aged 42, has been appointed as an
executive Director since May 2006. Mr. Shi graduated with a bachelor
degree in Material Science in the Shanghai University of Science
and Technology of the PRC and a master degree in management
from the Business School of the People’s University in the PRC. He
was a vice general manager of Tianjin Tianlian. He had worked for
Jiangsu Nan Tong Electric Melter Company and Electronic Industrial
Division Basic Products Department. He had also worked for Jiangsu
Hua Yong Electronic Group Company as deputy manager of
international cooperation department and secretary to the board of
directors. He had also held various positions as a project manager,
senior manager and an assistant to executive director in the
investment banking of United Securities Limited, a securities
company in the PRC. Mr. Shi owns approximately 4% interest in
Jumbo Lane Investments Limited.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Managemehnt
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Mr. Zhang Qing Lin (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 60, joined the Company in
the year of 2007. He graduated from the Tianjin Industrial University*
(RIETIZEKE) (formerly known as The Institute of Tianjin Textile
Industry* (F3E# 4 T2 2P%)) in 1980. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Zhang has extensive working experience in corporate
management. Mr. Zhang owns approximately 0.3% interest in Jumbo
Lane Investments Limited.

Mr. Fu Shou Gang, aged 44, has years of experiences in the natural
gas sector. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in Tianjin Tianlian
Public Utilities Company Limited, where was pointed as an executive
Director. Mr. Fu owns approximately 0.3% interest in Jumbo Lane
Investments Limited.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ye Jinxing, aged 43, was appointed as a director of the Company
in July 2002 and was redesigned as a non-executive Director on 16
May 2006. He is a senior economist. He joined the Group in October
2000 and has been in charge of the Group’s overall financial
management, strategic capital planning and treasury functions of
the Group. Mr. Ye previously held various managerial positions at
the Quanzhou City Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China in Fujian Province from 1990 to 1994 and Minfa Securities
Company Limited from 1994 to 1999. Mr. Ye has over 15 years of
experience and in-depth knowledge in domestic banking, capital
and money markets. Mr. Ye was awarded a bachelor’s degree in
economics from the Jiangxi College of Finance and Economics in
1990. Mr. Ye resigned from the office of non-executive Director on
29 December 2010.

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 36, was appointed as a non-
executive Director in May 2006. Mr. Kwok is currently the company
secretary and chief financial officer of Tianjin Tianlian. Mr. Kwok
graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
and also obtained a master degree in China Business Studies from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Kwok has experience in
the field of audit, corporate finance and financial management, Mr.
Kwok is a director of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and owns
approximately 4% interest in Jumbo Lane Investments Limited.
Mr. Kwok resigned from the office of non-executive Dlrector on
18 December 2010.
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Blographical Information of Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Luo Wei Kun, aged 72, has been a director of the Company
since August 2006. He graduated from the Tsinghua University with
a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering in 1964 and started
postgraduate studies in the same year. He was awarded a
postgraduate diploma in civil engineering in 1967. He acted as a
technician in Wuhan Branch of the Chinese Medicine Industrial
Limited during 1968 to 1969 and as a technician, deputy section
chief, section chief, engineer and vice chief engineer in the State
Ministry of Medicine - Hubei Medical Manufactory Branch during
1969 to 1985. He then worked as a senior engineer, section chief
and assistant factory manager in Tianjin Second Coal Gas Factory
during 1986 to 1992. From 1992 to 2000, he acted as a vice chief
engineer in Tianjin Utility Department and at the same time, worked
as a chief engineer in Tianjin City Gas Administrative Office. After his
retirement in March 2000, Mr. Luo acted as a consultant of Tianjin
City Gas Administrative Office and Tianjin City Gas Planning Office.
Currently, he is an independent non-executive director of Tianjin
Tianlian.

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong, aged 45, has been a director of the Company
since August 2006. She is an experienced practicing certified public
accountant in Hong Kong with over 22 years’ professional experience
in the accounting and auditing. She is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Pang holds a master
of professional accounting degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Ms. Pang’s professional career started in Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. She has been the principal partner in Y. F. Pang & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants since 1990’s and the managing director
of AMC First Plan International Limited which is engaged in business
advisory services in the Asia Pacific region. Ms. Pang was appointed
by the Cuilong Copper International Holding Limited in 2006 as its
independent non-executive director.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Managemehnt
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Mr. Wang Zhi He (“Mr. Wang”), aged 63, is a senior accountant. Mr.
Wang graduated from Anhui University of Finance and Economics in
February 1972, and was assigned to finance department of Anhui
Huaibei Mining Bureau and worked as a commissioner, deputy
section chief, section chief, deputy director and director. Mr. Wang
was transferred to the Ministry of Coal Industry in May 1995, and
worked as a director of Asset Capital Management Division and
State-owned Assets Management department. In October 1997, Mr.
Wang was re-designated as a chief accountant of China Coal
Construction Group Corporation, and worked as a deputy general
manager and chief accountant in May 1999. Mr. Wang was
transferred to Zhonglian Gas Company Limited and worked as a
chief accountant in March 2004. Mr. Wang has years of relevant
experience.

Mr. Yan Changming (“Mr. Yan”), aged 47, was appointed as a director
of the Company in August 2006. He graduated from the Tsinghua
University with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering in 1986.
He also obtained a master degree in chemical engineering from the
Tsinghua University and University of Ottawa in 1989 and 1994,
respectively. Since 1994, he has been acting as the President of
Canada Cadavisa Investment Consulting Inc. Currently, he is the
vice president and secretary general of the Chamber of Commerce
of Chinese Western Returned Association and the Canada Branch
of Chinese Western Returned Association. He is also the vice
secretary general of all Federation of Returned Oversea Chinese.
Mr. Yan resigned from the office of independent non-executive
Director on 6 August 2010.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lui Chi Keung, aged 53, has been appointed as the company
secretary, qualified accountant and authorized representative of the
Company since September 2007. Mr. Lui is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lui has over 28 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
financial and business management.
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The directors of China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the
“Company”) present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 49 to 50.

The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2010 are set out in the statement of financial position
on pages 52 to 54 respectively. The cash flows of the Group are set
out in the consolidated cash flow statement on pages 56 and 58.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of a
dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Directors’ Report
EEERE

PEBRRARMERAR (KRR EE
FEUREAAARAMBAR (TARE))
BE-T-BFT-A=T-BILFE2F
REEEREANHRE -

EBRE
ARTAREERAT - KHBATZEE
SIS BR B 5 TRR A 323 o

KRR 7k

AEBHE-_Z—ZTF+_A=Z+—HILHF
Bz E2EHNFI9E0EMGEAIERE °
KREBERARNRN_E—ZEF+_A=+—
B2z &ERRD RIEHRES2EL548 2 Bk
MK - AEBZESREHNFES6 K588 2

S AT A B2
%m/m\fﬁi/llbii'% °

ARBEETERRMARE °

% & B fiE

ARRIRFAZBAZEFIEHN M HRE
B3 -

AEBNMNADNBRERNZ FEELSENTH
MR FES6 ©

ME - BB

EAEEZYE MERREEHFEH
R FRRMIZE18 -



Directors’ Report
EEERE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman)
Mr. Shi Liang
Mr. Zhang Qing Lin
(appointed on 17 May 2010)
Mr. Fu Shou Gang
(appointed on 29 December 2010)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim

(resigned on 18 December 2010)
Mr. Ye Jinxing

(resigned on 29 December 2010)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Luo Wei Kun
Mr. Yan Chang Ming (resigned on 6 August 2010)
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong
Mr. Wang Zhi He
(appointed on 29 September 2010)

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Luo Wei Kun and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on page 26 to
page 29 of this report.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors remained
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION

Details of Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration for the
year are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

The directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

On 10 September 2010, the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement with Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (“Mr. Wang”), the Chairman,
an executive director and a substantial shareholder of the Company
(as vendor) pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to
acquire and Mr. Wang conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued
share capital of Wealthy Talent Global Investments Limited owned
by Mr. Wang (the “Wealthy Acquisition Agreement”). The target group
to be acquired under the Wealthy Acquisition Agreement was
anticipated to be principally engaged in the supply of natural gas to
its industrial customers through pipelines. The consideration for the
proposed acquisition was to be settled partly by the issue of shares
of the Company and partly by the issue of convertible bonds of the
Company. On 25 October 2010, the Company and Mr. Wang entered
into a termination agreement, whereby the Company and Mr. Wang
mutually agreed to terminate the Wealthy Acquisition Agreement.
The proposed acquisition would constitute, if not terminated, a very
substantial acquisition and connected transaction of the Company
under the GEM Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 25 October 2010.
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Save as disclosed above, no other contract of significance in relation
to the Group’s business subsisted at the year-end or any time during
the year to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors of the Company or the management
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business
which causes or may cause any significant competition with the
business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on Information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of the Director and chief
executive of the Company and each of their respective associates
(as defined under the GEM Listing Rules), in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which such Director or chief executive is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by Directors to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(1) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company:

Directors’ Report
EEERE

EEREETHRARSREKG
HRAKGRRGFZEINRE

RZE—ZF+_A=+—H KXRBIESE
FEBTBRABREMESESEZHEALT
(E& REIZER LA KRR R KEEMA
HEEE (EXREHFRBAEKRD([FH K
HAE&BI)) EEXVER) 2 ik fh - MR MD RE
HH - FE@REBRESFRBAEBKRIIEXVEE
T8N EEME AN E R s (B
ERBEELFLAERIZERNESTIEE
THAEBHEABEZEZXEE) ¢ (D)
BIEEH KB K5 53521538 T B RL 8RR
RARBBZIEFMEF 2 B 3
C)IRIREIZIR MR AIZE5.4625.67 15
SADNRI R Z ST ¢

(1) RELABZHERZITE -

Number of shares/ Approximate %

Name Capacity Nature of Interest underlying shares of shareholdings
#E &% EEtE RO/ ABERGEE EREQSEIH
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng Interest of controlled Corporate interest 332,790,000 14.75%
corporation (Note)
FRBEELE R E#ER NGIE 3y (Kfzt)
Beneficial Owner Personal 274,822,118 12.18%
EREBA EA
Note: Such shares are owned by Jumbo Lane Investments Limited. Biat : ZERHBETEREEBRQAE
H o

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng owns 91.6% interest in the issued share
capital of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and he is taken to
be interested in the shares owned by Jumbo Lane Investments
Limited pursuant to Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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(2) Long position in shares of associated

corporations of the Company:

(2) REEEERBZIFS

Percentage of
interests in the registered
capital of the

Director Name of associated corporation Nature of Interest associated corporation
hZEE LB

#E HEZEER EEME EXzRBAEDL

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng Jumbo Lane Investments Limited Personal 91.6%

(Note)

TRBEE EEREARRA (Kt A

Mr. Zhang Qing Lin Jumbo Lane Investments Limited Personal 0.3%

R E EEREARRATA fEA

Mr. Shi Liang Jumbo Lane Investments Limited Personal 3.9%

iR pp e EEREARAA fEA

Mr. Fu Shou Gang Jumbo Lane Investments Limited Personal 0.3%

NPt EERBEARRATA A

Note: Jumbo Lane Investments Limited is a holding Company of the fix: BEREBERARBANEEZIER

Group, owns 14.7% of the shareholding of the Group. Mr. Wang
Zhong Sheng owns 91.6% interest in the issued share capital of
Jumbo Lane Investments Limited. Mr. Shi Liang, Mr. Zhang Qing
Lin and Mr. Fu Shou Gang each own hold 3.9%, 0.3% and 0.3%
in the issued share capital of Jumbo Lane Investments Limited
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware,
as at the 31 December 2010, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company and each of their respective
associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had any
interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which the Director
or chief executive is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

DR BBAREE14.7%KE - £
BBEAEREEEREARAAE
BITRAZI91.6% % M=k
£ REMEERNSRILEERE
BEBREABRARCDETRAZ
3.9% * 0.3%0.3% 5 °
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(3) SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at the 31 December 2010, so far as is known to the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company, the following
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had an interest or a short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
other member of the Group, or held any option in respect of

Directors’ Report
EEERE

(3) EERRE

R-Z—ZF+_A=1+—B A&
NRAEERTBTHRAERA - 17
AL (RRREFREETERAERR
5N BB ARIERE 75 N BB R (I EXVED
2N BARMAN R B E 2 K
KRR REEREREE M SN
REMIER TEREBEMEAMKE
NEZBERAE EREZERE R
ARE{E10% HIA Lz s sk R -~ 3K
FBRERAZ B -

such capital:
Long positions in shares v o s =

Number of Percentage of
Name Ordinary Shares Nature of Interest shareholding
HE EERROHAE ERtE REMOBES L
Jumbo Lane 332,790,000 Beneficial owner 14.75%

Investments Limited (Note 1)

BEREARRQA (Kat1) ERBAA
Ms. Zhao Xin (Note 2) 607,612,118 Interest of spouse 26.93%
WEL+ (fF2) B s
Notes: Bitat -
1. The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Wang Zhong 1. WEERENESERIRIEERE

Sheng in the paragraph headed “Directors’ interests” and Chief
Executive’s Interests or short portions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures interests above.

2. Ms. Zhao Xin (the spouse of Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng) is deemed
to be interested in her spouse’s interest in the Company which
represent the same parcels of Shares respectively held by Jumbo
Lane Investments Limited and Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng as
beneficial owner pursuant to the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no person known to the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company, other than
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company, who, as
at 31 December 2010, had an interest or a short position in
the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group or held
any option in respect of such capital.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief executive
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors, or their spouses or children under the age
of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the top five customers of the Group
together accounted for approximately 49.1% of the Group’s total
sales for the year while the single largest customers accounted for
approximately 13.8% of the Group’s total sales during the year.

The top five suppliers of the Group for the year under review together
accounted for approximately 74.7% of the Group’s total purchases
for the year and the single largest supplier accounted for
approximately 34.8% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their respective associates or any shareholders
of the Company who owns more than 5% of the issued share capital
of the Company has any interests in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers above mentioned.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2010.
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AMOUNT OF CAPITALISED INTEREST

Save as disclosed in this report, no interest has been capitalised by
the Group during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particular of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set
out in note 38 to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, warrants
or instruments carrying other similar rights as at 31 December 2010.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

Save as the “Top-Up Placing” and the “Major Transaction Involving
Issue of Convertible Bonds” disclosed below, during the year ended
31 December 2010, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed Shares.
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MATERIAL EVENTS

Very Substantial Disposal — Disposal of Equity Interests in Subsidiaries

On 9 February 2010, the Company, as vendor, entered into the sale
and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with
the purchasers pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to sell 100% of the issued share capital of Shine Science &
Technology (BVI) Company Limited (“Shine Science BVI”) (the
“Disposal”), for an aggregate consideration of RMB60,000,000. Shine
Science BVI beneficially holds 100% equity interest in Fujian Shine
Science & Technology Co., Limited (f& 2 %1 = £ AR 2 7)), Fuzhou
Xinwangluo Network Company Limited (f& M T ZE#HB4E B R 2 7))
and Shanghai Shine Science & Technology Co., Limited (/8 ¥1 =
#FRHLABR 2 7)), which altogether form the Shine Science Group.
On 21 April 2010, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement with the purchasers (the “Supplemental Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Company, at the Completion and subject to
the terms and conditions of the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
agreed to waive a sum of approximately RMB15,491,000 due by
the Shine Science Group to the Company as at 31 December 2009,
and neither party shall have any claims against the other in respect
thereof. The Disposal constituted a very substantial disposal on the
part of the Company. The Disposal obtained the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 10 May 2010. For details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 11 February 2010 and 21 April 2010, and the
circular of the Company dated 23 April 2010.

Top Up Placing

On 24 February 2010, the Company entered into a placing and
subscription agreement (the “Placing and Subscription Agreement”),
pursuant to which (i) the placing agent has agreed to place, on behalf
of the Jumbo Lane Investments Limited (“Jumbo Lane”) and Mr. Wang
Zhang Sheng (“Mr. Wang”) (collectively the “Vendors”) and on a best
effort basis, an aggregate of up to 272,360,000 existing ordinary
share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company (of
which 208,670,000 Shares are from Jumbo Lane and 63,690,000
Shares are from Mr. Wang) (the “Placing Share(s)”) at the placing
price of HK$0.152 per Placing Share (the “Placing”); and (i) the
Vendors have respectively and conditionally agreed to subscribe for,
and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue and allot, the
subscription shares pursuant to the Placing and Subscription
Agreement (the “Subscription Share(s)”) at the price of HK$0.152
per Subscription Share (the “Subscription”).
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The Placing and the Subscription were completed on 1 March 2010
and 8 March 2010 respectively in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Placing and Subscription Agreement. An aggregate
of 272,360,000 Placing Shares (of which 208,670,000 Shares were
from Jumbo Lane and 63,690,000 Shares were from Mr. Wang) were
successfully placed by the Vendors to not less than six individual,
institutional and/or other professional investors who were third parties
independent of the Company and its connected persons (within the
meaning of the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company, at the Placing
Price of HK$0.152 per Placing Share and an aggregate of
272,360,000 Subscription Shares were issued and allotted by the
Company to the Vendors at the Subscription Price of HK$0.152 per
Subscription Share. The net proceeds raised from the Subscription
amounted to approximately HK$40,709,000 which was intended to
be used for the development of the second liquefied coalbed gas in
Shanxi Province, the PRC. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 24 February 2010 and
8 March 2010.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2010,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any to the Company’s listed Shares.

Major Transaction Involving Issue of Convertible
Bonds

On 11 May 2010, the Group has executed an acquisition agreement
in respect of the acquisition of Million Ideas Investment Limited (8
& AR 7)) in Shanxi (the “Shanxi Acquisition Agreement”) for a
consideration of RMB178,000,000 of which RMB165,000,000 was
settled by the zero coupon convertible bond in a principal amount of
HK$187,500,000 issued by the Company to the Vendor or its
nominee(s) (the “Convertible Bonds”). Consent of the shareholders
for this acquisition has been obtained in the extraordinary general
meeting held on 12 July 2010. The acquisition was completed on
16 July 2010. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 13 May 2010 and the circular of the Company dated
23 June 2010.
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Up to the date as at 31 December 2010, the Company allotted and
issued 622,500,000 new shares upon exercising the conversion
rights attached to the Convertible Bonds of HK$124,500,000
pursuant to the Acquisition Shanxi Agreement at the price of HK$0.20
per share.

Termination of Proposed Very Substantial Acquisition
and connected transaction

On 10 September 2010, the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement with Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (“Wang*), the Chairman, an
executive director and a substantial shareholder of the Company
(as vendor) pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to
acquire and Mr. Wang conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued
share capital of Wealthy Talent Global Investments Limited owned
by Mr. Wang (the “Wealthy Acquisition Agreement”). The target group
to be acquired under the Wealthy Acquisition Agreement was
anticipated to be principally engaged in the supply of natural gas to
its industrial customers through pipelines. The consideration for the
proposed acquisition was to be settled partly by the issue of shares
of the Company and partly by the issue of convertible bonds of the
Company. On 25 October 2010, the Company and Mr. Wang entered
into a termination agreement, whereby the Company and Mr. Wang
mutually agreed to terminate the Wealthy Acquisition Agreement.
The proposed acquisition would constitute, if not terminated, a very
substantial acquisition and connected transaction of the Company
under the GEM Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 25 October 2010.

To the best of Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, the
termination of the Wealthy Acquisition Agreement will not have any
adverse material impact on the interests of the Company and the
shareholders of the Company as well as the business, operations or
financial condition of the Group.

Finance Lease Arrangement

On 2 December 2010, (1) Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy
Development Company Limited (“Qinshui Energy”), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company; and (2) Shanxi Wanzhi Logistics
Limited (“Shanxi Logistics”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
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of the Company, entered into, among other things, the five finance
lease agreements respectively with CIMC Vehicle Financial Leasing
Company Limited (“CIMC Vehicle”), pursuant to which Qinshui Energy
and Shanxi Logistics conditionally agreed to lease from CIMC Vehicle,
and CIMC Vehicle conditionally agreed to lease to Qinshui Energy
and Shanxi Logistics, certain assets including liquefied natural gas
tanks, gasified system and equipment, liquefied natural gas trailer,
towing vehicles and liquefied natural gas refill stations respectively
for a total lease consideration of RMB95,460,930 for a term of 36
months by monthly installments inclusive of interest determined
based on the prevailing lending interest rate promulgated by People’s
Bank of China (the “Finance Lease Arrangement”). However, the total
lease consideration would be adjusted due to the floating lending
interest rate to be promulgated by People’s Bank of China from time
to time.

The Finance Lease Arrangement constituted a very substantial
acquisition for the Company under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing
Rules and therefore was subject to reporting, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements. The Finance Lease
Arrangement obtained the approval of the Company’s shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 14 February 2011. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
7 December 2010 and 12 January 2011 respectively, and the circular
of the Company dated 24 January 2011.

Formation of Joint Venture

On 31 December 2010, the Company entered into a joint venture
agreement (the “Joint Venture Agreement”) through Shanxi
Yangcheng Shuntai Energy Development Company Limited, its
wholly-owned subsidiary, with Shanxi Yangcheng Yangtai Group
Industrial Company Limited (“Yangcheng Yangtai”) and Zhengzhou
Zhencheng Energy Technology Service Company Limited
(“Zhengzhou Zhencheng”) to establish a joint venture company with
a registered capital at RMB30 million. The joint venture company
would be owned as to 60%, 20% and 20% by the Group, Yangcheng
Yangtai and Zhengzhou Zhencheng, respectively. The Directors
confirmed that the total investment commitment in the joint venture
company by the Group would not exceed RMB18 million, which is
in proportion to its shareholding in the joint venture company pursuant
to the Joint Venture Agreement. The Joint Venture Agreement
constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
31 December 2010.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Termination of Proposed Very Substantial Acquisition
and connected transaction

On 10 September 2010, the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement with Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng, the Chairman, an executive
director and a substantial shareholder of the Company (as vendor)
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to acquire and
Mr. Wang conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued share capital
of Wealthy Talent Global Investments Limited owned by Mr. Wang
(the “Wealthy Acquisition Agreement”). The target group to be
acquired under the Wealthy Acquisition Agreement was anticipated
to be principally engaged in the supply of natural gas to its industrial
customers through pipelines. The consideration for the proposed
acquisition was to be settled partly by the issue of shares of the
Company and partly by the issue of convertible bonds of the
Company. On 25 October 2010, the Company and Mr. Wang entered
into a termination agreement, whereby the Company and Mr. Wang
mutually agreed to terminate the Wealthy Acquisition Agreement.
The proposed acquisition would constitute, if not terminated, a very
substantial acquisition and connected transaction of the Company
under the GEM Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 25 October 2010.

During the period, save as the proposed acquisition of Wealthy Talent
Global Investments Limited which was subsequently terminated as
disclosed above, the Group did not entered into any (i) connected
transactions or (ii) continuing connected transactions under the GEM
Listing Rules (as amended from time to time) that are required to be
disclosed in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The related party transactions entered into by the Group, as disclosed
in note 47 to the financial statements also do not constitute any (i)
connected transactions or (ii) continuing connected transactions
under the GEM Listing Rules (as amended from time to time) that
are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

The Company and Vision Finance International Company Limited
(the “Placing Agent”) entered into a placing agreement on 26 February
2011 (the “Placing Agreement”), whereby the Company agreed to
place, through the Placing Agent, a maximum of 326,830,000 new
shares (the “Placing Shares”) to independent investors at a price of
HK$0.225 per Placing Share (the “Placing”). The 326,830,000 Placing
Shares represent (i) approximately 14.48% of the then existing issued
share capital of the Company of 2,256,675,023 Shares; and (ii)
approximately 12.65% of the Company’s issued share capital of
2,583,505,023 Shares as enlarged by completion of the Placing.
The maximum net proceeds from the Placing of approximately
HK$71.21 million which will be used for the existing joint venture
investment and general working capital of the Group.

The Placing was completed on 17 March 2011 in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement. An aggregate of
326,830,000 Placing Shares have been successfully placed to not
less than six investors who are third parties independent of the
Company and its connected persons (within the meaning of the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Company, at the Placing Price of HK$0.225 per
Placing Share. For details, please refer to announcement of the
Company dated 27 February 2011 and 17 March 2011.

APPOINTMENT AND RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS

On 17 May 2010, Mr. Zhang Qing Lin has been appointed as an
executive Director.

On 6 August 2010, Mr. Yan Chang Ming has resigned as independent
non-executive Director and a member of audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Yan
confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board and there is
no matter relating to his resignation that needs to be brought to
attention of the shareholders of the Company. He further confirmed
that he has no claims whatsoever against the Company. Mr. Wang
Zhi He has subsequently been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee with effect from 29
September 2010. The Board noted that following the resignation of

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

Mr. Yan but before the appointment of Mr. Wang Zhi He, the Company
could not fulfill the requirement under Rules 5.05 and 5.28 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) which the number of the independent nonexecutive
directors and the Audit Committee members fell below the minimum
number requirement of 3 members.

On 18 December 2010, Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (“Mr. Kwok”) has
resigned as non-executive Director of the Company due to his other
personal commitments. Mr. Kwok has confirmed that he has no
disagreement with the Board and there are no other matters in relation
to his resignation that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company or the Stock Exchange.

On 29 December 2010, Mr. Ye Jinxing (“Mr. Ye”) has resigned as a
non-executive Director of the Company (the “Director”) due to his
other business commitments which require more of his dedications.
The Board and Mr. Ye have confirmed that Mr. Ye has no
disagreement with the Board and there is no matter in relation to Mr.
Ye’s resignation from the positions set out above that needs to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company or the
Stock Exchange. On the same date, Mr. Fu Shou Gang has been
appointed as an executive Director.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. CCIF CPA
Limited who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board

Wang Zhong Sheng
Chairman

30 March 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 234, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B RET R &

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

ZBET R R T

AEBENEEDREBEZTIEHRELRA
MHHmRRERR  UERAZERR®RE -

BRUE AN SR EBE R RIEE M A iR - N4
BB T A AR EN AR AR E M A L%
R EEAAE -

AZBMORBEEBGTMAGRMZ(E
BIRBERDETER - ZFEAREAZ
BEN/AE B RARE - W B R ETEZ
NEEEEIEFEMERREENFAE
] E KSR R AL -

EZEEETREFAERABGS M HRR

BN EREERNEZERRE - MEEN
RFBURNZ AR HI T - 2354 B

FEERR M EBUR S M RRFAEEANER
R AV E R - FERHEZ FERE - Z2EE
B BERTARENEEMAFHIRES
MMM ARET - UREHEENE
TR - B RH QR A RRE IR A R
MEXRER - ERNEEHEEEMRAN
SRR DRELMEENEAEERS
BE - ANFHER S WM RRAERIIRST
= o

RIZEEE(E - RPIPTESNEZRIELT
RIMEEMSEMNERE R IRHER -

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR



Independent Auditor’s Report

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2010, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2(b)(ii) to
the consolidated financial statements which indicates that the Group
incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB20,493,000 for the year ended 31 December
2010 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately RMB99,465,000. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2(b)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 March 2011

Ho Chun Shing
Practising Certificate Number P04396
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Consolidated Income Statement

HERER

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 — T —ZF+ - A =+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® TR ARBETT
(Restated)
(& &E5)
Continuing operations FEKEER
Turnover R 5 230,989 40,056
Cost of sales 55 6 B A (205,256) (37,010)
Gross profit ER 25,733 3,046
Other revenue and net income H bz ROF A 6 138 362
Distribution costs o= 1D N (4,186) (83)
Administrative expenses THAX (29,187) (20,951)
Other operating expenses HigERx (648) (19)
Finance costs BhE R A 7(c) (9,681) (4,260)
Gain on remeasuring existing interest FEWEMEF £
in an available-for-sale investment AHEERERA
on acquisition a2 Was 39(a) 4,960 —
Fair value gain on the derivative AR & 50T & 2B 1D
component of convertible bonds <A ERE 34 3,223 —
Impairment loss on goodwill e R EEE 16 - (52,971)
Loss before income tax BREFIS T AIE B 7 (9,648) (74,876)
Income tax FriSt 8(a) (871) 251
Loss for the year from continuing REGELEXT
operations ZAREEEE (10,519) (74,625)
Discontinued operations B IS 11
(Loss)/profit for the year from REEKRIEEEER
discontinued operations Z2AFE (BB, afl (11,947) 15,795
Loss for the year REEEE (22,466) (58,830)
Attributable to: T 5| fEfh -
Owners of the Company ZAY/NEIEZZ =N (20,493) (58,741)
Non-controlling interests FEE R = (1,973) (89)
(22,466) (58,830)
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Consolidated Income Statement

HERER

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 —E—ZHF+ - A=+—HILtFE

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNhF
Note RMB RMB
B 5E AR ARKE
(Restated)
(&)
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (58) ZBF 14
From continuing and REFEALSEER
discontinued operations FERIEREEK
— Basic (cents) — EAX(H) (1.17) (6.29)
— Diluted (cents) — 8% (9) (1.17) (6.29)
From continuing operations REFEALSEER
— Basic (cents) — EX(H) (0.49) (7.98)
— Diluted (cents) — 8% (9) (0.49) (7.98)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on ZEEER -_ZT—ZTF= A=+ HILERRE

30 March 2010.

g -

The notes on pages 59 to 234 form part of these financial statements. 55598 £ 234 8 2 [ff st 485k B 75 i 7% H & 36

e
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEEEKmR

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 — T —ZF+ - A =+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBETT
(Restated)
(&&E5)
Loss for the year REEEIE (22,466) (58,830)
Other comprehensive loss AREEHMEHEEE
for the year (net of tax) (MR IE)
Exchange differences on RERINE B S HwE
translation of financial ZEHZERE
statements of foreign entities 2,195 (79)
Reclassification adjustments FANEZBINERE
relating to foreign entities ZEHDERE
disposed of during the year (1,884) —
Total comprehensive loss AEELHEBERE
for the year (22,155) (58,909)
Total comprehensive loss THALTEMEEEEEEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ PN (20,182) (58,820)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR E 2 (1,973) (89)
(22,155) (58,909)
The notes on pages 59 to 234 form part of these financial FE0B E234H 7 Wi AR B Bk A &
statements. 7 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ZFEMBIRIR

As at 31 December 2010 R —_ZE—ZFF+_-_A=+—H

2010 2009
—ZE-Z5F —ZTENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® TR ARBETT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Goodwill [EES 16 133,308 23,831
Investment properties REYZE 17 - 7,330
Property, plant and equipment Y% - R RRE 18(a) 205,428 252,932
Prepaid lease payments for KEBL AN
land under operating leases TS 19 29,294 25,819
Intangible assets EmREE 20 156,502 69,687
Deposits for acquisition of property, — UgBE¥EE - #2S
plant and equipment EEREET® 21 12,211 7,000
Deposits for acquisition of interests WHEKEEHNT
in land under operating leases THER ] E 22 10,462 8,475
Available-for-sale investment AHEHERE 24 - 4,800
Derivative component of AIMRESHITE
convertible bonds 19 34 6,621 =
Deferred tax assets IR IRE E 35(b) 302 1,427
644,128 401,301
Current assets RBEE
Prepaid lease payments for land KERAOTE
under operating leases e 19 673 608
Trading securities B &S 25 - 582
Inventories FE 26(a) 2,062 4,976
Trade and JE WLBR TR &
other receivables H b fE W 5RIB 27 42,182 39,276
Value-added tax recoverable A] Uy [ 188 (E 28 - 1,990
Tax recoverable A W =] A 18 35(a) 687 —
Cash and cash equivalents HehBeZEY 29 23,567 96,292
69,171 143,724
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables FERERER KR
H fth JE A R IE 30 108,015 128,417
Deferred income T A 31 - 8,832
Bank and other borrowings due —FRB 2 ERT
within one year K H th 18 5K 32 60,000 52,000
Tax payable FERBIE 35(a) 621 4,121
168,636 193,370

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HFEMBIRIAR

As at 31 December 2010 R - ZE—ZF+_A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 2 ARET R ARBTFIT
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (99,465) (49,646)
Total assets less current liabilities EEERABERE 544,663 351,655
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITER 32 8,000 13,000
Promissory notes R 33 - 51,296
Convertible bonds AR ES 34 43,137 —
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEAE 35(b) 39,198 17,510
90,335 81,806
NET ASSETS EERE 454,328 269,849
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital [N 36(b) 20,681 12,921
Reserves fH 412,353 254,401
Equity attributable to owners ZAN/NSIEZZS N
of the Company FElEHE = 433,034 267,322
Non-controlling interests FEF2 AR 4 2 21,294 2,527
TOTAL EQUITY 48 454,328 269,849

BN T ——F=A=THEEKRERE
T 2% -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30 March 2011.

Wang Zhong Sheng Zhang Qing Lin

By REM
Director Director
EFE EFE

59H E 2348 M s A A I 75 2k H A &F

o

i

The notes on pages 59 to 234 form part of these financial statements.

—_
=

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AAF5 R L 3R

As at 31 December 2010 R —_ZE—ZFF+_-_A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-2F —EENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% ARET R AREFT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment I - IS KRR 18(b) 1,634 883
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZKE 23 326,455 112,873
Derivative component of AR ES
convertible bonds PTEER D 34 6,621 =
334,710 113,756
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables JrE U BR 3k X
H A e W 3k I8 27 144,593 164,605
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeFED 29 7,658 29,443
152,251 194,048
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables JERERR R AMERFKIE 30 (2,439) (1,685)
Net current assets RBEEFRE 149,812 192,363
Total assets less current liabilities EEERBABEE 484,522 306,119
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Promissory notes A H IR 33 - 51,296
Convertible bonds AR E S 34 43,137 =
43,137 51,296
NET ASSETS EERE 441,385 254,823
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital f& 7S 36(b) 20,681 12,921
Reserves 1 36(a) 420,704 241,902
TOTAL EQUITY R 441,385 254,823

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

30 March 2011.

Wang Zhong Sheng

T BB

Director

EE

The notes on pages 59 to 234 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEERBEHR

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 — T —ZF+ - A =+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAEREARL
Convertible Non-
Share Share Merger  Contributed General Translation bonds  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
TER
B BA%E ARRE EIY-4 kiR BERE s8R 2tk &t FERER 41

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RUB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RUB'000
MEETR  ARETR ARRTT ARBTR  AB¥TR ARETR ARBTT BB \RETR ARETT ARBTT

At 1 January 2009 R-EENE-A-A 6,399 147,878 (2,351) - 5,31 (935) - (36,212) 120,130 - 120,130
Comprehensive income E3ile:
Loss for the year KEEER - - - = = = = (38,741) (68,741) (89) (38,830)
Other comprehensive income £t 2EHE
Exchange diferences on BEENER
translation of inancil B
Statements of foreign enties EjzE = = = = = 79) = = 19) - (1)
Total comprehensive income 2EhREE - - - - - 1) - (58,741) (58820) (89) (58.909)
Transactions with owners BREAEG RS
Issue of new shares BHRG
— Aoquisition of subsiaries —WEKBAT
(note 33) (HsE39b) 2,164 127,653 = = - = = - 129817 - 120817
— Open offer —MRRE 3,267 62,066 - - - - - - 65,333 - 86,333
— Share placement - khEE 1091 13972 - - - - - - 16,063 - 16,083
Transacton costs atrbutable BHROER
foisse of e s RERA - fha1) - - - - - - fha) - )
Non-contoling interests aisng ~~ AERBARIHZ
from acquiston of subsidaries ks
(note 39(5) (it 39) - - - - - - - - - 2616 2516
Total transactions with owners ~ REBEARTZRAHE 6,522 199,490 - - - - - - 206,012 2616 208,628
At 31 December 2009 and HNoZENE
1 January 2010 TZA=1t-Ak
“5-5E-f-R 1291 347,368 (2.351) - 5,361 (1,014) - 94,953) 27,322 2500 269,849
Comprehensive income ks
Loss forthe year KEEEE - - - = = = = (20.49%) (20.493) (1.973) (22,466)
Other comprehensive income ~~ Eft2E k%
Exchange difeences on BEBIERHFER
Hranslaton of fianciel satements ~ ZEXZE
of foreign entties - - - - - 219 - - 21% - 21%
Reclssiication adjustments relating to £/ 2B/ 58
foreign entfies cisposed of JERAERE
dluring the year - - - = = [1,884) = = [1.884) = (1.884)
Total comprehensiveincome ~~ 2EHHEEE - - - = - 31 - (2049) (20,182) (1973) (22,155)
Transactions with owners EREAET2RS
Issue of new shares it
— Share placement —RiEE 23% 34012 - - - - - - 36,407 - 3,407
— Conversion of convertble bonds ~ — ERT#RE5 5,365 103,626 - - - - (31.245) - 11,146 - 11,746
Transacton costs atrbutable BfiRiER
Tossue of new shares RERE - (¢74) - - - - - - (é74) - (474)
Recogniton of equity compongnt of -~ R BREHRZ
convertble bonds EaBlh - - - - - - 47,085 = 47,065 = 47,065
Disposal of subsiciaries (ote d0)  HEMBAT (HE40) - - 2,351 25,160 (5,351) = = 3,000 2,160 - 25,160
Non-controling interests arising WM BAFIHZ
from acquiston of subsidaries ks
(note 39(a) (sEagga) - - - - - - - - - 20,740 20,740
Total transactions with owners ~ EREART2R54E 7,760 137,164 2,351 25,160 (5,351) - 15810 3,000 185,804 20,740 206,634
At 31 December 2010 WoE-%E
tA=t+-A 20,681 48453 - 25,160 - (703) 15810 (112,446) 433,034 21,294 454328
The notes on pages 59 to 234 form part of these financial statements. 55598 £ 2348 7 Mf E 48 5% B 75 7R 2% H A 50
o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
nv, \éiﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 —E—ZHF+ - A=+—HILtFE

2010 2009
—ZE-Z5F —ZTENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR®T R ARBEFT
(Restated)
(& E5)
Operating activities REER
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrET S B AT (&18) & 7
— From continuing operations — REBEKEER (9,648) (74,876)
— From discontinued operations — REBERIELEER (10,548) 20,308
(20,196) (54,568)
Adjustments for: RTHZIEFAE
Depreciation of property, W - s Rk
plant and equipment BB E 18(a) 20,253 10,211
Amortisation of prepaid lease EBL IR
payments for land under T Hb A & i
operating leases 19 517 456
Amortisation of intangible assets EEEE 20 10,485 783
Impairment loss on goodwill R EEE 16 - 52,971
Interest income ISV ON 6 (102) (435)
Net losses on disposal of property, HEMHE  #eS K
plant and equipment Bl SRV 7(c) - 63
Gain from changes in fair value of KREMERNTE
investment properties 2Ea 6 - (151)
Net realised and unrealised (gains)/ B 585 BBE MK
losses on trading securities 21 (k=)
BT R F R 6 (475) (1,650)
Impairment loss on trade receivables & URBR FURIE &8 27(e) - 3,131
Write back of impairment loss on FE W AR SR (B B 1R )
trade receivables 27(e) - (1,249)
Write down of inventories MRTE 26(b) - 279
Interest expenses on bank and RITRAEMBERZ
other borrowings FEZH 7(c) 4,417 524
Interest expenses on promissory notes & i, =& 7 F| B & 7(c) 2,159 2,368
Interest expenses on convertible bonds AR ESE 2 F|EZH  7(0) 3,173 —
Other borrowing costs HEMEERA 7(c) - 1,404
Gain on remeasuring existing HEMmMEFTE A #
interest in an available-for-sale HERERA
investment on acquisition M 2 W 39(a) (4,960) —
Gain on the derivative component of A& 5074 315
convertible bonds Z Wz 34 (3,223) —
Foreign exchange gain HNDE Y 2 - (382)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEIRERETR

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 — T —ZF+ - A =+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR TR ARBEFIT
(Restated)
(& E5)
Operating cash flows before RTEEBEESEHAIZ
changes in working capital KREHESRE 12,048 13,755
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, (M) 2,701 (3,074)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and JE L2 AR SR % HL Ath fE UK
other receivables FRIE () R (25,132) 8,140
Increase in value-added tax AT 4 [B13E {8 16 45 AN
recoverable (1,243) (1,298)
Increase in trade and J& 1 BR SR % HL Ath & 15T
other payables FRIELE N 17,444 42,405
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income  IEFEUT A (L) /1 40 (3,234) 5,119
Cash generated from operations KZXBELEZERE 2,584 65,047
Tax paid 218
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EEH 35() (6,982) (1,856)
Net cash (used in)/generated from K& (% (BH) E4
operating activities ZEEFEHE (4,398) 63,191
Investing activities REEH
Payment for purchase of investment B E & & ¥ v 18
properties - (7,179)
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE - #ER
plant and equipment B BIE (32,507) (43,779)
Proceeds from disposal of property,  HEWZE - #23 &
plant and equipment RBETIS IR - 78
Prepaid lease payments for land KEBL AN
under operating leases T & (10,935) (3,537)
Payment for deposits for acquisition ~— YeEEMEE - 22 K&
of property, plant and equipment R R 2 HIEB (8,161) —
Payment for deposits for acquisition ~ BB L FR 4T £+ b
of interests in land under BRE]® 2 KB
operating leases (1,987) (7,164)
Payment for purchase of trading BEEHBH A
securities (81,677) (45,368)
Proceeds from disposal of trading HEESBSMEBRAE
securities 22,619 62,515
Increase in amounts due from FEM B H A 40 1T
securities broker firms SRIBIE AN - (18,985)
Decrease in fixed bank deposits R1TE HATF OB - 7,164
Interest received B U F B 102 435
Net cash outflow from acquisition of ~ WEEKE A 7~
subsidiaries WEmH F5E 39 (7,307) 1,029
Cash outflow from disposal of HENBRRZ
subsidiaries e m 40 (34,513) -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEINERER

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 —E—ZHF+ - A=+—HILtFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARE T ARBTFIT
(Restated)
(&)
Net cash used in investing RETBEHHZ
activities HEHE (104,366) (54,791)
Financing activities & E B
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHRFTBRIE 36,407 49,614
Transaction costs for issue of BTl 2
new shares R B (474) (4,201)
Transaction costs for issue of BITAIMRES 2
convertible bonds R Z A (528) -
Proceeds from new bank and g ERTT R E A A K
other borrowings Z TS 5IR 6,000 12,000
Interest paid on bank and RITREMER
other borrowings ZBERFE (4,417) (524)
Other borrowing costs paid HEa B HEERKA - (1,404)
Net cash from financing activities BEFBEEE2BE S FEHE 36,988 55,485
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRBAEEEY
and cash equivalents (R /EinFEEE (71,776) 63,885
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—HzZEREK
at 1 January REe&ZEY 29 96,292 32,215
Effect of change in foreign EXEgFH s L8
exchange rate changes (949) 192
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=-—A=+—HZ
31 December HERREEEY 29 23,567 96,292

The notes on pages 59 to 234 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 5 4R 3R Pid 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 — T —ZF+ - A =+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Leason Investment Group Co., Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in the Cayman Islands on 15 July 2002 under the Companies
Act, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section in the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacture and
sales of liquefied coalbed gas (including provision of liquefied
coalbed gas logistics services), sales of piped natural gas and
provision of gas supply connection services. During the year
ended 31 December 2010, the Group discontinued the
development and sales of computer software, resale of
computer hardware and provision of system integration and
maintenance services.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Group”) is set out
below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 75 4R 3R P 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

2. EESBE &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

a)

h)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
which are or have become effective. It has also issued
certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements and going concern concept

i)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010 comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis,
except those disclosed otherwise in the accounting
policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 5 4R 3R Pid 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 5l E =%

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements and going concern concept
(Continued)

i)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have a significant effect
on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the next year
are discussed in note 4.

Going concern concept

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately RMB20,493,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2010 and, as of that
date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately RMB99,465,000.
Nevertheless, the directors had adopted the going
concern basis in the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group based on the followings:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

2. EESBE &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b) Basis of

preparation of the financial

statements and going concern concept
(Continued)

ii) Going concern concept (Continued)

1)

Other borrowings comprising of
RMB10,000,000 and RMB40,000,000
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements
were due for repayment on 7 January 2011
and 27 February 2011 respectively in
accordance with the loan agreements signed
between the Group and a finance company, a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
(note 47). However, prior to the approval of
these financial statements, these borrowings
had been rolled over for a further 18 months
and will be due for repayment on 7 July 2012
and 27 August 2012 respectively. Up to the
date of approval of these financial statements,
the finance company has not indicated its
intention to withdraw the facilities granted to
the Group;

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng, a substantial
shareholder and the chairman and executive
director of the Company, has undertaken not
to demand for the repayment of the amount
due to him totalling to approximately
RMB27,266,000 as at 31 December 2010 until
the Group is financially viable to do so;

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & — T —ZFE+ - A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements and going concern concept
(Continued)

i)

Going concern concept (Continued)

3)  Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng has agreed to provide
adequate financial support to the Group to
enable it to meet in full all its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future;

4)  As detailed in note 48(b) subsequent to the
end of the reporting period, the Group
successfully made a placing of its new shares
for net proceeds of approximately
HK$71,331,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB60,034,000); and

5)  The Group is expected to derive stable cash
inflows from its operating activities for the year
31 December 2011.

In light of the above, the directors are confident that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and meet its obligations in the
next twelve months from the date of approval of
these financial statements. Accordingly, the directors
consider that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements of the Group on a going concern basis.
The financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the carrying amount and
reclassification of assets and liabilities that might be
necessary should the Group be unable to continue
as a going concern.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that are presently exercisable are taken into
account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 5l E =%

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Prior to 1 January 2010, losses
applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess of
the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity were
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the
extent that the non-controlling interests had a binding
obligation and were able to make an additional investment
to cover the losses. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries on or after 1 January 2010

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries on or after 1 January 2010 (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2070

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were treated
in the same manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries,
with goodwill or a bargain purchase gain being recognised
where appropriate. For decreases in interests in
subsidiaries, regardless of whether the disposals would
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries,
the difference between the consideration received and
the adjustment to the non-controlling interests was
recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(K)(ii), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d)

Business combinations and Goodwill

i)

Business combinations
Business combinations on or after 1 January 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for the
control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their acquisition-date fair values, except that:

— deferred tax asset or liability arising from the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
business combination and the potential tax
effects of temporary differences and carry
forwards of an acquiree that existed at the
acquisition date or arise as a result of the
acquisition are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12, Income Tax;

— liabilities or assets relating to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits;

— liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree
or the replacement of an acquiree’s share-
based payment transactions with share-based
payment transactions of the Group are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 75 4R 3R P 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d) Business comhinations and Goodwill
(Continued)

i)  Business combinations (Continued)
Business combinations on or after 1 January 2010
(Continued)

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 5 4R 3R Pid 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &%= — &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d)

Business combinations and Goodwill
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations on or after 1 January 2010
(Continued)

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
being made against goodwill or gain on bargain
purchase. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date. Measurement period does not exceed one year
from the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 75 4R 3R P 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

2. EESBE &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d) Business comhinations and Goodwill
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations on or after 1 January 2010
(Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity before the acquisition
date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group
obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed as of
the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 5 4R 3R Pid 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 B2 — T —ZFF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d) Business comhinations and Goodwill
(Continued)

i)

Business combinations (Continued)
Business combinations prior to 1 January 2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition
was measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at
the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree,
plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that met the
relevant conditions for recognition were generally
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as
an asset and initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the recognised amounts of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
If, after assessment, the Group’s interest in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeded
the cost of the acquisition, the excess was
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree was
initially measured at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree.

Contingent consideration was recognised, if and only
if, the contingent consideration was probable and
could be measured reliably. Subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration were recognised against
the cost of the acquisition.

Business combinations achieved in stages were
accounted for as separate steps. Goodwill was
determined at each step. Any additional acquisition
did not affect the previously recognised goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d) Business comhinations and Goodwill
(Continued)

i)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. For the purposes of equipment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the cash-generating unit, or
groups of cash generating units, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 5 4R 3R Pid 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 5l E =%

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d)

e)

Business combinations and Goodwill
(Continued)

ii)  Goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill represents the excess of (Continued)

On the disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries
are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless fair value
can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques
whose variables include only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs,
except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as
current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any dividends or interest earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out in note 2(u)(vi) and (vii).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a listed
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(K)(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 75 4R 3R P 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

2. EESBE &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

e)

f)

Other investments in equity securities
(Continued)

Other investments in securities are classified as available-
for-sale equity securities and are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in equity.
Dividend income from these investments is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note
2(u)(vi) and, where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy
set out in note 2(u)(vii). When these investments are
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

For an investment in equity instruments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market, or derivatives
linked to such equity instruments, it is measured at cost
less impairment (because its fair value cannot be
measured reliably).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 B2 — T —ZFF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

g)

h)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as an investment

property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of
financial position at fair value, unless they are still in the
course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 2(u)(viii).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement
of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 2(k(ii):

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments for land under operating leases” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 75 4R 3R P 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 i Z — T —ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

2. EESBE &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases
of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Over the shorter of
unexpired term of the
leases or 30 years

— Buildings held for own use

— Leasehold improvements 2 - 5 years
— Pipelines 5 - 20 years
— Plant and machinery 3 -10 years
— Computer equipment 3 -5 years
— Furniture and equipment 3-10 years
— Transportation and 4 -10 years

motor vehicles
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &%= — &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net proceeds disposal on
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation
and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Cost includes the costs of construction of the
buildings, the costs of plant and machinery and interest
charges arising from borrowings used to finance these
assets during the period of construction or installation
and testing. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction in progress until such time the relevant assets
are completed and are available for their intended use.
When the assets concerned are brought into use, the
costs are transferred to other property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy
as stated above.
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2. EESBE &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(K)(ii)).
Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see note 2(K)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

— Exclusive right for piped 45 years
natural gas operation

— Operation license for liquefied 5 years
coalbed gas logistics

— Computer software 5 years

development costs

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 5 4R 3R Pid 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 B2 — T —ZFF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

j)

Lease assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

i)

i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are written off as an expense in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term, except where the property
is classified as an investment property (see note 2(g)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

k) Impairment of assets

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 December 2010 &= —

2. ¥EE

HA 75 4R 3R P 5

T-FF A=t —ALFE

BHE 2

k) EERE

i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and i)

other receivables

Investments in equity securitie
investments in subsidiaries: see 2(
current and non-current receivables

s (other than
k)(ii)) and other
that are stated

at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there

is objective evidence of impairm
evidence of impairment includes o
that comes to the attention of the G

ent. Objective
bservable data
roup about one

or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of

the debtors;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the

debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument

below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & — T —ZFE+ - A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For unlisted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & £ —

2. ¥ES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

For available-for-sale equity securities which
are stated at fair value, when a decline in the
fair value has been recognised directly in equity
and there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been
recognised directly in equity shall be removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss
even though the financial asset has not been
derecognised. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & — T —ZFE+ - A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continves) 2. EBEETBE @

k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
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2. EESBE &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives,
the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of a cash-
generating unit are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying amount
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

2. EESBE &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses (Continued)

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (see notes 2(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unlisted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the
fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increase in the remainder of the annual period, or in
any other period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 B2 — T —ZFF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

m)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the write down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment loss (see note 2(k)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment loss (see note 2(k)(i)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

n)

Convertible honds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
liability, conversion option and redemption option
components are classified separately into liability
component, equity component and derivative component
consisting of the redemption option of the Company
respectively. A derivative embedded in a non-derivative
host contract its treated as a separate derivative when its
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those
of the host contract. On initial recognition, the fair value
of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible bonds.
The derivative component is carried at fair value on the
statement of financial position with any changes in fair
value being charged or credited to profit or loss in the
period in which the change occurs. The difference
between the proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair values of the liability component and
derivative component related to the redemption option of
the Company is included in equity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component
of the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The difference between the
interest so calculated and the interest paid is added to
the carrying amount of the liability component. The
derivative is remeasured to fair value through profit or loss
at subsequent reporting dates. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, remains
in convertible bonds reserve until the embedded option
is exercised (at which time the convertible bonds equity
component will be transferred to share capital and share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance remaining in convertible bonds
reserve is released to retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the option.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

n)

0)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability component and equity
component of the convertible bonds in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability component and amortised over the period of
the convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
The portion relating to the embedded derivative is charged
directly to profit to loss. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to convertible
bonds reserve.

If the convertible bonds are redeemed by the Company
before maturity, the Company will allocate the
consideration paid and any transaction costs for the
repurchase or redemption to the liability and equity
components of the instrument at the date of the
transaction. The method used in allocating the
consideration paid and transaction costs to the separate
components is consistent with that used in the original
allocation to the separate components of the proceeds
received by the Company when the convertible instrument
was issued. Once the consideration is allocated, any
resulting gain or loss relating to the liability component is
recognised in profit or loss and the amount of
consideration relating to the equity component is
recognised in equity.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit and loss over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 75 4R 3R P 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

2. EESBE &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

p)

q)

r

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

Employee benefits

i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
contributions to defined contribution plans are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

i)  Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance and mandatory central
pension schemes organised by the local government
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
government are recognised as an expense in income
statement as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 5 4R 3R Pid 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 B2 — T —ZFF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Employee henefits (Continued)

i)

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the total
estimated fair value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year under review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of share options that vests (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the share option reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to the retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 —E—ZHF+ - A=+—HILtFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

s)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided that
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the
tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &%= — &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

s)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

—EET A=t HLEFE

2. ¥EE

s)

FHBE ()
FiE#H @

BRRENIBEEENAEZHIIN
BB IR BE A RR B T HIRL B 2
PEL 2 GRS Z5 - VP HERER
THESF N AFERRTOEH
(MEZBIEE MR B ) 2 BE
BE - RABRRHMERRIREM
3R B S AR M el L FE SR A
EZREmME $$l7$ﬁ%@z
RKE - BZBERAETIERAR
%X%@XﬁﬁTﬂﬂ%%%%
Sh - BRIEBRRAIREE M o

PR 2 RIETH A& 58 TR A 5
EEMBERABE - ZFHNEE
R UREBREEHKER
EEBIMETE - BERIBE
E;BETSHIE -

EETIAE EREENSREH
REZ @ WA T BA T HER
iy M A B FFE R B BRI A
@ BIEETTHR - WAl BE A
RACRBOEH - ZFHRKE
Bm -

R B Bk 2 FEINT 1S T 0O BE
n/u\i'ﬁ'ﬁﬁijﬁy\ SN ,\EEH‘I?'L/(@

_ﬂ
at ©

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 i Z — T —ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

2. EESBE &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

s)

t)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 5l E =%

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

t)

u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

i) Sales of computer software and hardware
Revenue is recognised when the Group has
transferred to the customer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods. Revenue
excludes value-added and business taxes, and is
after deduction of any goods returns and trade
discounts.

ii) Income from provision of maintenance and other
services
Revenue from maintenance and other services is
recognised at the time when the service is
performed.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

2. EESBE &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

Sales of liquefied coalbed gas and piped natural gas
Revenue from sales of liquefied coalbed gas and
piped natural gas are recognised when the gas is
delivered and title has passed. Revenue excludes
value-added and business taxes, and is after
deduction of any goods returns and trade discounts.

Income from provision of gas supply connection
services

Revenue from provision of gas supply connection
services is recognised when the relevant
construction work is completed and connection
services are rendered.

Income from provision of liquefied coalbed gas
logistics services

Revenue from provision of logistics services is
recognised when services are rendered.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive
payment are established.

Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investments
goes ex-dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & — T —ZFE+ - A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

u)

)]

Revenue recognition (Continued)

viii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net less payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

ix) Value-added tax refund
Value-added tax refund is recognised when the
acknowledgement of refund from the PRC Tax
Bureau has been received.

X)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over
the periods necessary to match them with the costs
for which they are intended to compensate, on a
systematic basis. Government grants that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to “encouraged hi-tech
enterprise” with no future related costs are
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which
they became receivable.

Deferred income

Warranty income is received in advance for the whole
period under warranty and is recognised in the statement
of financial position initially as deferred income. They are
subsequently recognised to profit or loss when the
warranty period expires.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 —E—ZHF+ - A=+—HILtFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

w) Translation of foreign currencies

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”).
The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars and the presentation currency is RMB. The reason
for using RMB as a presentation currency is that the
functional currency of the principal entities within the
Group is RMB.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into RMB
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1
January 2005, are translated into RMB at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve. Goodwill
arising on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired
before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of
the foreign operation.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 B2 — T —ZFF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

w) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

X)

From 1 January 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a foreign
operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or completed.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 i Z — T —ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

y)

z)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the income statement,
which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operations; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

i)  the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

i)  the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 B2 — T —ZFF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

z)

aa)

Related parties (Continued)

iv)  the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals;

v)  the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in note 2(z)(i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 # &

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has, where applicable, applied
the following amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”)
issued by the HKICPA which are or have become effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Revised 2008)
HKAS 32 (Amendments)
HKAS 39 (Amendments)
HKFRS 1 (Amendments)
HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Revised 2008)

HKFRS 5 (Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) —

Int 17

HK — Int 5

Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part
of Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2008

Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2009

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
Classification of Rights Issues

Eligible Hedged Items
First-time Adoption of HKFRSs

Additional Exemption for First-time
adoption

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

Business Combination

Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations

Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The amendment to HKAS 39 and the issuance of HK — Int 5
have had no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as the amendment and the Interpretation’s
conclusions were consistent with policies already adopted by
the Group. The other developments resulted in changes in
accounting policy but none of these changes in policy have a
material impact on the current or comparative periods, for the
following reasons:

The impact of the majority of the revisions to HKAS 27,
HKAS 32, HKFRS 1, HKFRS 2, HKFRS 5 and HK(IFRIC)
— Int 17 have not yet had a material effect on the Group’s
financial statements as these changes will first be effective
as and when the Group enters into a relevant transaction
and there is no requirement to restate the amounts
recorded in respect of previous similar transactions.

The impact of the amendments to HKFRS 3 (in respect of
recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets) and HKAS
27 (in respect of allocation of losses to non-controlling
interests (previously known as “minority interests”) in
excess of their equity interest) have had no material impact
as there is no requirement to restate amounts recorded
in previous periods and no such deferred tax assets or
losses arose in the current period.

The amendment introduced by the Improvements to
HKFRSs (2009) omnibus standard in respected of HKAS
17, Leases, resulted in a change of classification of certain
of the Group’s leasehold land interests located in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, but this had no
material impact on the amounts recognised in respect of
these leases as the lease premiums in respect of all such
leases are fully paid and are being amortised over the
remaining length of the lease term.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), any
business combination occurred on or after 1 January 2010 will
be recognised in accordance with the requirements under
HKFRS 3 (revised). Its application has affected the accounting
for business combinations in the current year.

—  HKFRS 3 (revised 2008) allows a choice on a transaction-
by-transaction basis for the measurement of non-
controlling interests at the date of acquisition either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ share of
recognised identifiable net assets of the acquiree.
Consequently, the goodwill recognised in respect of the
acquisition reflects the impact of the difference between
the fair value of the non-controlling interests and their
share of the recognised amount of the identifiable net
assets of the acquiree.

— HKFRS 3 (revised 2008) changes the recognition and
subsequent accounting requirements for contingent
consideration. Previously, contingent consideration was
recognised at the acquisition date only if payment of the
contingent consideration was probable and it could be
measured reliably; any subsequent adjustments to the
contingent consideration were always made against the
cost of the acquisition. Under the revised Standard,
contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent adjustments, if any, to the
consideration are recognised against the cost of the
acquisition only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the date of acquisition. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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3.

—EET A=t HLEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

— HKFRS 3 (revised 2008) requires the recognition of a
settlement gain or loss when the business combination
in effect settles a pre-existing relationship between the
Group and the acquiree.

— HKFRS 3 (revised 2008) requires acquisition-related costs
to be accounted for separately from the business
combination, with those costs being recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred. Previously, they were
accounted for as part of the cost of the acquisition.

— HKFRS 3 (revised 2008) requires that if the Group holds
interests in the acquiree immediately prior to obtaining
control, these interests will be treated as if disposal of
and re-acquired at fair value on the date of obtaining
control. Previously, the step-up approach would have
been applied, whereby goodwill was computed as if
accumulated at each stage of the acquisition.

HKFRS 3 (revised 2008) requires that where the acquiree has
accumulated tax losses or other temporary deductible
differences and these fail to meet the recognition criteria for
deferred tax assets at the date of acquisition, any subsequent
recognition of these assets will be recognised in profit or loss,
rather than as an adjustment to goodwill as was previously the

policy.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 3
(revised 2008), these new accounting policies will be applied
prospectively to any business combinations in the current or
future periods. The new policy in respect of recognition in the
movement of deferred tax assets will also be applied
prospectively to accumulated tax losses and other temporary
deductible differences acquired in previous business
combinations. No adjustments have been made to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded the application
of this revised standard.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. ERMREEICEEM
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS GHREERN ((HEEMEE
(“HKFRSS") (continued) HH#H0]|) »

In the current year, the above changes in policies have affected RAFE  ElBREHE L E2KE
the accounting for the acquisition of 100% equity interest in BEREERAAILEWMBAR (I8
Million Ideas Investment Limited and its subsidiaries (“Million E&EEH]) (RRUABEEEREER
Ideas Group”) (including 100% equity interest of Shanxi Wanzhi NAEZ100% MR At K 1L PR B YR
Business Services Limited and 75% equity interest of Shanxi ERARZ75%B AR ([BE
Wanzhi Logistics Limited (“Wanzhi Logistics”), as follows: i) 100% R A #Em 2 @5 EIE - 5F
BT :
Consolidated statement of financial position: RE AR
As at
31 December 2010
R-E—-FF
+=—A=+—8
RMB’000
ARBTFR
Gain on remeasuring existing interest E IS mERTEAIHEE
in an available-for-sale investment on AR AR 2 W=
acquisition (reflected in profit or loss) (MiEmR ) 4,960
Acquisition-related costs expensed when B AR 288 2 W BB B R R N
incurred (reflected in profit or loss) (RiEm ) (756)
Additional goodwill recognised as KRB B %R EER|E 35
result of the application of HKFRS 3 (ZZEZNFEE])
(revised 2008) MmiER BN B 4,204

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

3.

BERAREESTICEEM
HHREEN((FEEBMEE
HH#H0]|) »

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income: meEEZEREE
Year ended
31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF
TZA=+—HBLHFE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Gain on remeasuring existing interest AR EMEFFEAHEE
in an available-for-sale investment WEBE AR 2 W=
on acquisition (RiBzm )
(reflected in profit or loss) (4,960)
Acquisition-related costs expensed REEXRSHEZ
when incurred G VEL DN
(included in administrative expenses) GIAFTBAR) 756
Decrease in loss for the year E A BB %S 4R
as a result of the application of F3% (ZTTN\FBE]
HKFRS 3 (revised 2008) REZBHERBD (4,204)

Results in future periods may be affected by future impairment
losses relating to the increased goodwill.

BRAFTIR IR B 2 R AR E R 1R Al A
TERKHMZEE -
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

— As a result of the adoption of HKAS 27 (revised 2008),
the following changes in policies will be applied as from 1
January 2010:

— Ifthe Group acquires an additional interest in a non-
wholly owned subsidiary, the transaction will be
accounted for as a transaction with owners (the non-
controlling interests) in their capacity as owners and
therefore no goodwill will be recognised as a result
of such transactions. Similarly, if the Group disposes
of part of its interest in a subsidiary but still retains
control, this transaction will also be accounted for
as a transaction with owners (the non-controlling
interests) in their capacity as owners and therefore
no profit or loss will be recognised as a result of
such transactions. Previously the Group treated such
transactions as step-up transactions and partial
disposals, respectively.

— If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
transaction will be accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that subsidiary, with any
remaining interest retained by the Group being
recognised at fair value as if reacquired. In addition,
as a result of the adoption of the amendment to
HKFRS 5, if at the end of the reporting period the
Group has the intention to dispose of a controlling
interest in a subsidiary, the entire interest in that
subsidiary will be classified as held for sale (assuming
that the held for sale criteria in HKFRS 5 are met)
irrespective of the extent to which the Group will
retain an interest. Previously such transactions were
treated as partial disposals.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS
27, these new accounting policies will be applied
prospectively to transactions in current or future periods
and therefore previous periods have not been restated.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 27 (revised 2008),
the following changes in policies will be applied as from 1
January 2010: (Continued)

Other changes in accounting policies which are relevant
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

As a result of the revisions to HKAS 27, as from 1
January 2010 any losses incurred by a non-wholly
owned subsidiary will be allocated between the
controlling and non-controlling interests in proportion
to their interests in that entity, even if this results in a
deficit balance within consolidated equity being
attributed to the non-controlling interests. Previously,
if the allocation of losses to the non-controlling
interests would have resulted in a deficit balance,
the losses were only allocated to the non-controlling
interests if the non-controlling interests were under
a binding obligation to make good the losses. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS
27, this new accounting policy is being applied
prospectively and therefore previous periods have
not been restated.

As a result of the amendment to HKAS 17, Leases,
arising from the “Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)”
omnibus standard, the Group has re-evaluated the
classification of its interests in leasehold land as to
whether, in the Group’s judgement, the lease
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the land such that the Group is in a
position economically similar to that of a purchaser.
The Group has concluded that the classification of
such leases as operating leases continues to be
appropriate.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSS"”) (continued)

Except for HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), the application of the new
HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results and financial
position for the current or prior accounting periods have been
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment

is required.

The Group has not early applied any of the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations which have
been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)
HKFRS 9
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19

Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010

Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets?

Related Party Disclosures ®

Classification of Rights Issues*

Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters®

Disclosure — Transfers of Financial
Assets®

Financial Instruments”

Prepayments of a Minimum

Funding Requirements®

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments®

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
except for the amendments to HKFRS 3, HKAS 21, HKAS 28 and
HKAS 31, which is effective for annual periods, beginning on or
after 1 July 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new and revised standards, amendments
or interpretation is expected to be in the period of initia
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in note 2, management has made
certain key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimated uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, as discussed below.

Estimation of the fair value of investment properties
and impairment of buildings held for own use
Investment properties and buildings held for own use
were revalued and assessed for impairment
respectively at the end of the reporting period with
reference to observable prices in recent market
transactions in comparable properties on arms’
length terms by independent qualified valuers. Such
valuation was based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the judgement,
the Group considers information readily available and
market conditions at the end of each reporting
period. As at 31 December 2010, the carrying
amounts of investment properties and buildings held
for own use were approximately RMBNil (2009:
RMB7,330,000) and RMB75,762,000 (2009:
RMB55,260,000) respectively.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & — T —ZFE+ - A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

i)

iii)

Estimation of impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 December 2010, the carrying amount of
goodwill was approximately RMB133,308,000
(2009: RMB23,831,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 16.

Estimation of impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there
has been impairment of intangible assets in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
2(K)(ii). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units are determined based on value in use
calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and assumptions made by management
on the future operation of the business, pre-tax
discount rates, and other assumptions underlying
the value in use calculations. As at 31 December
2010, the carrying amount of intangible assets was
approximately RMB156,502,000 (2009:
RMB69,687,000).
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

iv)

v)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives
and residual values for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(h). The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different from previous estimates, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
As at 31 December 2010, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment was approximately
RMB295,428,000 (2009: RMB252,932,000).

Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 2(i). The
determination of the useful lives involves
management’s estimation. The Group re-assesses
the useful life of the intangible assets and, if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such
a difference may impact the amortisation in the year
and the estimate will be changed in the future period.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Vi)

vii)

Estimation of impairment of trade and other
receivables

The policy for recognising impairment on receivables
of the Group is based on an evaluation of the
collectibility and ageing analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each debtor. If the financial conditions of debtors of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional impairment may be required. As at 31
December 2010, the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables was approximately
RMB17,584,000 (2009: RMB31,681,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined
on the basis of the estimated selling price less the
estimated cost necessary to make the sale. The
directors estimated the net realisable value for
inventories based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. As at 31
December 2010, the carrying amount of inventories
was approximately RMB2,062,000 (2009:
RMB4,976,000).
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

viii) Measurement of convertible bonds

ix)

On the issue of convertible bonds, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this
amount is carried as a long-term liability on the
amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The difference between
the proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds
and the fair values of liability and derivative
component (note 4(a)(ix)) is recognised and included
in the convertible bonds reserve, net of transaction
costs. The splitting of the liability, derivative and
equity components requires and estimation of the
market interest rate and using valuating techniques
(note 4(a)(ix)).

Fair value of derivatives and other financial
instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuating techniques. The Group estimates the fair
value of financial derivatives based on financial
modeling which requires various sources of
information an assumptions. The carrying amount
of derivative components of convertible bonds as
at 31 December 2010 was RMB6,621,000 (2009:
RMBNIl). Further details are given in note 34 to these
financial statements.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & — T —ZFE+ - A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

In determining the carrying amounts of some assets and
liabilities, the Group makes assumptions for the effects
of uncertain future events on those assets and liabilities
at the end of the reporting period. These estimates involve
assumptions about such items as cash flows and discount
rates used. The Group’s estimates and assumptions are
based on historical experience and expectations of future
events and are reviewed periodically. In addition to
assumptions and estimations of future events, judgements
are also made during the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

i)  Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in Hong Kong
and various taxes in PRC. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for taxation.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
payable. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

b) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies (Continued)

i)

Income taxes and deferred taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and certain tax losses are recognised
as management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred tax assets and tax in the periods in which
such estimate is changed. In this regard, the Group
has recognsied deferred tax assets in the amount
of approximately RMB302,000 (2009:
RMB1,427,000) as at 31 December 2010.

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue
for withholding taxes arising from the distributions
of dividends from certain subsidiaries according to
the relevant tax jurisdictions is subject to judgement
on the timing of the payment of the dividends. The
Group considered that if the profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future, then no
withholding taxes should be provided.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 H & — &

5.

—EET A=t HLEFE

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
sales of liquefied coalbed gas (including provision of liquefied
coalbed gas logistics services), sales of piped natural gas and
provision of gas supply connection services. The Group
discontinued the development and sales of computer software,
resale of computer hardware and provision of system integration
and maintenance services in the PRC, after disposal of these
operations during the year as set out in note 11.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied and
services provided to customers, which excludes value-added
and business taxes, and is after deduction of any goods returns
and trade discounts. The amount of each significant category
of revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

BRE

AEBZI2RBRREEERLEE
K E (BREE MR ERYR R
%) BERARHEREHHAEK
R - RFRABELNF B2 B
HHRELEE  BREGEENALIE
HERERLBERBR  AREK
IFREZERE MM EI1m
& o

EERERNTFPREHEER MRS ZH
EE - ETREEERREER - I
RN AR E REETNEIIR
FRRE %%Eﬁﬁ%wleﬁﬁﬂéz/\*é
AlEEHT -

2010 2009
—E-BF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
(Restated)
=27l
Continuing operations FERE X
Sales of liquefied coalbed gas BRI EREES
(including provision of liquefied (BERERL
coalbed gas logistics services) BB R R) 212,569 34,611
Sales of piped natural gas and EBRAREER
provision of gas supply HRE B RS
connection services 18,420 5,445
230,989 40,056
Discontinued operations (note 11) E& L& 25 (KfaE11)
Sales of computer software B4 EE 40 29,208
Resale of computer hardware BIE M EE 996 11,161
Maintenance and other services fees  #E & & H fth iR % U & 4,990 11,609
6,026 51,978
237,015 92,034
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6. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 6. Rty RBUIA

2010 2009
—ZE-Z5F —ZTENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBETT
(Restated)
(&8 &E5)
Continuing operations BEKEER
Interest income from bank RITIFHF B2 WA
deposits (note (a)) (M 5% (a) 40 316
Others HAb 98 46
138 362
Discontinued operations (note 11) B 1IL&& 2K (KfaE11)
Value-added tax refund EEM RN 401 6,584
Net realised and unrealised gains BoBEEERR
on trading securities REIR W 55 475 1,650
Interest income from bank RITHFE A EHA
deposits (note (a)) (M 5% (a) 62 119
Government grants received (note (b)) = YBT3 8L (M 5E (b)) - 346
Write back of impairment loss on FE YRR SR B B 1R [
trade receivables - 1,249
Gain from change in fair value of KEMERANFEEZESH KA
investment properties (note 17) (Fg5E17) - 151
Rental income from investment KEMERES WA
properties 214 185
1,152 10,284
1,290 10,646
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 — T —ZF+ - A =+—HILFE

6. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME (continued) 6. HtHlr@ RBUA @)

Note:

a)

7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

B 7
Interest income from bank deposits represented the total interest a)  RITFRZF B AR FEIR A FEET
income on financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss. ARz emEEZFERAEE -
These government grants are unconditional government subsidies b)  AEEBEMRBEEATEFT AT UER 2 BUSE

received by the Group from relevant government authorities for the
purpose of giving financial support to “encouraged hi-tech

enterprise”.

BRREGH BN EE - ZEBUNERE
ERIEMBREEREM B -

7. HIRFBRAZ (BIR)
i ¥

(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at after charging: HBRFATEEATZ (B18) /a2 0k A
THIE :
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTF T
(Restated)
(E5)
a) Staff costs (including directors’ a) EBIRAK(BIFE
emoluments in note 9) Moz EE <)
Continuing operations BEEEEK
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITENRHEMER 7,835 9,812

Retirement benefit scheme

RRIE IR B4 3

contributions 902 451
8,737 10,263
Discontinued operations BARIEREER

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 11,456 16,220

Retirement benefit scheme ROKIEFET B 3K
contributions 848 2,252
12,304 18,472
Total staff costs 8 TR A 21,041 28,735
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 —E—ZHF+ - A=+—HILtFE

7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (Continues) 7. ¥IBRFRSMRETZ (B518)

BR¥ @)
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREEF T
(Restated)
C=70))
b) Other items b) HfhEH
Continuing operations BEREEK
Cost of inventories (note 26(b)) FE 2 A (i 5E26(0) 205,256 37,010
Auditor’s remuneration % ELRD BN 5
— audit services — ZER 693 486
— other services — Hith AR %5 660 358
1,353 844
Depreciation of property, W - s R
plant and equipment R E 19,659 8,262
Amortisation of prepaid lease KERL AN
payments for land under 4 i 1 & 8
operating leases 453 318
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEBE 10,485 783
Net losses on disposal of property, HEME - SR
plant and equipment RIEEEFERE - 19
Operating lease charges in THREF
respect of land and buildings KEROBR 1,374 1,032
Discontinued operations [EF - JF <3
Cost of inventories (note 26(b)) FE 2 A (i 7E26(0) 7,427 20,591
Depreciation of property, /ES T 39N
plant and equipment R E 594 1,949
Amortisation of prepaid lease LEMBLTIEN
payments for land under T b & #EE
operating leases 64 138
Net losses on disposal of property, HEMHE  #eS R
plant and equipment RIBEEEFE - 44
Impairment loss on trade receivables JE W BR OB (B &5 18 - 3,131
Operating lease charges in T REFZ
respect of land and buildings LEFRL BB 156 294

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 — T —ZF+ - A =+—HILFE

7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (continued) 7. HIBRFREMAIZ (E518) /
’¥ @)
2010 2009
—E-BF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
(Restated)
(& &%)
c) Finance costs c) ®ERK
Continuing operations BESEEK
Interest expenses on bank ARAFAZEEE
advances and other borrowings ZIRITRRREAM
wholly repayable within five years BEZHERX 4,349 3,796
Interest expenses on promissory EEEER 2R BRX
notes (note 33) (P$5E33) 2,159 2,368
Interest expenses on convertible AR ES 2
bonds (note 34) Bz (FH5E34) 3,173 —
Other borrowing costs HMEERAR - 1,404
9,681 7,568
Less: Amount capitalised into B BN ERTR
construction in progress THEZ&5E
(note 18(a)(iii)) (B 3% 18(a)(iii)) - (3,308)
9,681 4,260
Discontinued operations BRI R T
(note 11) (FFz£11)
Interest expenses on bank ARAFAEZHEE
advances wholly repayable ZIRITRE
within five years ZHMERX 68 36
Total interest expense on financial WIEE R FEFTA
liabilities not at fair value through BasemBE
profit or loss ZH BB 9,749 4,296
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 i Z — T —ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 8.
STATEMENT

FERRRZMER

a) Continuing operations a) FHEEEER
) Income tax in the consolidated income statement ) EREBmRIZFTENIE
represents:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBETT
(Restated)
(& &E5)
Current tax — PRC BUHA B 1E — R
Enterprise Income Tax TEFREH
(“EIT”) (T prEBHtl)
Provision for the year NEE A 3,481 =
Deferred taxation IFE B 18
Origination and reversal of ERERELER
temporary differences Bl (2,610) (251)
Income tax charge/(credit) BB,/ (%) 871 (251)
Note: FIEE -

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Company
SPEH o

Law of the Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is exempted
from payment of the Cayman Islands income tax.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the two years ended 31 December 2010
and 2009. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made as the Group has no estimated assessable profits for
the two years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.

B -
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & — T —ZFE+ - A=+—HIFE

8.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (Continued)

a) Continuing operations (Continued)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents: (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 towards.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group from continuing
operations, Shanxi Yangcheng Shuntai Energy Development
Company Limited (“Shanxi Yangcheng”) and Shanxi Qinshui
Shuntai Energy Development Company Limited (“Shanxi
Qinshui”), are entitled to the exemptions from the EIT for two
years starting from 2008, followed by a 50% tax relief for the
next three years. Shanxi Yangcheng has no estimated
assessable profit for the two years ended 31 December 2010
and 2009 whereas Shanxi Qinshui has no estimated
assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 and
is taxable at the preferential tax rate of 12.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

8.

waiR

SBRZMER »

a) HEEEER @

RABRRZIMBNE -
(%)

MiEE (D)

RIEPEARLMBEBERBEM
BEmER ((REMBHED R
EERETOERMIEG - & B
BRAEB-ZZNF-—F—HE
IR f525% °

AEBMBELGERENBRR
ILFaRG kB R BE IR R AR A A
(ML7aRE ] ) R L P K IEZR B
RERBR AR ([LFENK]) B
ZET ) \FRERRBNDERR
BRMME @ HE=FRIEDEMR
BREEESR - ILFEBHRREE
CE-EER-_EENFE+_A
=+ —BIEMEFELEGTE
RECEF - WFLKREBEZT
ThET-_A=Z+—HLEEYT
MAGHERTURS - MABEZ
E-TF+_A=+—HILFE
AlliR12.5% 2 BETENT

FEBERREEEERAD A
—E-TFFR
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 —E—ZHF+ - A=+—HILtFE

8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 8. GEBEEFRZHRER
STATEMENT (continueq)

a) Continuing operations (Continued) a) BHEREER »

i) Reconciliation between income tax charge/(credit) iy IREAMEHEZMEHS
and accounting loss at applicable tax rates is as () BErtEE ¥
follows: R -

2010 2009

—z-%5 | —zzan

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARKEF T

(Restated)

€= 7l))

Loss before income tax R FTS TR B 18 (9,648) (74,876)

Notional tax on loss before ¥R ATTE Al )& #E [= 48 3 B =K
income tax, calculated at STE 2 MR TS EL A
the rates applicable to the  BERAEFIAE

jurisdictions concerned (3,762) (13,044)
Tax effect of non-deductible AR 2 RIEFE

expenses 2,789 9,807
Tax effect of non-taxable BEFRHRE REFE

income (1,140) (367)
Tax effect of tax losses not ~ NAIFIFE R IAE B 2

allowed for tax deduction MG 2 1,455 1,510
Tax effect of unused tax RER M AREARIBEEE

losses not recognised kiR 1,529 1,843
Income tax charge/(credit)  FTEFiZH (%) 871 (251)

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 B2 — T —ZFF+_A=+—HILFE

8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 8.

STATEMENT (Continued)

b) Discontinued operations

RESEERZHER »

) Income tax in the consolidated income statement ) EEERRZAENIE
represents:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBETT
(Restated)
(& &E5)
Current tax — PRC EIT BIHABLIH —
ERBH
Provision for the year REZRE 66 4,535
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREBENR 924 236
990 4,771
Deferred taxation IEER IR
Origination and reversal of EREREER
temporary differences £ [El 409 (258)
Income tax charge Fr{S % 2 i 1,399 4,513
Note: PFEE -

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group from discontinued

operations, Fujian Shine Science & Technology Co., Ltd.

(“Fujian Shine”) and Shanghai Shine Science & Technology

Co., Limited (“Shanghai Shine”), as “encouraged hi-tech

enterprises” will continue to be entitled to a reduced EIT rate

of 15%.

AEBDRIEZEZHEMER
AREFEMRAERAR ([BE
MED R EBMBHERARA
A(TLEMBEDIERISHRIR
¥ BEEZTE15%MRR
EEMREHE -

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 —E—ZHF+ - A=+—HILtFE

8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 8. FSIREFZER @

STATEMENT (continueq)

b) Discontinued operations (Continued) h) BERIEEZERE »

i) Reconciliation between income tax charge/(credit) iy IREAMEHEZMEHS
and accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates () BErtEE ¥
is as follows: R -

2010 2009
—z-%5 | —zzan
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARKEF T
(Restated)
=)
(Loss)/profit before income tax HIBR FT1S LR
(&1, H (10,548) 20,308
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before 3R Ff7E Bl AR [ i A i K
income tax, calculated at the FTE 2 MRS A
rates applicable to the (E518) /= F & &
jurisdictions concerned 18 (1,587) 3,035
Tax effect of non-deductible AR A X 2
expenses MIEZE 517 3,710
Tax effect of non-taxable income  BERHKRFZZHBFE (84) (2,775)
Tax effect of unused tax losses R A AR A A %R 18
not recognised EENTMBTE 1,629 293
Underprovision of current tax BAEFEREFIE
in prior years BiErE 924 236
Tax effect of change in tax rates MEB o HBLE - 14
Income tax charge FrgBiz i 1,399 4,513

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 — T —ZF+ - A =+—HILFE

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EFE&
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 161 of BRIBEBRBAREHIFE161EEECES
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: T -

2010 2009

—E-Z5F —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETT

Fees we 54 132

Salaries and other emoluments & K E b % B 1,339 1,470

Discretionary bonus BIBELL 4 —

Retirement benefit scheme contributions R T8I 5K 15 —

1,412 1,602

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 —E—ZHF+ - A=+—HILtFE

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9. EFEME »
Details of directors’ emoluments by individuals for the year HE-_ZT—ZF+-_A=+—HL*F
ended 31 December 2010 are as follows: = 1I%\J)\iz§$@ﬂ|§—£$$ BanR
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other Discretionary scheme
Fees emoluments bonus contributions Total
HeH BHRER
ik Hitb 5 BT S @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR®Tn AR%Tn AR%T:n
Executive directors HTES
Wang Zhong Sheng B - 904 - 7 911
Shi Liang it - 383 - 7 390
Zhang Qing Lin (note 1) REM (3E1) - - - - -
Fu Shou Gang (note 2) SELIGES) - 48 4 - 52
Non-executive directors FBTES
Kwok Shun Tim (note 3) a1 (M3E3) - - - - -
Ye Jinxing (note 4) S A(RTY - 4 - 1 5
Independent non-executive BUEHTES
directors
Wong Zhi He (note 5) T 27 (fit35) 11 - - - 11
Yan Chang Ming (note 6) B &5 (fizEe) - - - - -
Luo Wei Kun BUEE - - - - -
Pang Yuk Fong vEh 43 - - - 43
54 1,339 4 15 1,412
Note 1: Appointed on 17 May 2010 MeE1: RZZE—ZTFRATLARBEME
Note 2:  Appointed on 29 December 2010 2 : RZTE—EF+_A+NAEZE
Note 3: Resigned on 18 December 2010 M3 : RZZE—ZTF+A+N\BEE
Note 4: Resigned on 29 December 2010 Mizd: RZZT—ZTF+-_A=-T+IBHE
Note 5: Appointed on 29 September 2010 M5 : RZZE—ZTFNAZtTIBEZRMAE
Note 6: Resigned on 9 August 2010 Miz6: RZZT—ZFNANAEE

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010



Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 5 4R 3R Pid 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 — T —ZF+ - A =+—HILFE

9. EEME& »

BE-SEAFt-A=t—ALLF
& EAALZEEMRHENT

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Details of directors’ emoluments by individuals for the year
ended 31 December 2009 are as follows:

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees  emoluments bonus  contributions Total
A RARET
ieka it 5 [l HE 3 @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR AR%TR
Executive directors BTES
Wang Zhong Sheng TRE - 874 - - 874
Shi Liang 15 - 350 - - 350
Non-executive directors FRTES
Kwok Shun Tim HatE - 175 - - 175
Ye Jinxing EoH - 71 - - 71
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Yan Chang Ming B&RH 44 - - - 44
Luo Wei Kun BEE 44 - - - 44
Pang Yuk Fong vER 44 - - - 44
182 1,470 - - 1,602

During the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, no
directors waived any emoluments. No inducement payments
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office was paid or payable to any director for the two years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.

RBE-_ZT-ZTFER_FTTAF+=
A=Z+—HLFE HMEEEWEE
e REBEEHE_T-TFR_-
ZETZNF+T_A=+—HIEMEF
& - I EE A E FE S SR HE
MAREB S MARNEER 2 HE K
BB (E

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 —E—ZHF+ - A=+—HILtFE

10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10. REHFAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2009: hEEeFALR  WBE(ZEZN
one) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. F:—R)RESF  BEZHMERME
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three OFE - Eh=% (T NF : IH)
(2009: four) individuals are as follows: ERALTZME@ERAT :
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AR®ETTT

Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHMERN 386 3,247
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R KR FEF 2] 3k - -

386 3,247
The emoluments of the three (2009: four) individuals with the =2 (ZEETNE  OEL)SESHER
highest emoluments are within the following bands: AT ZBENFATEHE :
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
RMBNil to RMB868,000 AREZTE
(equivalent to approximately A R #868,0007C
HKS$Nil to HK$1,000,000) (HBERNZTEBLE
1,000,000/ 7T) 3 3
RMB868,000 to RMB1,303,000 AR #868,0007T &
(equivalent to approximately AR #1,303,0007C
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000) (R #91,000,001
75T 21,500,000/ 7T) - 1

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 8 Z —Z—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 9 February 2010, the Company, as vendor, and the
promissory note-holders (the “Purchasers”), acted collectively
as owners of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose the 100% equity interest in Shine
Science & Technology (BVI) Company Limited, which
beneficially holds 100% equity interest in Fujian Shine,
Shanghai Shine and Fuzhou Xinwangluo Network Company
Limited (altogether referred to as “Shine Science BVI Group”),
at a consideration of RMB60,000,000. Shine Science BVI
Group is principally engaged in the development and sales of
computer software, resale of computer hardware, provision
of system integration and maintenance services in the PRC.
The consideration was satisfied by each of the Purchasers in
proportion to their respective interests in the sale shares on
the date of completion by a discharge of the Company from
its payment obligations under the promissory notes as stated
in note 33. The transaction was completed on 11 May 2010.
The Group’s sales of computer software, computer hardware
and maintenance and other services segments have been
classified as discontinued operations.

The (loss)/profit for the year from discontinued operations are
analysed as follows:

11.ERILEEERT

RZE—ZEF-HANA " K’&TT’EF%
BEHEARERHBEATEA]D -
FEERRNAGIHEEB A%ES Tﬁ?ﬁigﬁz’;
# 0 LA B RS E R Shine Science &
Technology (BVI) Company Limited 2
100% AR » Z AR Emfia EE
%ﬁ:‘  EEFBERENAENEEE
A 8] (#78 [Shine Science BVI%
J) KB/ AR ®60,000,0007T °
Shine Science BVI% B = 2/t FEHLE
HHEBENIEE ENEHEE  THR
BRIt RSB S MGEERSE - BEAR
BrENARNASEARTK B BiZ
BEXEBRHERMD 2L - ##
BRAR E*ETFWESBFELZR%?—RTF
ZRREME - ZRHER T —FTF
ﬁﬂ‘i’ HIEK © $$IZ B #X
- B IHE A RS R E MR
BHEE D BRI EER -

REBRILEE R 2R (5R)
WHH T -

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFIT
(Loss)/profit for the year from REEKRIEKEEER 2
discontinued operations (BB & H (11,947) 15,795

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 1M.ERILEEBEEE »
The results of the discontinued operations for the period from
1 January 2010 to 11 May 2010, which have been included in
the consolidated income statement, are as follows:

RZE—FF—H—BE_F—ZF
AA+—BHME Bit AGREBRE
ZERIMEEER 2 EENT ¢

2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR T ARETT

Turnover - 5 6,026 51,978
Cost of sales $H & AR 26(b) (7,427) (20,591)
Gross (loss)/profit E (BB, mF (1,401) 31,387
Other revenue and net income  Efh U &5 B2 FE U A 6 1,152 10,284
Distribution costs 73 88 B A (3,296) (3,358)
Administrative expenses THRAX (6,935) (14,793)
Other operating expenses HigEfx - (3,176)
Finance costs BhE B A 7(c) (68) (36)
(Loss)/profit before income tax B FrSFial (B548) &%l 7 (10,548) 20,308
Income tax Frig a5 8(b) (1,399) (4,513)
(Loss)/profit for the year from REERIELEEBE 2

discontinued operations FR(EER),wmH (11,947) 15,795
(Loss)/profit for the year from THEGRBEEHKIE

discontinued operations KEEBEZFNR

attributable to: (E518) = F -

Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ ¥ =N (11,947) 15,795
Non-controlling interests eI R - —
(11,947) 15,795

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 H & — &

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 11.

—EET A=t HLEFE

The net cash flows of the discontinued operations for the period
from 1 January 2010 to 11 May 2010 are as follows:

ERIEEEEE »

—EF-A-HRE_ZTEF

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash generated from
financing activities

rEEs (R EE
b e 4
BREXBGA RS 3
MEXBELZ
B & F

Net cash (outflow)/inflow

iﬁ@ i ﬁ ///lu)\/%ﬂgE

ﬁﬂ +*E|,H\EF'Eﬂ ERIEEEERRZ
RemF@EmT :

2010 2009
—E-FF —EFLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
(15,484) 36,430
(9,386) (15,961)
5,932 1,964
(18,938) 22,433

12.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities from disposal
of discontinued operations of the Shine Science BVI Group at
the date of disposal are disclosed in note 40.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 12.

COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company
includes a loss of approximately RMB13,618,000 (2009:
RMB66,742,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

KREEHEERIEKLZLEBKShine
Science BVIEB v EE R BERLEE
BHEAZ BREE R BRI 5E40 -

FAFRBAEBGEGR

KARER ARLZAEE  B2ER
RARRFBHRREREZEBLHNRA
R#13,618,0007T (ZZZENF : AR
#66,742,0007T) °

FEBERREEEERAT
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13. DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been proposed or declared by the directors
for the two years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
a) For continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

13.

14.

R

HE T ZZFLE-_FTTAF+ A
—t+t—HIMEFTE  ESVWEES
IR N

S (&E8) 827

a) BERCRILESET

ARBEE NG TRER K #
SBEERE N IBEAE

2010 2009
—g-%% | —zTas
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Loss for the year RFEEEHE

Loss for the year attributable to st E SR EAEIBR
owners of the Company for the B Z AQARIHEA A
purpose of basic loss per FEIEFREE
share

(20,493) (68,741)

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 H & — &

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

—EET A=t HLEFE

14. 8Bk (5548) &BF »)

a) For continuing and discontinued operations a) BERCRILEELER
(Continued) (&)
2010 2009
—E-FF —EFLF
’000 '000
TR’ F A&
Number of shares IR im0 B
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January KR—H—HzZE
BITEBR 1,361,815 620,600
Effect of issue of shares by share FBRMDEEEETT
placement f&fn 2z o2 223,111 5,101
Effect of issue of shares by open offer ERARABEEET
Kz & - 186,134
Effect of issue of consideration B it WJ%”ﬂﬁ'ﬁ?éﬁ
shares for acquisition of subsidiaries RERDZZE - 122,557
Effect of conversion of AR (B 5 o i
convertible bonds LB 169,678 —
Weighted average number of ordinary R+-—A=+—H8~2
shares at 31 December 5/ AR N 35 25 1,754,604 934,392
Diluted loss per share attributable to owners of the HZE —ZEHF+-A=+—H

Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 is the
same as the basic loss per share as the effect of dilutive
potential ordinary shares from convertible bonds are anti-

dilutive.

There were no dilutive potential shares during the year
ended 31 December 2009, and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share is the same as basic (loss)/earnings per share.

JJ:$EZ!S AR AL SR
BERESERANERER R
RARABERES 2 BE#TER

BB REEME -

BE_FTAF+-A= A

FEREEEEEE

A B

s (BB BIERNE
PREA (B1ER) /BT o

FEBERREEEERAT
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14. 8Bk (55#8) BF »)

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
b) From continuing operations

The calculation of basic loss per share from continuing
operations attributable to owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

h)

REREEEER

ARBEBARBEKRERERS
X BRENEBEBRIIRIE T

B

Loss for the year is calculated as follows: RFEEBBFAEDAT ¢
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
Loss for the year attributable to KARHEE ANEG
owners of the Company FAEE (20,493) (58,741)
Less: Loss/(profit) for the year B ARREE AEG
attributable to owners of the REDRIEKE
Company from discontinued XB2FEA
operations &8, CaFl) 11,947 (15,795)
Loss for the year attributable to owners 5+ E K BB KL ¥
of the Company for the purpose of < BRIREREER
basic loss per share from continuing KAZAREIHAR
operations AL FEAEE (8,546) (74,536)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
in note (a) above for continuing and discontinued
operations.

c) From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operation is
RMBO0.68 cents per share (2009: earnings per share of
RMB1.69 cents per share) based on the loss for the year
from the discontinued operations of RMB11,947,000
(2009: profit of RMB15,795,000).

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
in note (a) above for continuing and discontinued
operations.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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15. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines (products and services). Upon
adoption of HKFRS 8, Operating segments and in a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s chairman and executive director, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following five reportable segments:

Continuing operations

Liquefied coalbed gas
(including liquefied

coalbed gas logistics)

Piped natural gas

this segment is responsible
for the manufacture and
sales of liquefied coalbed
gas to piped natural gas
providers and commercial
and industrial customers in
the PRC through the
liquefied coalbed gas
transportation vehicles.

this segment is responsible
for the reprocessing of
liquefied coalbed gas,
construction of gas
pipelines and supply of
piped natural gas to
commercial, industrial and
household customers in
Beiliu City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region, the
PRC.

15.

S22

AEBRIBEEKER (ERMRSE)
NN EEREXK - RIEMER
FAH5 s AR SR 85R R 150 BRI I /5
AARETIEMNTES (EFELE
REN) REARDBECE R MFHERER
ZAREREM 2 T2 AEE
EE®RNIAEARSHEL

RALKE B R,
(BRER&RIL
B R )

ZoEBELE
K E RIS
R WERARIE
HEREHTA
BRERHCE
BRARMIER
RImER -

ZDEMEA/R
LR ERETH
NI~ FEEZIRE
EERHEEE
RARTHEE
Ptk BoaE L
mmz LEkE
REP -

TEEBERREEEERAAP

—E-TFFR



Discontinued operations
Computer software

Computer hardware

Maintenance and
other services

Notes to the Financial Statements
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15. SEGMENT REPORTING (continueq)

this segment develops and
sells computer software
relating to securities and
financial industries to
financial and securities
sectors in the PRC.

this segment sells
computer hardware in
complement to the
computer software
segment.

this segment provides
repairs and maintenance
services and other technical
support for customers of
the computer software
segment.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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15. SEGMENT REPORTING (continueq)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

In accordance with HKFRS 8, segment information
disclosed in the financial statements has been prepared
in a manner consistent with the information used by the
Group’s chairman and executive director for the purposes
of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments. In this regard, the Group’s
chairman and executive director monitor the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of other corporate
assets which are unallocated to an individual reportable
segment. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables, deferred income attributable to the activities of
the individual segments and bank and other borrowings
managed directly by the segments with the exception of
other corporate liabilities which are unallocated to an
individual reportable segment. Assets used jointly by
segments and liabilities for which segments are jointly
liable are allocated on the basis of the revenue by individual
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & &=

15. SEGMENT REPORTING (continueq)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

The measurement used for reporting segment profit/(loss)
is “Adjusted profit/(loss) before interest and taxes”
(“Adjusted EBIT”). To arrive at adjusted profit/(loss) before
interest and taxes, the Group’s profits/(losses) are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to an
individual reportable segment, such as interest income
and other unallocated corporate expenses.

In addition to the receiving of segment information
concerning adjusted EBIT, management is provided with
segment information concerning revenue (including inter-
segment sales), interest income and expenses from cash
balances and borrowings managed directly by the
segments, depreciation, amortisation and impairment
losses and additions to non-current segment assets used
by the segments in their operations. Inter-segment sales
are priced with reference to prices charged to external
parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s chairman and executive
director for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the year is as
follows:

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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15. SEGMENT REPORTING (continueq) 15. 3 EBEH =
b) Reconciliations of reportable segment b) ZBiRENEBUE » i Fl
revenues, profit or loss, assets and g E5E EERBEZ
liabilities ¥Rk
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
BREEER BRIEBEER &a
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
CE-BE ICTEAF |CE-EE RIS SRR 2T
RMB’000 § RMB'000 § RMB’000 § RMB'000 § RMB’000 § RMB'000
ARETR P\RETL JARSTR ARET T JARRTR JARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&Z3)) (&Z3))
Revenue &
Reportable segment revenue BREA D 231,704 | 42,668 6,06 0 51,9780 237,730 8 94,646
Elimination of inter-seqment revenue M PRkE 7150 (2612 - - 50 (2612
Consolidated turnover GREXE 230,989 40,056 6,026 51978 § 237,015 92,034
Profit/(loss) A/ (E8)
Reportable segment profit/{oss) BRESTEN/ (BR) 817 (68206 (10,114 182020 (9,897 (50,004)
Elimination of inter-segment profits D BRE - - - - - _
Reportable segment profit/loss) derived REASENRERZ
from Group's external customers EREABER/ (BB 817 (8206 (10,714) 18202 (9,897 (50,004)
Interest income HERA 40 316 62 119 102 435
Finance costs HERA (0,681 (4,260 (68) ol O7490 (429
Net realised and unrealised gains/(losses) ~ E5EHZBERRALH
on trading securities ha/ (BB 58 - - 475 1,650 475 1,650
Gain on remeasuring existing interest in RRER SN BARLE
an available-for-sale investment REAEER W
on acquisition 4,960 - - - 4,960 -
Fair value gain on the derivative component of AR E%£74 4
convertible bonds LD EYS 3,223 = - = 3,223 =
Withholding tax from disposal of subsidiaries KB HEHBA R ZERH (3,902 - - - (3,902 -
Unallocated depreciation AARHE (430) (387) - 6) (430) (393)
Unallocated corporate income/(expenses) ~ AABRREMA/ (BR) 4675 (2339 (303) a9l @9t (1,960
Consolidated loss before income tax BREERAGAER 06480 (748760 (10,5480 20308 §  (20,196)0 (54,569
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—E-TFFR



Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 75 4R 3R P 5

—F-BET-AST-BLFE

15. ZEBE2 8] @

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & &

15. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

b) Reconciliations of reportable segment b) ZBiREmEBUE » i Fl
revenues, profit or loss, assets and BEE SERAEZ
liahilities (Continued) HER ®)

Consolidated
e
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets HREDHEE 702,958 513,580
Elimination of inter-segment receivables  #ifl §& 5 25 & f& Uk X 18 (6,997) (8,100)

695,961 505,480
Investment properties REYZE - 7,330
Derivative component of AR ESITES D

convertible bonds 6,621 —
Trading securities B 5 &5 - 582
Amounts due from securities JEWFE H A48 1T
broker firms KIBIE - 19,040

Tax recoverable A Uy B 7 1E 687 —
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents KO EES RIRESEEY 7,699 8,570
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEHEEE 2,331 4,023
Consolidated total assets EBEE 713,299 545,025
Liabilities =K
Reportable segment liabilities ARENHBE 215,822 223,802
Elimination of inter-segment payables Hi 55 > 5P ) FE < B IE (6,997) (8,100)

208,825 215,702
Tax payables FERTBIIE 621 4,121
Promissory notes A ER - 51,296
Convertible bonds R ES 43,137 —
Withholding tax payables JE AR SR AR 3,902 —
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ao EEE 2,486 4,057
Consolidated total liabilities meamas 258,971 275,176

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 — T —ZF+ - A =+—HILFE

15. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 15. 823 »
c) Geographical information c) WMEEFE
The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived AEBRAIAREF 2 W2 F
solely from its operations in the PRC. Its non-current KEERTEZZE - HiZiR
assets (excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets) N ERBEE (EREEME
by geographical location are detailed below: LERBEERIN T -
Continuing Discontinued
operations operations Consolidated
FREERY BRLEEERE &&

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
CE-BENCIENF|CE-SE CEIAE |CE-ECEANE
RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000
ARETR P\RETL JARSTR ARET T JARR TR JARETT

Hong Kong % 2 2 - = 2 2
PRC 3 614,511 354,754 - 24,823 614,511 379,577
614,532 354,776 - 24,823 614,532 379,599
d) Information about major customers d FHAXEERZEH
The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes REENEPERSE  8#E=
only three customers in liquefied coalbed gas and piped T-EF+A=1+—HLHF
natural gas segment with whom sales for the year ended B EeEERtEERREER
31 December 2010 exceeded 10% of the Group’s RRDER=REFP ZIHERER
turnover. There is no customer with whom sales exceed BAEBEEEBEZ10% c HEZ
10% of the Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 ZENF+ZA=+—HLHF
December 20009. T BIERPZIEERHBALE

EEEBEI10% °
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15. ZEBE2 8] @

d) Information about major customers (Continued) d FHREXEEFRZEH @
Liquefied coalbed gas  Piped natural gas Consolidated
RILEER BERAR &a
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-ZECEENF |CE-BE|CEENE CE-BE|CSENE
RMB’000 § RMB'000 § RMB’000 § RMB'000 § RMB’000 § RMB'000
ARETT JARETT JARET R JARET JARET = JARETT
Customer A ERA 36,512 = - -1 36512 =
Customer B ZF7 32,926 - - - 32,926 -
Customer G PR 25,039 - 181 -1 %2 -
94,477 - 181 - 94,658 -
16. GOODWILL 16. &
The Group AEE
RMB’000
AR¥EFT
Cost %N
At 1 January 2009 RZZEENF—H—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(b)) W B Bt B8 A &) (M9 #E39(b)) 76,802
At 31 December 2009 and RZZFZENF+ZA=F+—8K
1 January 2010 —E-ZEF—-—H—H 76,802
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(a)) U B BT 8 2 &) (B9 5E39(a)) 109,477
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZFF+-H=+—H 186,279
Accumulated impairment Z5RE
At 1 January 2009 RZEENF—H—H -
Impairment loss B EE 52,971
At 31 December 2009 and RZZFZENF+ZA=F+—8K
1 January 2010 —E—FF—-—H—H 52,971
Impairment loss REEE —
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZFF+-H=+—H 52,971
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZEF+=—A=+—H 133,308
At 31 December 2009 R_ZBEZNF+_HA=+—H 23,831

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
(“CGU”) containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGU identified according

16. B8 »

BEHMBCREEAEN
(REEEEM]) 2B EH

&l

BEDRE T AEER TIIERS DB

to reportable segment as follows: B ReEESBM -
2010 2009
—E—-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTF T
Piped natural gas BEBRAR 23,831 23,831
Logistics of liquefied coalbed gas RALEEE R 109,477 —
133,308 23,831

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2010 represented the
excess of the cost of acquisition of Million Ideas Group
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of Million Ideas Group as mentioned
in note 39(a).

The recoverable amount of the CGU of liquefied coalbed
gas segment is determined based on value in use
calculations with reference to the valuation carried out by
an independent firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal Limited
(“Asset Appraisal”), who have among their staff associate
members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 20-year
period, which is based on the average business and
operation life over the CGU of liquefied coalbed gas
logistics business. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated rates stated below.
The growth rates do not exceed the respective long-term
average growth rates for the business in which the CGU
of liquefied coalbed gas segment operates.

HANHT 3@ Pt - BE =T —
ZE+_A=+t—HLEFERK
BHBAR IR HEBREKRESR
SEBEZRAGSRAEERER
SERBHEEMNRBEZATE
Ptz 2 8o -

BRICHEER B 2R eEESMN
2 Al YR Bl R EE Ty AR R E B E AT
% 2R—REIOAEETT
BETEEMERAR ([BEEF
Bl ZAEMTZHREBREEE
RIERMEE 2 BKE) FTEfT
HMEMETE - ZFTEH%FR
RERETER BENEEEH
HERE20F B 2 5T E) -
BMRIBRIEEER Y mER 2R
CEEBMNCTHEBREESF
HmmEE - BaAFHMZ RS
MEFEA TG EREE - 12
XU TERBRIEEBERS 2
ReELBNKEMBERZE
B R EK o
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
(“CGU”) containing goodwill Continued)

16. ™8 »

BEMEBZREEAREN
(MREEAEEN]) 2B ER

& (4
a)  (Continued) a (#&)
Key assumptions used for value in use calculations: FREEFEZPFEAZEZR
#*
2010
—E-ZF
Gross margin eSS 31-32%
Growth rate HERE 3%
Discount rate | x 14%
Management determined the budgeted gross margin ERERBATRELAEEMS
based on past performance and its expectation for market BRVBHETEEERE - fF
development. The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate ERAZZITE X RRBIATHE K&
and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant segment. R EEBEDEE B2 ER
oy o
The recoverable amount of the CGU of liquefied coalbed BILEER B2 BeEEEN
gas segment as at 31 December 2010 exceeds its R_E—ZEF+_RA=+—HBZ
carrying amount based on value in use calculations. A E KR - BAHEENEAE
Accordingly, no impairment loss on goodwill of the BAEEZREE - At - &
liguefied coalbed gas segment is recognised in the Z2_E-TF+-A=+—HL
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 FE - WERNGEBEERLRIL
December 2010. BERD BERYERBEEIE -
b)  The goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries b) FIMEEI9O)FTIL - BEZTE

for the year ended 31 December 2009 represented the
excess of the cost of acquisition of Allied Rich
Management Limited and its subsidiaries (“Allied Rich
Group”) over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of Allied Rich Group as
mentioned in note 39(b).

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 B2 — T —ZFF+_A=+—HILFE
16. B8 »#
BAMEZIRSESEN

(MREES£EEN]) Z2RER
B (@)

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
(“CGU”) containing goodwill Continued)

b)

(Continued)

As part of the consideration of the acquisition, the
Company allotted and issued 245,786,516 ordinary
shares (see note 36(b)). In accordance with HKFRS 3
“Business combinations” issued by the HKICPA, the fair
value of consideration shares was determined by reference
to the market value of the ordinary shares of the Company
at the date of acquisition of the Allied Rich Group. With
the unexpected increase in the share price of the
Company from HK$0.32 at the date of agreement to
HK$0.60 at the date of acquisition, the goodwill arising
from the acquisition was much greater than was expected
by the management of the Group when the agreement
was entered into. The fair value of the consideration shares
increased by approximately RMB60,581,000 and after
taking into consideration of the effect of discounting the
principal amount of the promissory notes to their fair value
of approximately RMB10,321,000 based on the effective
interest method, the net increase in fair value of the
consideration of the acquisition was reduced to
approximately RMB50,260,000. The Group therefore
immediately after combination (i.e. as at 3 July 2009)
recognised the excess of the carrying amount of the CGU
(including goodwill) over the recoverable amount of the
CGU, which were arrived at based on value in use
calculations as detailed below, as impairment loss on
goodwill.

b)

(&

A RIBL 8 )2 3817245,786,516/%
LTaRERBEBREZ —#9 (R
MisE36(b) ° IRBEBEFAIA
SR BB SRS ER|FE355R
[EBaft]  RERNHZATE
H2RYEREEEEBARQF
Tl mEMEE - ARAR
AIREREABHEREARY
B H0.328 L&A E0.60/E T -
R FESI B B ERRAEEE
BERIIIEKERRS o
REBRND 2 AFEEMOARE
60,581,0007T &2 & & 1R 15 B %
MEEBERALRBCASENE
ZHEHRATFELHARK10,321,000
TR WEREZATE
ENFERLEHDARE
50,260,0007T ° At + NEBER
ZEEAHE I ETAFLA=
A ERREELSEN (BRE/HE)
FHESRBESEABLN 2T
[Bl5k &8 (IRIE T X F s FREE
MER) 2 AP IEREEBRES

B
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
(“CGU”) containing goodwill Continued)

b)

(Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU of piped natural gas
segment is determined based on value in use calculations
with reference to the valuation carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 44-year
period (2009: 45-year period), which is based on the
average business and operation life over the CGU of piped
natural gas segment. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated rates stated below.
The growth rates do not exceed the respective long-term
average growth rates for the business in which the CGU
of piped natural gas segment operates.

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations:

16. ™8 »

BAHEZHESELAEMN
(MREEEEN]) Z2REHR
= e )

b) (#&)

EERARRDEZ RS ELEEMN
2 AU Bl R EE TR IR (E R E BT
BHE 2RBR—REIAEETT
BEJEMETZHEMERT °
ZEFELAFERRESRETAA
(BEREEEMILERE44F
H (T NFE : 45FH) 205
JEE) - BIRIEEEXRARDEZ
REELEMN I FHEBREE
FHMER - BARAFHEZIR
SRmEFEA TG R RHEE o
BERITSREBRARS I
HeELEBNUKEMBERZ
REJFHERE -

EREETEATERZEERR

2010 2009

—E-2F —EFNF

Gross margin VRS 20-22% 18%
Growth rate b 0-15% 0-19%
Discount rate HYriR =& 11% 13%

Management determined the budgeted gross margin
based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate
and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant segment.
Management also believes that any reasonably change
in assumptions on which the recoverable amount of the
CGU of the piped natural gas segment is based would
not cause the carrying amount of the CGU of the piped
natural gas segment to exceed its recoverable amount
as at 31 December 2010.
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16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. B8 »

Impairment test for cash-generating units
(“CGU”) containing goodwill Continued)

b) (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU of piped natural gas
segment as at 31 December 2010 exceeds its carrying
amount based on value in use calculations. Accordingly,
no impairment loss on goodwill of the piped natural gas
segment is recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2010.
Impairment loss on goodwill of the piped natural gas
segment of approximately RMB52,971,000 is recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2009, since the recoverable amount of the
CGU of piped natural gas segment as at 31 December
2009 is less than its carrying amount based on value in
use calculation.

BAWMEBZHESELEMN
(MREES£EEN]) Z2RER
B (@)

b) (&

BEERAEBEAERE B@8X
ARRDE 2B EEEEMN 2K
CIsRFE B A EAREE - Bt - &
2-FT-ZTF+_/F=+—HIt
FEZREERRIBREREE
RARD M2 EBRBERBE - B
BEREEHERE  BEZT
ENF+_A=Z+—HLFEZ
BBARARRD MR EELEEN
Z AR E R R R HAREE -
I BHEZEEAF+ZA=T
—RIEFEZFEBERREER
BEERRNRDE 2B RERE
# AR ¥52,971,0007T °

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. R EME
The Group xEE

RMB’000
AREF T
At 1 January 2009 RZEENF—H—H —
Additions HE 7,179
Change in fair value NEEEH 151

At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 RZZEZENF+_A=+—HBK
25— f—H 7,330
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) &K B 2 R (Fi5E40) (7,330)
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZTF+_A=+—H —

PEBERREEEERAA

—E-TFFR
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

The Group (Continued)

The investment properties are situated on land held under
medium-term leases in the PRC.

All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 31
December 2009 on an open market value basis calculated by
reference to observable prices in recent market transactions in
comparable properties on arm’s length terms. The valuations
were carried out by Asset Appraisal, who has recent experience
in the location and category of properties being valued.

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 2
years, with an option to renew the lease after that date at which
time all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually
revised every 1 to 2 years to reflect market rentals. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

17. BEME »

X&EEH »

BREMEURNTPEREFHENTA
ZEH ke

R-ZEZNEFE+_A=+—8 &K&E
B AREMEHERAFAMEREE
EITEM RHAMEEEDLZRAL
EMERNLEMISETZIAERSZ
ABRERTE - BRMGBEREERT
BT ZAEMT RN ESEE
2R AEREARELR -

AEERBELEHOLEREDE -
BO—ROT BB —EMF - EAE
BEEMEN  ERMBGRRIEALET
R - BMONTREE - EMFER]
—R - ARBRTERS - ZEHOH
THmRAEE -

AEBRBEIAIHELEMEVETZ
ARENREBEFIBAENT -

2010 2009

—E-=F —ZEENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFT

Within 1 year —F RN - 105
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREBEAFA - 41
- 146
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a) The Group

18. 1% - BER B el
a) XxEE

Buildings Furniture Transportation
held for ~ Leasehold Plantand  Computer and  and motor Construction
own use improvements Pipelines ~ machinery ~ equipment  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
5EER BHIR
BT EERBIE BE  KEREE EiRE  GERRE ke ARIE Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREFR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETX
Cost RE
A1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-R 5,306 223 - - 2914 2490 3076 123,898 139915
Additions (note (i) RE (K3 (i) 920 488 173 2,504 704 173 1,131 76,012 82,105
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39()  WEMEBRE (H30k) 3,859 - 4097 753 - 898 49 - 46,400
Transfer flom construction in progress AR TR EH, 48212 - - 151,329 - - - (199,541) -
Disposals i - - - - (444) (15) (120) - (579)
Exchange adjusments EiEE - 1 - - - 1 - = 2
At 31 December 2009 and RZTENE
1 January 2010 =
= 57,796 2,721 41,144 154,586 3174 3,547 4,506 369 267,843
Addiions (note (1) AE (W3t 9,992 - 3 826 204 168 4,595 39279 55,157
Acquisttion of subsidiaries (note 39(a))  KEERTBRAE (Kx39(a)) - 58 - 15 - 135 18,108 - 18,316
Transfer flom construction inprogress AR TR EH, 18,977 707 - 5,667 - - - (25,371) -
Disposals of subsidiaries (note 40)  HEMBAF (k)  (6,229) (3,350) - - (3:330) (2,085) 2.297) - {17.21)
Exchange adjustments EfEE - (1) - - - - - = )
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-3%
T2A=t-A 80,540 135 147 161,114 138 1,765 24972 14,217 324,088
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2009 RZEEnF-A-A 1,061 678 - - 1,659 831 1,024 - 5,143
Charge for the year KERTH 1,485 539 1,199 5200 647 507 604 - 10211
Written back on disposals HEER = = = = (387) (13) 39) = (439)
Exchange adjustments EiEE - o - - 2) 1 - - ()
At 31 December 2009 and RZTENE
1 January 2010 TZA=+-Rk
“5-%5-f-H 2,536 1,213 1,199 5,200 1,821 1,346 1,590 = 14911
Charge for the year RERTH 3,616 185 2,3 11,253 182 453 2170 - 20,253
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HERBAE (K40 (1,374) (1,315) - - (1,972) (1,157) (685) - (6,509)
Exchange adjusments EX@E - (1) - - - - - - 1)
At 31 December 2010 NZE-T%
TZA=t-A 4778 82 3,593 16,453 3 642 3,075 - 28,660
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2010 2%
+-R=1-A 75,762 53 37,654 144,661 101 1128 21,897 14211 295,428
At 31 December 2009 RIEENE
tZA=1+-A 56,260 1,508 39945 149,386 1,847 2,201 2916 369 252,932

TEEBERREEEERAAP
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continueq)

a) The Group (Continued)

i)

i

The buildings held for own use are situated on land
held under medium-term leases in the PRC.

At 31 December 2010, the carrying amounts of
buildings held for own use and pipelines pledged
for the Group’s bank borrowings were approximately
RMB1,471,000 (2009: RMB2,409,000) and
RMB36,690,000 (2009: RMB38,850,000)
respectively.

Additions of construction in progress for the year
ended 31 December 2009 includes interest expense
capitalised on other borrowings wholly repayable
within five years of approximately RMB3,308,000.

Additions of buildings held for own use of
RMB9,963,000 and prepaid lease payments for land
under operating leases of RMB9,017,000 (note 19)
represent a property located in the PRC for office
use and the Group is in the process of obtaining the
relevant building ownership certificates and land use
right certificates.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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18. % - BB REMW »
a) XEE»

i)

FEB M2 B TR+ B
FEHEORAE T E -

NZE—TFF+A=+—
H - AARSERITERME
HeRHtEERBFEREBZ
FEEDNOARARMK
1,471,0007C (ZZZF N4 -
AR#2,400,0007T) EAR
#36,690,0007T (ZZEZT N,
F: AR®¥38,850,000
JT) °

HEZZTThF+=ZA=1
—BUEFEZERIRZA
EREERAFANEZHESE
ZHMEBEZEEREF S
X% ARM3,308,000
5o
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continuea)  18. 13 -~ 2 R B IR (&)

b) The Company h) XAT
Furniture
Leasehold Computer and Motor
improvements equipment equipment  vehicles Total

HEXBIR EBKRHE KARRHE it At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTL ARBTE ARETT AREBTI

Cost RE
At 1 January 2009 RZEENF—F—H 76 65 99 1,662 1,902
Additions AE - 55 13 = 68
Disposals HE - (37) - - (37)
Exchange adjustments B 5% 3% 1 - 1 - 2
At 31 December 2009 RZEZNF
and 1 January 2010 +-A=+-BEk
“Z-TF-A-H 77 83 113 1,662 1,935
Additions AE — 68 6 1,079 1,140
Exchange adjustments AT (1) - (1) - )
At 31 December 2010 R-E-FF
+ZR=+—-H 76 138 118 2,741 3,073
Accumulated depreciation 2iE
At 1 January 2009 R-ZENE—A-H 44 20 94 526 684
Charge for the year KEETH 37 16 4 331 388
Written back on disposals HE & D - (17) - - (17)
Exchange adjustments BE X A 4 - 1 = ()
At 31 December 2009 RZZENF
and 1 January 2010 +-A=+-BEk
“Z-TF-A-H 77 19 99 857 1,052
Charge for the year KEETH - 17 6 366 389
Exchange adjustments AT (1) - (1) - )
At 31 December 2010 R-E-FF
+ZR=+—-H 76 36 104 1,223 1,439
Carrying amount BERE
At 31 December 2010 RZE-FF
+-A=1+—H - 102 14 1,518 1,634
At 31 December 2009 RZZENF
+-A=1+-H - 64 14 805 883

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR LAND UNDER 19. BEHN TR LA S

OPERATING LEASES

The carrying amount of the Group’s prepaid lease payments AEBKEMEAOTENLHWEAS 2R

for land under operating leases is analysed as follows: HESTWAT :
The Group
rEH

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARKEFTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEREE 26,427 14,346
Additions INE 10,935 3,687
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(b)) Y EEM B 2 7 (M 5E39(b)) - 9,000
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) & KB 2 R (Bt sE40) (6,878) —
30,484 26,883
Amortisation for the year NF S (517) (456)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—BZEkHAEE 29,967 26,427
Less: Current portion B BNERER (9 (673) (608)
Non-current portion JEBNERZL 1 29,294 25,819

The prepaid lease payments in respect of land under operating
leases are held under medium-term leases and situated in the
PRC. At 31 December 2010, the cost of the prepaid lease
payments for land under operating leases is approximately
RMB30,940,000 (2009: RMB27,587,000).

At 31 December 2010, the carrying amount of prepaid lease
payments for land under operating leases pledged for the
Group’s bank borrowings was approximately RMB8,705,000
(2009: RMB10,295,000).

The amortisation charge for the year of RMB156,000 (2009:
RMB269,000) and RMB361,000 (2009: RMB187,000) are
included in cost of sales and administrative expenses
respectively in the consolidated income statement.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. I\ B E
The Group AEE
Operating
Exclusive license for  Computer
right for  liquefied  software
piped natural coalbed gas development
gas operation logistics costs Total
EEXAAR MULEER  EEEZH
ERBRET NREEHR  HERAL st
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AR%TR ARETR
Cost RE
At 1 January 2009 RZZZNE-A—-H - - 29,069 29,069
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERB AR
(note 39(b)) (Pt £39(0) 70,470 - - 70,470
At 31 December 2009 and RZEENE
1 January 2010 +ZA=+-BRK
“Z-ZE-f-H 70,470 - 29,069 99,539
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(a)) Wesa K B A ) (BiE39(a) - 97,300 = 97,300
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) LERB AR (fi3F40) - = (29,069  (29,069)
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-Z£+-A=1-H 70,470 97,300 - 167,770
Accumulated amortisation ZtBERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-R - - 29,069 29,069
Amortisation for the year REEEH 783 = = 783
At 31 December 2009 and RZEFNETZA=+-AR
1 January 2010 “ZZ-ZE-f-H 783 - 29,069 29,852
Amortisation for the year REREHR 1,566 8,919 - 10,485
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HEM B E (FiE40) - = (29,609) (29,069)
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-Z£+t-A=1-H 2,349 8,919 - 11,268
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2010 RZE-TF+-A=1-H 68,121 88,381 - 156,502
At 31 December 2009 RZZENET-A=+-H 69,687 - - 69,687

FEBERREEEERAT
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20. . EF & »)

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continueq)

a)

b)

c)

Computer software development costs

Amortisation of computer software development costs is
recognised as cost of sales on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of not exceeding five years.
The computer software development costs were disposed
of through disposal of subsidiaries completed on 11 May
2010.

Exclusive right for piped natural gas
operation

It represented the exclusive right to operate in gas pipeline
infrastructure and provision of piped natural gas in Beiliu
City, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, the PRC for
a remaining period of 44 years as at 31 December 2010
and is amortised as cost of sales on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful live of 45 years.

Operating license for liquefied coalbed gas
logistics

It represented the operating license for liquefied coalbed
gas logistics in the PRC for a remaining period of 4.5 years
as at 31 December 2010 and is amortised as cost of sales
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful live of 5
years.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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21. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a)

As at 31 December 2009, total sum of approximately
RMB7,000,000 repensents deposits for the acquisition
of certain property, plant and equipment which comprise
of a set of plant and machinery for a production plant for
the manufacture of liquefied coalbed gas in Shanxi
Province of the PRC. The directors of the Company expect
that the production plant will start commercial production
in 2012. During the year ended 31 December 2010, the
full amount was used for settlement of payable for
property, plant and equipment due to the supplier.

Capital commitments of the Group contracted for in
respect of the remaining unpaid balances of approximately
RMB56,420,000 (2009: RMB49,420,000) for the above
acquisition are included and disclosed in note 44(a) to
the financial statements.

21.

Yrigtase - #aR Rk
B &

a)

RZZEENAF+=-_A=+—8"
A H AR#7,000,0007T T {E AU
BE T BEREZHEZF]
% AERFTBRILEERLERE
REETIBRHME kg - AR
REEEHLEIRER —T—
—FHRERELE HREE-Z
—ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE"
RIS EANBERMNHER
BRAWE - BEREHBHHE -

FRERIN 2 EHROARE
56,420,0007C (ZZEZENF + AR
#49,420,0007T) ° AEEFLZA
BRI BRFED ALK
BB HmEMT44(a) ©
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21. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

b)

As at 31 December 2010, RMB8,161,000 represents the
warranty money paid for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment under finance lease arrangements. On 2
December 2010, certain subsidiaries of the Group, as
lessees, entered into finance lease arrangements with
certain suppliers and a lessor, independent third parties,
under which the suppliers agreed to manufacture and
supply the liquefied natural gas tanks, gasified system
and equipment, liquefied natural gas trailers, towing
vehicles and liquefied natural gas refill stations (the
“Finance Lease Assets”) at the consideration of
approximately RMB16,400,000, RMB18,980,000,
RMB30,080,000, RMB10,725,000 and RMB2,970,000
respectively, for a total of approximately RMB79,155,000.
The lessor agreed to lease the Finance Lease Assets to
the Group for a total lease consideration of approximately
RMB95,461,000 payable within the term of 36 months
by monthly installments, with an option for the Group to
purchase the Finance Lease Assets at the end of the lease
term on the consideration of approximately RMB7,000.
Pursuant to the terms of conditions of the agreements,
the Group agreed to pledge the Finance Lease Assets to
the lessor and Luoyang Shunhe Energy Company Limited
(“Luoyang Shunhe”), a company indirectly wholly-owned
by Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng, entered into guarantees in
favour of the lessor to secure the due payment of the
outstanding lease consideration. The Group agreed to
provide a total sum of approximately RMB15,831,000 to
the lessor as warranty money, which is repayable on the
end of the lease period. As at 31 December 2010,
approximately RMB8,161,000 was paid.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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21. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

c) As at 31 December 2010, RMB4,050,000 from the
acquisition of subsidiaries represent the amount fully paid
for the acquisition of 9 towing vehicles for liquefied coalbed
gas logistics operation. The directors of the Company
expect that the towing vehicles will be delivered for use in
2011.

22. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF INTERESTS IN
LAND UNDER OPERATING LEASES

During the year, the Group paid a total sum of approximately
RMB10,462,000 (2009: RMB8,475,000) as deposits for the
acquisition of interests in land located in Yangcheng Shanxi
Province of the PRC which will be held for own use under
operating leases.

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

21. RMR  -#BRBREEZ

HE 4G

) RZE—ZF+-_A=+—8"

KEWRBHBLRANARKE
4,050,0007C BN g A B L B T
R EENORES| E 2 28E
NE®E - ARRERHAYES| S

BB —— R ER -

22. IS EEHV T LES

Z Rl &

KEE  AEEEREHEIMNHARKE
10,462,000C (ZZEZTNF : AR
8,475,0007T) LA 1E 72 W B i 78 HR B |
AEMGH s TR € - Z i

REBRBELERNFESR -

23. RIEAFIZRE

The Company

VNN
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETFIT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRRG - RRE 326,455 112,873
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23. RMBEATIZE’E »)

R-_E—ZETFE+_A=+—8 KB

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

At as 31 December 2010, the details of the subsidiaries are as

follows:

ARZEEMT ¢

Proportion of

equity interest hold

RELLS
Place of Particulars of issued Group’s
incorporation/ and paid-up share/ effective Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital interest Direct  Indirect place of operation
ERERL/ BRARBMAREK/ r5E TEEER/
HEAREHR b2 ERERFE BERER E# B EELE
Inboom Holdings Limited British Virgin 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - Not yet commenced
Islands (‘BVI") US$1.00 business/Hong Kong
EBRAHES 1REREET.00%T LERRER/ B
((RERZEHE]) LERK

Shanxi Yangcheng Shuntai PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% - Not yet commenced
Energy Development # HK$40,000,000 business/PRC
Company Limited (note (2)) #Eff 740,000,0005 7 LERRER/TE

RSz AR 3 &

BRAR (M (2)

Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% - Manufacture and sales of
Energy Development # HK$92,000,000 liquefied coalbed gas/PRC
Company Limited & 892,000,000 T RILEEREER
(note (@) and (c) HE/h

WLk Bz AR 3 &

BRAR (M (@)R(d)

Sino Treasure Global Group BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - Investment holding/

Limited (note (1) (P () RERAES US$1.00 Hong Kong
1REREET0ET REBKR/B%
ZEBR

Allied Rich Management BVI 3,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100% Investment holding/
Limited (note (f) RERZHSE of US$1.00 each Hong Kong

BEERERAA 3,000R FRAEE1.00% T RERR/ B
(&) 2 LRk

Shanxi Allied Rich Services PRC Registered capital of 100% — 100% Investment holding/PRC
Limited (note () Gl RMB5,000,000 RERR/HE

Wi = A AR S HMERARE
BRA (i (a) 5,000,0007C

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010



Notes to the Financial Statements

HA 5 4R 3R Pid 5

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 — T —ZF+ - A =+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

23. MBEATIZE’E »)

Proportion of
equity interest hold

RELLS
Place of Particulars of issued Group’s
incorporation/ and paid-up share/ effective Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital interest Direct  Indirect place of operation
HRERL/ BRARBMAREK/ bS] TEER/
HEAREH R aREAGFE ERER H# B EEsE
Guangxi Beiliu Gas Company PRC Registered capital of 97.5% - 97.5% Sales of piped natural gas
Limited (note (b)) # RMB20,000,000 and provision of gas
BRI RARRERAR (HiEb) FMERARE supply connection
20,000,0007T services/PRC
ERARRHER
BRER RS,/ HE
Hebei Shuntai Energy Resource PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% = Sales of liquefied coalbed
Company Limited & RMB25,000,000 gas/PRC
(note (a) and (g)) HHERARE RILEBREE/THE
M IERERARA A 25,000,00070
GEEEE)
Million Ideas Investment Limited BV 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% = Investment holding/
(note (f) RERTASE USD1.00 each Hong Kong
BERABRAR (W) 100/ B IR EE1.00% 7 REBR,/FE
LERK
Shanxi Wanzhi Business Services ~ PRC Registered capital of 100% - 100% Investment holding/PRC
Limited (note () HEl RMB500,000 REBR,/HE
WEEFEERBEERAR AMEAARS
(Pt @) 500,0007
Shanxi Wanzhi Logistics Limited PRC Registered capital of 83% = 83% Provision of liquefied coalbed
(note (c)) # RMB60,000,000 gas logistics services/PRC
WEEFmRERAE (M) HMERARY RERICEERDR
60,000,0007C T,/

TEEBERREEEERAAP

—E-TFFR
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23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Note:

a)

Registered under the laws of the PRC as a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise.

Registered under the laws of the PRC as a limited liability enterprise.

Registered under the laws of the PRC as a sino-foregin equity joint
venture.

The registered capital of Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy
Development Company Limited was HK$150,000,000 of which
HK$92,000,000 was paid up as at 31 December 2010.

The registered capital of Hebei Shuntai Energy Resource Company
Limited was RMB87,280,000 of which RMB25,000,000 was paid
up as at 31 December 2010.

Registered under the law of the BVI as a limited liability enterprise.

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

23. RMBEATIZE’E »)

a) REPFEARANBDEREMAINGR
BhE -

b) REPEARKMEZEZMAERE
Fhx-

o) REBPEARAMEDEEEMATING
Bz -

d  WEWKIEEERERER AR Z M
B AR AB150,000,0008 7 @ &£
92,000,000 LB R - E—ZF+— A
=+—B&H -

e) WILIEREERBR AR ZAMEREA
R#87,280,0007T + Hf AR ¥
25,000,000 ER-—ZE—TF+-H=
+— R % o

f) RERBRLHEAZAMBERER
2o

CAHHERE

The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARKETTT

Unlisted equity securities, at cost

FLEMBEAES  ZRE

- 4,800

The unlisted equity securities represented an 8% unlisted equity
interest in Wanzhi Logistics. As at 31 December 2009, the
investment is measured at cost less impairment because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so wide that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably. During the year, the Group
increased its interest in Wanzhi Logistics from 8% to 83%, thus
Wanzhi Logistics ceased to be an available-for-sale investment
and became a subsidiary of the Group. Details are set out in
note 39(a).

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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25. TRADING SECURITIES 25. 85 8%
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Listed securities, at fair value Em@EE BAFES
— Listed equity securities in the PRC, — Bz FHRRAZES -
at market value B EET - 582
26. INVENTORIES 26. &
a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial a) REEFBRARZEFERE:
position represent:
The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFIT
Raw materials R A4 907 —
Finished goods BUAY 1,155 4,976
2,062 4,976
PEBERREEEERAA

—E-TFFR
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26. & »

b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as b) EERARICGEESEZT
an expense is as follows: (N
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBEFIT
(Restated)
(reEH)
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZEREE 205,256 36,884
Write down of inventories WoREE — 126
205,256 37,010
Discontinued operations (note 11) BRI & 2R (FigE11)
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEREZEREE 7,427 20,438
Write down of inventories 0/ REN=Y - 153
7,427 20,591
212,683 57,601

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. FE U AR 7k By H fth FE U’k IR
The Group The Company
rEE NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-ZF | ZTTNF | Z2-BF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARETT | AR®TR AREFTT
Amounts due from subsidiaries &Y KTB A Al FAE
(note (a) and note 47(b)(iv)) ()
B 547 (D) (iv) - - 143,897 160,763
Amounts due from securities ~ FEUE AL L TRIE
broker firms (note (b)) (BF 3% (o)) - 19,040 - —
Amounts due from directors EWESEHRIE
(note 47(b)ii) (Bt 547 (b)) 470 - 42 -
Trade and bills receivables FEUER R R e R 1
(note (d)) (F 3 (a)) 7,129 4,875 - —
Other receivables R E O] 3,847 4,156 323 279
Amounts due from related JE U B8 & 12 R) 5008
companies (note 47(b)(i)) (K sE47 (D)) 6,138 3,610 - 3,074
Loans and receivables ERRERGIE 17,584 31,681 144,262 164,116
Advances to suppliers [r) 4 FE 7 32 5K 8,886 4,185 - -
Prepayment for acquisition WM - BER
of property, plant and FiE 2 BAFE
equipment 3,011 - - —
Other prepayments and deposits  E 4 T8 28 R ik & 7,176 3,410 331 489
Other tax recoverable H o ] W [0 F 18 5,525 — - —
42,182 39,276 144,593 164,605

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note:

a) Amounts due from subsidiaries

) An analysis of the amounts due from subsidiaries is as follows:

27. FE U AR 3k By 3 i PR U 3% 1R

= )
\//%’E! /

GER
) EUNEAARE
) ERHEARREZ AT

The Company

¥ NUNEC|
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREETTT
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUB 8 & R 5RIB 196,868 213,734
Less: Impairment loss B OREEE (52,971) (52,971)

143,897 160,763

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

ii) The movement of impairment loss on amounts due from
subsidiaries is as follows:

FEURF B A B R RN -
S AMREEREE -

i) EWHMBATRERESE S ®
g

The Company

RAF

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR AREETTT

At 1 January wn—A—H 52,971 —
Impairment loss recognised during 4 R 2 R (E & 18

the year - 52,971

At 31 December ®n+=—B=+—8 52,971 52,971

During the year ended 31 December 2009, an impairment
loss of approximately RMB52,971,000 was recognised in
respect of the amount due from Sino Treasure Global Group
Limited (“Sino Treasure”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company which acquired Allied Rich Group during the year
ended 31 December 2009 as detailed in note 39(b), as a
result of the impairment loss recognised on goodwill arising
from the acquisition of the Allied Rich Group as mentioned in
note 16.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note: (Continued)

b)

During the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group
traded securities through securities broker firms. As at 31 December
2009, a total amount of approximately RMB19,040,000 was due
from securities broker firms. The amounts are unsecured and bear
interest at prevailing market interest rates and can be withdrawn by
the Group at any time.

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from prepayments and
deposits, are expected to be recovered or recognised as an expense
within one year.

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables based on the
invoice date is as follows:

27.

R WSz e % B L il PR U 7R IR

(&)

s - (&)

b)

HE-T—ZTFR-_TThFT+-_RA=
FT—HIEFE  AEESEBESFLLT
BEZS RZEThF+-_A=1+—
H - BWESFELITZRERENAA
R #19,040,0007C ° 2 EH A AEK
- RRATTIEFIRG B R AR
BERFIZA o

BRIENFRIBRIZE SN - TRHIAT A YR
TR E A MR R IR A 7 — S AR [ Sl

YRR & B Rz 2 R o AT T
(REZRAH)

The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Within 1 month 1@ A KW 3,811 2,917
More than 1 month but less than 11& B 218318 A A
3 months 3,200 1,364
More than 3 months but less than 318 A %1868 A A
6 months - 594
More than 6 months but less than 6fE A1&E12E A A
12 months - 1,224
More than 12 months 1218 A LA E 118 8,292
7,129 14,391
Less: Impairment loss (note (e)) B OREEE (MiFEe) - (9,516)
7,129 4,875

The Group generally grants credit period of 30 to 180 days to its
customers. The Group may, on a case by case basis and after
evaluation of the business relationship and credit worthiness, extend
the credit period upon the customers’ requests.

AEBE ML FTREFI0E180HEER
H o REENIREEERELE - RRNGT
HEBEERMEERZ  BREFERER

s
RS

o

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note: (Continued)

27. FE U AR 3k By 3 i PR U 3% 1R

iz - (&)

e)  The movement of impairment loss on trade and bills receivables is FEUEEFCREBEZ Z8MT ¢
as follows:
The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
At 1 January wn—HA—H 9,516 7,634
Write back of impairment loss during FAERE ZREETE
the year - (1,249)
Impairment loss recognised during FRERZBIEEBE
the year - 3,131
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) o E B8 A R (i sE40) (9,516) —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 - 9,516

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade debtors directly (see note 2(k)(i)).

Write back of impairment loss on trade receivables represents the
recovery of the debts due from those trade receivables previously
considered to be impaired.

As at 31 December 2009, trade and bills receivables of the Group
amounting to approximately RMB9,516,000 were individually
determined to be impaired and full impairment had been made.
These individually impaired receivables had been outstanding for
over 180 days as at the end of the reporting period or were due
from companies with financial difficulties. Accordingly, specific
allowances for doubtful debts of approximately RMB3,131,000 were
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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R W BR R (S 1R 18 [ 4 UK (21 ST AT R A
BRI E 2 FEURBR SUPT RB IR -

R-BEZAFE+-_A=+—8 ~&EE
ZEBERREREEODARE
9,516,000 T E BRI & E ARE - Wi
EREEE - RREHR - ZSERRE
EFEKRRE/REE180R » siBHIR
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 27. BE Wit B 5% R B fith FE Uy SR 1R

(4&)
Note: (Continued) MiaE (&)
f) Trade receivables that are not impaired f) SRR 1 L BR X
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually WRBARARMER R AR E R AR 2
nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: HRECOITANT -
The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBEFT
Neither past due nor impaired REE R AR RE 7,011 4,875
Less than 1 month past due mE O R1E AR - =
1 to 3 months past due w1 = 3@ A - =
Over 3 months past due %1 B B 1B 31E A 118 —
118 —
7,129 4,875
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide REBIRARBENRBBER S ERER
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. P R%ERFEIAEEREH -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to an BEEERBENEYRT S R —R 8
independent customer that have a good track record with the group. AEEEERTABERENBILIRS ©
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment BREBTLER EEERRETHZE
allowance is necessary in respect of this balance as there has not ERERRERE  REAZEEEEYT
been a significant change in credit quality and the balance is still ENREBANEL  MEZELERTDERA
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral AT 2HURE - AREEWESEZEEH
over these balances. ZAEMERG o

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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28. VALUE-ADDED TAX RECOVERABLE

28. AT ER{ER R

The Group
rEE

2010 2009
—g-%% | —zEas
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR | AmwTr

Value-added tax refund receivable JEUIZ B R R TR - 1,990
29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. B &RBE&EFEHY
The Group The Company
rEE VNN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—g-g5| —Tzar| —s-sf| —TIas
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR) AR®T]| AR®BTx ARETTT

Deposits with banks RITHER - 30,000 - —
Cash at bank and on hand IRITMFEE 2 23,567 66,292 7,658 29,443
Cash and cash equivalents HehFSZEEY 23,567 96,292 7,658 29,443

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with a maturity of three months
or less at prevailing market interest rates of 1.35% per annum.
The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair
value.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. EfIIRER B A FE - FRIR
The Group The Company
AEH AAT
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-F5 | ZTTNF | ZB-2F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR | ARBTE | AR®TR ARBTR

Trade payables FEfHER TR 30,886 9,515 - -
Amount due to a subsidiary ENLIENGIE S

(note 47(b)(iv)) (K sE47(D)(iv) - - 484 -
Amounts due to directors ENESHRE

(note 47(b)(i) (Bt 547 (D) iii) 27,647 1,548 380 731
Amount due to a non-controlling FEff—FRIHB AR Z

shareholder of a subsidiary FEERE IR R FIB

(note 47(b)(v)) (Kt 3E47(0)(V) 1,569 1,569 - —
Accrued salaries R a 1,035 1,388 298 =
Payables for acquisition WHEmE - BER

of property, plant REGEMNTIE

and equipment 24,562 47,910 - —
Accrued expenses st Rk

and other payables H A e 5008 2,418 2,037 685 954

Financial liabilities measured R EK AT E

at amortised cost JEBEE 88,117 63,967 1,847 1,685
Deposits received from BT EBEREP
customers W e
— Computer software — B - 47,134 - =
— Liquefied coalbed gas — RItEER 12,241 13,794 - =
— Piped natural gas — EBRAR 2,851 3,175 - =
Other taxes payables H A RIR 4,806 347 592 —
108,015 128,417 2,439 1,685

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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30. FE fF AR % B H it FE 4 B IR

= )
\//%’E! /

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Note: BT -

ENERRREOTNT GREZAH)

The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date is as
follows:

The Group
TEE

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Within 1 month 1EAR 4,955 —
More than 1 month but less than 3 months 1@ A& E3EAR 10,068 9,515
More than 3 months but less than 6 months 3E A% E6EAN 8,224 —
More than 6 months but less than 12 months  6f& A& {E121& A & 7,637 —
More than 12 months HBiE12fE A 2 =
30,886 9,515

e R R L A FORTE S R — F B E
HHERBWARAREREE -

The trade and other payables are expected to be settled or recognised
as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

31. DEFERRED INCOME 31. GBI A
The Group
REH

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ARBEF T

At 1 January R—H—H 8,832 3,713
Credited to the income statement FTABRE (3,937) (3,713)
Income deferred during the year FRIELEW A 703 8,832
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) & KB 2 7] (Bi5E40) (5,598) —
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H - 8,832

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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88 17 Bt H i fi5 X

R-E—ZF+_R=+—8 "  EE
EWRITREMERNOT

32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 32.

As at 31 December 2010, the bank and other loans are
repayable as follows:

The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBEFIT
Secured bank loans repayable: REREHEMRITER
Within 1 year or on demand 1FRNHBRZERESR 10,000 2,000
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F B E2F R 8,000 —
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F £ E5F K - 13,000
After 5 years 5% LA £ - =
18,000 15,000
Unsecured other loans repayable: AEEEKBEMER
Within 1 year or on demand 1F AN ERERKER 50,000 50,000
68,000 65,000
Less: Amount due within 1 year W mBAE T —FRE
shown under current liabilities <RI (60,000) (52,000)
Amount due after 1 year shown under JERBIBE TN —F1& 2 H
non-current liabilities 2 FIA 8,000 13,000
Note: B 5T -
a)  Bankloans bear interest at variable interest rates ranging from 7.02% a) IRITEFENFEF7.02%E11.156%

“ETAF  4.50%E9.82%) 2 FE
FEEE -

t0 11.15% (2009: 4.50% to 9.82%) per annum.

b)  RE{SH B E AR S E N R 2 JF R
THBAE (—HME ARz IEERK
RRFAEEEMRITROEARER) 2
HAEFIZ T F5.63%E7.28% (=
ZTAEF : 5.69%ZE7.12%) 2 [EE =
B e

b) Other loans are due to the non-bank finance company, who is a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and holds 17% equity
interest in Wanzhi Logistics, in the PRC not connected with the
Group and which bear interest at fixed interest rates ranging from
5.63% to 7.28% (2009: 5.69% to 7.12%) per annum.

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continueq)

Note: (Continued)

)] Except for the unsecured other loans of RMB50,000,000 (2009:
RMB50,000,000), RMB13,000,000 (2009: RMB 15,000,000) of the
bank borrowings were secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with a total carrying amount of approximately
RMB38,161,000 (2009: RMB41,259,000) and prepaid lease
payments for land under operating leases of approximately
RMB8,705,000 (2009: RMB10,295,000). The remaining bank
borrowing of RMB5,000,000 (2009: RMBNIl) was arose from the
acquisition of subsidiaries for the year (see note 39(a)) and was
secured by the pledge of the plant and equipment of a company
owned by a former shareholder of the Million Ideas Group, who
became the owner of the Company upon the conversion of the
convertible bonds. As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group
did not have any undrawn banking facilities.

d) None of the bank and other borrowings contain a repayment on
demand clause as defined in HK — Int 5, Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause.

e) The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the bank and
other borrowings approximate their fair values.

PROMISSORY NOTES

On 2 July 2009, the Company issued unsecured redeemable
Zero coupon promissory notes as part of the consideration for
the acquisition of the 100% equity interest in Allied Rich Group
as mentioned in note 39(b). The promissory notes are not
transferable and are repayable in one lump sum on the second
anniversary of the date of issue of these promissory notes. The
Company has the right to redeem the promissory notes at its
principal amount prior to the maturity date by servicing prior
written notice to the note-holders.

The fair value of the promissory notes with a total principal
amount of approximately HK$67,416,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB59,345,000) at the date of issue was
HK$55,691,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB49,024,000)
which was calculated based on a professional valuation
performed on 14 March 2010 by Asset Appraisal based on the
effective interest method. The effective interest rate of the
promissory notes was determined to be 10.05% per annum.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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32.

33.

BITREMBRR =

BeE - (48)

c)  BREEA L EHAMEHKARKS0,000,000
T (ZZEThF + AR¥50,000,0007T)
Hh -+ $R1T71E IR AR 13,000,0007T (=
TTHF - ARB15,000,0007T) AR
EEREAELN A ARS8,161,0007T
(ZZEZNF  AREE41,259,0007T) 2
Y2 - RS R GR A R E RO TIER
TS # A R#8,705,000T (Z2F
HEF - ARM10,295,0007T) 1EH I o
HEIRITIERARES,000,0007T (ZF
TNF - ARBEZ D) THEF NI
BARIFTSIBU(RMIFE39@) + WIEE
EEBIARE (RER AR ESEK A
RARZEEBAAN) THRB N Q2 #eE

RIBEAER N_T—TER-F
TAF+_A=+—H FTEEVTEFT
ARIEMZBITEE -

d  RIOREMBEFRELSEERESS
S MBHmR 22 — EBRAHES
I BERY Z2SRIE B TR E R ERN IR
FITTE 3% () 42 2 SIE B I55K

e EERA RITMHMERZKREESR
HRFEEE -

ARRE

R-ZEZNFLA-H  KAAFHH
FE39(b) AT it st F Bt = 2 (1100 % A% AN e
mMBETERKBZAIBRETREE AN
T o RN BB AIEERANET
REARERRE _BFEE KB
B8 - ARFABEREEBFINRNERS
BABXRETMRA - HAEASEEEE
A% H K & BB B K O 2% -

BEEEFENR _ZT—ZTF=ZA+N
BIZEBRAEEETZ EEME &
HEEARS B%84967,416,000% 7T (48
B4 AR ¥59,345,0007T) R ETTH
B 2 A F{EA55,691,00078 7T (FEE R
HANER#49,024,0007T) ° ARZEZE
BRI K BT A10.05% °©
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3.EKREE »

RMB’000
ARBEFT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2009 RZEZNF—HA—BZEAE -

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(b)) W M B 2~ 7] (MY FE39(b)) 49,024

Interest expenses FERX 2,368

Exchange adjustments ME 5 AR (96)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2009 RZZEENF+ZA=+—AHAK

and 1 January 2010 —E—EF—A—HZEHEE 51,296

Interest expenses FMERAX 2,159

Exchange adjustments M 3 2 (39)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) & F B R 7 (g 7E40) (53,416)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2010

R-E-TF+_A=t+—HBZKEHE —

On 9 February 2010, a sale and purchase agreement was
entered into between the Company and the note-holders to
dispose of the Group’s 100% equity interest in Shine Science
BVI Group, for a consideration of RMB60,000,000. The
consideration was satisfied by the discharge of the Company
from its payment obligation under the promissory notes. The
fair value of the promissory notes at the completion date of
disposal of Shine Science BVI Group was HK$62,960,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB53,416,000). The resulting
gain on disposal of subsidiaries recognised in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity as a transaction with owners.

Details are set out in note 40.

BEA AR

RZZFE—ZFEF_ANEB  ARAIEE
VEEWE  ALELASE
[ 72 Shine Science BVI £ & 2 100% /%
Az RERARK60,000,000
T BAREBEZENARXRBBRARD
AIRBEAREEBRNRZEE - AHE
#E 7 & Shine Science BVI & B 52K
B 8 2 A F{E 562,960,000/ 7T (FHE
PR # AR¥53,416,0007T) ° HILELE
ZEEMNBARIKEREEERED
RABRBHEBEBEAETZIRS B

BEE BRI 40 ©

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 34. " @R {RF
The movements of the liability component, derivative AMRESMNAERHD - STETAESS
component and equity component of the convertible bonds RSN 2 ZEBETNT

are as follows:

Liability Derivative Equity
component of component of component of
convertible  convertible convertible

bonds bonds bonds Total
TRRESN TRRESHN TRARESH

BEDG TEIARNG M5 Bt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETE ARETR ARETR

Principal amount of convertible AT # A% &5 R 21T

bonds at date of issue HHM AL 8 128,573 (10,770) 47,197 165,000
Transaction costs RGN (386) - (142) (528)
Convertible bonds issued BEITABRKRES 128,187 (10,770) 47,055 164,472
Interest expenses FIERE 3,173 — — 3,173
Conversion of bonds BHRES (84,750) 7,004 (31,245) (108,991)
Fair value gain N EYE - (3,223) — (3,223)
Exchange adjustments BE R (3,473) 368 — (3,105)
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—TF

+-A=+—H 43,137 (6,621) 15,810 52,326
On 16 July 2010, the Company issued a HK$ denominated RZE—FFLA+/"H  XARIET
HK$ settled zero coupon convertible bonds due on 15 July N4 %EA187,500,000/ 7T (FRERAR
2013 for an aggregate principal amount of HK$187,500,000 #165,000,0007T) ZE 8 —H‘%ﬂﬁﬁ% °
(equivalent to RMB165,000,000). ZENMBRESFANETAEREE  ©

—E-=FtHA+RHARH -

Pursuant to the bonds subscription agreement, the convertible BRBEFREWZ  TRRKRES :

bonds are:

a) convertible at the option of the bondholder into a) FAHEFBEARZZE-—ZTFL
937,500,000 fully paid ordinary shares at anytime from A+<BZ2=% *Ei‘tﬁl +5
16 July 2010 to 15 July 2013 at a conversion price of HE R M E R - %3 A%0.20
HK$0.20 per share; BT B R E®E B A

937,500,0004% 2 & & & 3@ AL

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

b) redeemable at the option of the Company at any time
from 16 July 2010 to 15 July 2013 at 100% of the principal
amount by serving at least 10 days’ prior written notice
to the bondholder.

Otherwise the convertible bonds will be redeemed on maturity
at a value equal to its principal amount outstanding. The
settlement of the convertible bonds will be in HK$.

The convertible bonds have been split between a liability
component, a derivative component and an equity component
as follows:

i) Liability component represents the present value of the
contractually determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the prevailing market interest rate at that
time applicable to instruments of comparable credit status
and providing substantially the same cash flows.

The interest charged for the period is calculated by
applying an effective interest rate of approximately 8.67%
to the liability component since the convertible bonds were
issued.

ii) Derivative component represents the option of the
Company to redeem the convertible bonds, whose fair
values of HK$12,239,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB10,770,000) and HK$7,823,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB6,621,000) on issuance and the end
of the reporting period respectively are determined with
reference to a valuation performed by Asset Appraisal.
Binomial model is used for the valuation of the derivative
component and the major inputs into the model are as
follows:

34. \[ERREF =

b)

AHARREREENESFAA
EHELRERAMIOBNZEBA
% R_T-—TFLATRBEE
TE-=FtATHEBMENE
RHE - ZASE2EED -

BRI ATRREFEREE A RASE
RAREBERNSENEERD - ATk
BHEBNBTHEE -

AMRESFE s /U TEERD - 7
HET AR R ED

BESNAZRBERERARAES
A& L BE MR R HEARR
RNRE RN TR ZRITHEHN
o MBENREANEEANRE
REem2BIE -

HR YR M BIR IR B AT AR (&
FEITEHE  HRESNOER
#18.67 % EFRFIKGHE -

PTET AIBMHIEARATER AR
REFHMEAE - JHRIRESFNE
TREREHRNATFENZE
BEMGMEOEERNTE - 95
712,239,000/ HHERHOAR
#10,770,0007T) X 7,823,000/
T (HEERHARYE,621,000
J0) ° PTE T A A HE T ER
ZIHARE - ZEANETELRY
T

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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4. KR REF

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

i) (Continued) iy (&)
31 December
16 July 2010 2010
—E-2F —E-2F
tA+X<B +=ZHA=+-—H
Stock price f&(E HK$ 0.1675 7T HK$ 0.187% 7T
Conversion price BB HK$ 0.2078 7T HK$ 0.207% 7T
Volatility AL 50% 47%
Dividend yield % 8 W e 0% 0%
Option life HAREEARR 3 years®F 2.5 yearsfF
Risk free rate #= [3 f 1) 2 1% 1%

i)

Equity component represents the option of the
bondholders to convert the convertible bonds into equity
of the Company.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component is
charged to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the
liability component and amortised over the period of the
lives of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Since the issue date, an aggregate principal amount of
HK$124,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB109,560,000, had been converted at HK$0.20 per
share into an aggregate of 622,500,000 ordinary shares
of the Company. As at 31 December 2010, the convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$63,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB55,440,000) remained outstanding.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010

i

R F D EESF B AR AR
BHRERBARNRERAEE -

BT TRRESEB RSN
ABFHEFOBEE S B0 D B
=B ERESHH - BESBH
BRI 25 AE R R
% - MAEDHARZRHRA
BB 2 EEE  ERT
PR R B I % 2
o

BREITHEE BXAXSEAR
124,500,000 7T (FEERHAR
#109,560,0007T) Z A A IR (& &
BRESR0208 T2 EREREA
4 ££622,500,0000% & A 7] & i
KeR=ZE—ZFF+_A=+—
H - %8844 %863,000,00075
T (FBE R ARMES5,440,000
TL) Z AR ES o
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35. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5. IREMBRAKRAZHE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #

a) Current income tax recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the movements during
the year is as follows:

a) RAEVBARRKRAER 2 BNHIFT
BREEFREFHET -

The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—ZE-Z5F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBEFIT
PRC EIT RS FTIS R
At 1 January Kn—H—H 4,121 1,206
Provision for the year NG 3,547 4,535
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREBENR 924 236
EIT paid for the year REEEHBNDEMRSH (6,982) (1,856)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHNB A A
(note 40) (Fft3E40) (1,676) —
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H (66) 4,121
Income tax recoverable RERE BB AR R AR
recognised in the consolidation Z AT B AR 1S A
statement of financial position (687) —
Income tax payable recognised RERE BB AR R AR
in the consolidated statement ) AP
of financial position 621 4,121
Net tax (recoverable)/payable TR B 5 (AU, N FTISRL) (66) 4,121
PEBERREEEERAA

—E-TFFR
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35. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED B.FEMERAIRAZHE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) "]
b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities h) ERREEHIESER
recognised Bf&
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) AR R PRI IELER
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BEE/ (BR) 2RO RERTF
position and movements during the year are as follows: WHEEEST -
Fair value
adjustment
on

Fair value prepaid lease  Fair value
adjustment payments for  adjustment  Impairment

on property  land under on loss on
plantand  operating intangible trade
equipment leases assets  receivables Total
LEREAT

UESE B TR
Rz Bz HBPEREZ  BUEX
AYEHE  ATESRE  AVEEE AEER it
RVBOOO  RMB'0O0  RMBOOD  RMB'OOO  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR  ARRTR ARETn  ARBTR

At 1 January 2009 RZZENE-F-H - - - 1,169 1,169
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(b) WM B 2R (HEEao(n) (141) ) (17,618) - (17,761)
Credited to consolidated income statement st AZAWER 55 = 19 258 509

At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 R=%%

F-55-F- (86) O (1742 1407 (16,083

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39 W B LR (3o(a) 329 - (24,325) - (23,99)
Credited/(charged) to consolidated HA/ (BB EANEE

income statement (1) - 2,621 (409) 2,201

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HERBAR (fzE40) - - - (1,018 (1,018)

At 31 December 2010 RZZ-SE+-F=1-H 232 2) (39,126) - (38,896)

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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35. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

b)

Deferred tax assets and liabhilities
recognised (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

—EET A=t HLEFE

5. FEMBRARAZME

39 ))
h) EEREEHRIESER
BE®w

IO RBt 8 7% s 5 HRE TR
RGO -

2010 2009
—E-FF —“EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥F T
Deferred tax assets recognised in NS i"xﬂk MEA
the consolidated statement WRBELETHIBE E
of financial position 302 1,427
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in RERE BB A R A
the consolidated statement WRBELEHIBAE
of financial position (39,198) (17,510)
(38,896) (16,083)
c) Deferred tax assets not recognised c) EIRERBZELEBIES
-3
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note ;ﬁﬁ”ﬁ;‘y\[&ﬁ?g( )RR - R
2(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in EEVEBIAN T —ZF+—
respect of cumulative tax losses of approximately A=4+— E;ﬁgj%uﬁ,‘cgl@gﬁ}gm/\
RMB6,115,000 (2009: RMB13,428,000) as at 31 R#6,115,0007T (ZEZNE -
December 2010 as it is not probable that future taxable AER#43,428,000) B2 EEFR
profits against which the tax losses can be utilised will be IHEE AN EMRABREER
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. NERERAKAfeE I EE
B2 RRERB R o
d) REREEHRIEESE

d)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2010, temporary differences relating to
the undistributed profits of subsidiaries since 1 January
2008 amounted to approximately RMB13,591,000 (2009:
RMB4,898,000). Deferred tax liabilities of approximately
RMB1,359,000 (2009: RMB490,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable
on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it has been determined that it is probable that profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable.

R_ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H"
HB AR TN \F—A—
B LA R ) 7 2 B i B 7 B8 A0 T B
MEEEL A ARE13,591,00070
(ZZEZNF : AR 4,898,000
T0) ° MARBDEZERE BMNH
BN IERRELEHBAEY
AR#1,359,000C (ZZEZ A,
£ AR¥490,0000T) @ RERZ
RAREHZEMHBRRMRE
BE - MEFRRERST IR
AR ZRERDERBERF

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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36. B& K il

a) The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

a)

AEBFEERSEAKRED R
FUORFREBZEEHNES
REEHRA - NABER
HARE DR FNRFR 2 BB
BEIIT

Convertible
Share Contributed Translation bonds Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
ik
RtEE AAB& HERE ERRE  EHER Eh
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARSTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 Jenuary 2009 K-TEAE-A-A 147878 - By _ B3 109478
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Loss for the year FEEEE - - - - (6674) (6674
Other comprehensive income Rt 2EUE
Exchange differences on translation of financial ~ #EEKHEZ2HEH
statements to presentation currency LEREE - - (324) = - (324)
Total comprehensive income 2ENREE - - (324) - (66742 (67,066)
Transactions with owners BEEALR S
Issue of new shares ¥k
— Acquisition of subsidiaries — WERELT 127,653 - - — - 127653
— Open offer — RR%E 62,066 - - - - 62,066
— Share placement —RIOEE 13972 - - - - 13972
Transaction costs attributable to issue EAHRAERS
of new shares RHMAE (4,201) - - - - (4,.201)
Total transactions with owners REFAZR 748 199490 - - = - 19949
At 31 December 2009 RZESNETZA=1-H 347,368 = (3,387) — (102,079 241,902

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continueq) 6. FEXRGEIG =
a)  (Continued) a (&)
Convertible
Share Contributed ~Translation bonds Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
TER
ROGE HARSE BRERE E5RE  EHEE Eh
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETH
At 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2010 R-ESNETZA=1-H 347,368 - (3,387) - (102079 241,902
k=%-T4-A-H
Comprehensive income kS
Loss for the year FEEFR - - - - (13618 (13618)
Other comprehensive income Ht2EkE
Exchange differences on translation AEHRAREZRER
of financial statements LEAED
o presentation currency - - 1,956 - - 1,956
Total comprehensive income 2ENREE - - 1,956 - (13618 (11662
Transactions with owners REAAZR 748
Issue of new shares ikt
— Share placement —RIEE 34,012 - - - - 34,012
— Conversion of convertible bonds — BRTARES 103,626 - - (31249 = 72,381
Transaction costs attributable to issue FTHROEERARE
of new shares (474) - - - - (474)
Recognition of equity component BT ERERM
of convertble bonds i - - - 4T - 4705
Disposal of subsidiarles HERBAT = 37490 = = = 37,490
Total transactions with owners HEFAZRSAE 137,164 37,490 = 15,810 - 190464
At 31 December 2010 ROB-BET-RTH-0 4853 340 (143) 15810 (15607 40704

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 6. BERGEER
b) Authorised and issued share capital b) EEREBFITIRE
The Group and the Company
AEERAQT
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
BB &R -] BmEE T8
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
TR AR%¥®Tx T ARBTT
Authorised — Ordinary A — SR EE
shares of 0.0187T 2
HK$0.01 each: LB
At 1 January R—A—HBRK
and 31 December +=—A=+—H 5,000,000 53,000 5,000,000 53,000
Issued and fully BETRHE -
paid — BREE
Ordinary shares 0.018TZ
of HK$0.01 each: TR
At 1 January R—A—H 1,361,815 12,921 620,600 6,399
Issue of shares by FERRMOES
share placement BITH D 272,360 2,395 124,120 1,091
Issue of shares by FERAREE
open offer BITHR (D - - 371,308 3,267
Issue of shares BUEEHT B A A
for acquisition BITHR D
of subsidiaries - - 245,787 2,164
Issue of shares upon  FLEE 2 A] #2 % (& 55
conversion BITH D
of convertible bonds 622,500 5,365 — —
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H 2,256,675 20,681 1,361,815 12,921

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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36. BX K w2
EERCEITRE @

36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

b) Authorised and issued share capital h)

(Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

On 3 July 2009, the Company allotted and issued
245,786,516 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the issue
price of HK$0.60 per share for a total of HK$147,472,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB129,817,000) as partial
settlement of the consideration for the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in Allied Rich Group as disclosed in note
39(b).

On 22 September 2009, the Company allotted and issued
371,308,507 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by way of
an open offer at HK$0.20 per share (“Open Offer”). Under
the terms of the Open Offer, the consideration of
174,943,445 offer shares of approximately
HK$34,989,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB30,782,000) was satisfied by a discharge of the
Company from its payment obligation in respect of the
amount due to Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng of approximately
RMB30,782,000 (see note 47(b)(iii)). The consideration
for the remaining 196,365,062 offer shares under the
Open Offer was paid in cash of HK$39,273,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB34,551,000).

On 17 December 2009, the Company allotted and issued
124,120,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by way of
a placement at HK$0.138 per share for cash for a total of
HK$17,129,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB15,063,000).

LRRFAEANERESTREIR
ZEEMRARREHLERE
B—RZEE - AT B
ARBZRBREEDFARFE

o

B

RZEZNFHEH=H ' &KXAF
PAZE1T{E & 1% 0.60/%8 T hid 2 & 3%
1T#81E147,472,000/8 7C (FBE R
HARE129,817,0007T) HY
245,786,516 FAXEE0.0175 7T
ZEER - EMKESESE
100% AR 2 BHRIE - 715
# RN EE39(D) ©

RZZEZENFNLAZ+=H ' =&
NAEFEBAEIR0.208 TTETA
s ((RAEED 2N B
% & 2£17371,308,507 I & I E
0.0 Lz EMA% - RIBFAFE
& 76K 0 174,943, 44503 E /%
1 2 R 1B#934,989,000% 7t (HHE
R AR #30,782,0007T) i 1B AR
BREMNTABEEZREHOAR
#30,782,0007T 2 i R & E M (&
R EE4A70)i) © ABIBET
H #:106,365,06288 B E R D 2
B 2A39,273,000/8 TR & (HE
RHARBES4,551,0007T) LA+t e

RZZEZNF+-_A++H " K
NA)FEBAFRR0.138 8 LT
&2 H A BOBERFIT
124,120,0008% B A% E {E0.0175 7T
2 @I LA#E17,129,000/8 T
(HHE R4 AR ¥15,063,0007T)
B o

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

b)

Authorised and issued share capital
(Continued)

On 24 February 2010, the Company, Mr. Wang Zhong
Sheng and Jumbo Lane Investments Limited (“Jumbo
Lane”), a company beneficially owned by Mr. Wang Zhong
Sheng, entered into a placing and subscription agreement
with a placing agent for; (i) the placement of 63,690,000
and 208,670,000 ordinary shares of the Company owned
by Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng and Jumbo Lane respectively
at a price of HK$0.152 per share (the “Placing”); and (i)
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng and Jumbo Lane have agreed to
subscribe for 63,690,000 and 208,670,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company respectively at a price of
HK$0.152 per share (the “Subscription”). The Placing and
Subscription were completed on 1 March 2010 and 8
March 2010 respectively. The net proceeds from the
Subscription amounted to approximately HK$41,399,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB36,407,000). The
proceeds are used for the development of liquefied
coalbed gas operation.

On 19 July 2010, 17 November 2010 and 23 December
2010, the convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$58,000,000, HK$60,000,000 and
HK$6,500,000 respectively were converted into the
Company'’s shares at a conversion price of HK$0.20 per
share. As a result of the conversion, 622,500,000 ordinary
shares were issued.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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—E-EFT-AST-ALEE

6. BERGEER

b)

EERECBRITEREAE @)

RZE—ZEF-_A=-+WEA &
NR - TEBLRERTEBELE
EnMAENBEERERBRAA
(&) H—RREREFTL—
HRE RRERE BEB)
1ZER0A2B T2 EREE TR
BrRAEREESNEEN
63,690,0000% X 208,670,0008%
RAREBR(BLE])  Ri)E
BB EREERENE0.152
B IT 2 B 9 Bl R 63,690,000
% X2 208,670,0000% A A &) ¥ &
R ([RE]) - BERREBE D
AR -—E—FF=HA—AK_-F
—ZF=ANBEK - REMFT
SFIBF R4 A41,399,0007 7T
(FHERH ARES6,407,000
TT) ° TS RUE AR ERBCE
[ERER -

RZZE—ZTFLA+NA
f?EJer thE&f? —
F+ZAZ+=H Ae¥ELH
o Bl A58,000,000% 7T »
60,000,0007% 7T }26,500,000/ 7T
ZA]mRES - BER0.20E T
2R EERAEARNTRND - &
BRENE - RRRIMBEBEITER
f% % 5|622,500,0000% °

Ft At *H
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36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

6. FEXRGEEM

c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

i)

i)

iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of share
premium if (i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or
(ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital account.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the amount of
reserves of subsidiaries that have been capitalised
as a result of the merger.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents deemed
contribution from owner of the Company which is
based on the excess of the fair value of the
consideration above the net assets disposed from
disposal of subsidiaries to the owners of the
Company.
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36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

iv)

General reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC, each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to appropriate at least 10% of its after-tax profit (after
offsetting prior years’ losses), based on the PRC
statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) and financial regulations
applicable to PRC enterprises, to the general reserve
until the balance of the fund reaches 50% of the
PRC subsidiary’s registered capital. Thereafter, any
further appropriation can be made at the directors’
discretion.

The general reserve fund can be utilised to offset
the prior years’ losses, or be utilised to increase the
capital on the condition that the general reserve shalll
be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital after such increase.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

6. BERGEER

c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

v) Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policy set out in note 2(w).

vi) Convertible bonds reserve

The convertible bonds reserve represents the value
of unexercised equity component of convertible
bonds issued by the Company. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set

out in note 2(n).

vii) Distributable reserve

At 31 December 2010, the aggregate amount of the
Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders was approximately RMB367,404,000
(2009: RMB241,902,000) computed in accordance
with the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s articles of association.
This includes the Company’s share premium of
approximately RMB484,532,000 (2009:
RMB347,368,000) less translation reserve and
accumulated losses of approximately
RMB1,431,000 (2009: RMB3,387,000) and
RMB115,697,000 (2009: RMB102,079,000)
respectively and is available for distribution provided
that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed, the Company will be able to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course

of business.
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6. FEXRGEEM

36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

d)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher stakeholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as the Group’s
bank and other borrowings, promissory notes and
convertible bonds less cash and cash equivalents over
its equity attributable to owners of the Company.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
d) Capital management (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from 2009, was to
maintain a gearing ratio within 20%. The details of the
gearing ratio of the Group is as follows:

6. FEXRGEIG =

d)
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2010 2009
= —ETENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
tir=a AREF R ARBEFT
Bank and other RIT R EHMER
borrowings 32 68,000 65,000
Promissory notes &R 33 - 51,296
Convertible bonds Al E 5 34 43,137 =
Less: Cash and cash BB Rk
equivalents HeEEY 29 (23,567) (96,292)
Net debt FaE 87,570 20,004
Equity attributable PiN/NETE7Z =N
to owners FElEHE =
of the Company 433,034 267,322
Total capital BER 520,604 287,326
Gearing ratio EARBELE 16.82% 6.96%
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 July 2003 for
the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible
persons for their contributions to the Group. The Scheme will
expire on 27 July 2013. Under the Scheme, the Company may
grant options to any person who is a director or an employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of the Group or any entity in
which the Group holds an equity interest, or any class of
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, manager or officer of
the Group or any entity in which the Group holds an equity
interest.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed ten percent of
the total shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed thirty percent of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each eligible person in
any 12-month period must not exceed one percent of the total
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of the individual limit must be subject to shareholders’
approval.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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37.

38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continueq)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 as consideration for the
grant. In respect of option holders other than suppliers and
customers, option may be exercised, which shall commence 1
year from the date on which that option is granted and shall
expire on the earlier of the last day of (i) a 10-year period from
the date of such grant and (ii) 10 years from 28 July 2003. In
respect of option holders who are suppliers and customers,
such period shall commence on the date of grant and expire 1
year thereafter. The subscription price is determined by the
Board, but shall not be less than the highest of (a) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of that
option, which must be a business day; (b) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of that option; and (c)
the nominal value for the time being of each share of the
Company. There are no outstanding share option as at
31 December 2010 and 2009.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest
immediately.
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DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN

(Continued)

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC participate
in a mandatory central pension scheme organised by the PRC
Government for certain of its employees, the assets of which
are held separately from those of the Group. Contributions made
are based on a percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the scheme. The employer’s
contributions vest fully once they are made.

Under the above schemes, retirement benefits of existing and
retired employees are payable by the relevant scheme
administrators and the Group has no further obligations beyond
the annual contributions.

The aggregate amounts of employer’s contributions by the
Group in respect of retirement benefits scheme dealt with in
profit or loss for the year are disclosed in note 7(a) to these
financial statements.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for its
employees in respect of the subsidiaries outside Hong Kong
and the PRC. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2010 and 2009 in respect of the retirement of
its employees.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

a) Million Ideas Group

On 16 July 2010, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
in Million Ideas Group from an independent third party for
a consideration of RMB178,000,000 satisfied by
convertible bonds of approximately HK$187,500,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB165,000,000) and
RMB13,000,000 in cash. As a result, the Group further
increase its equity interest in Wanzhi Logistics from 8%
to 83%. Million Ideas Group is mainly engaged in the
provision of liquefied coalbed gas logistics services in the
PRC. This acquisition has been accounted for by the
acquisition method of accounting.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. KEEPH B AT (&)

a) Million ldeas Group (Continued) a) BEEEH@®
Acquiree’s
carrying
amounts
immediately
before Fair value Fair
combination adjustments values
REEHA
s
ZEAE DNRERE AFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETT
Property, plant and equipment ERE Y e
(note 18(a)) (FiF5E18(a)) 19,633 (1,317) 18,316
Intangible asset B EAE
— Operating license for — RILEE R
liquefied coalbed gas 2ENR
logistics (note 20) (B 320) - 97,300 97,300
Deposits of acquisition of property, U EEWZE - #E Kk
plant and equipment BEES
(note 21(c)) (Ff7E21(c) 4,050 = 4,050
Inventories rE 257 - 257
Trade and other receivables JEE 45 AR 5K
B H A e SRR 4,117 - 4,117
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEY 5,693 - 5,693
Trade and other payables JEFS AR 3K
N HL fth 5 51 IR (1,714) — (1,714)
Bank borrowing RITEHK (5,000) - (5,000)
Net deferred tax assets FEEREEE
(note 35(b)) (BH 7E35(0)) - (23,996) (23,996)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities ~ Al HEE L B EFE 27,036 71,987 99,023
Non-controlling interests FEEAR R = (20,740)
Goodwill on acquisition (note 16(a)) A AUk EE v &
(Mt E16(a)) 109,477
Consideration RE 187,760
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39. KB B AT (=)
a) BEEEE®

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

a) Million Ideas Group (Continued)

Acquiree’s
carrying
amounts
immediately
before Fair value Fair
combination adjustments values
BESOHAE
BWER
ZREE DNFEAR A¥E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARBFT ARBFT
Total consideration satisfied by: BREUT
HBIREN :
Convertible bonds (note 34) AR ES (Hi5E34) 165,000
Cash Re 13,000
178,000
Fair value of equity interest ERSHAES
in Wanzhi Logistics held before BEXURRAER
the business combination WAFE 9,760
187,760
Net cash outflow arising WEsSIBcRe
on acquisition: TR
Cash and cash equivalents BiEzHe
acquired REEEEY 5,693
Cash consideration paid Iz HEENKE (13,000)
(7,307)

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

a)

Million Ideas Group (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB756,000 have
been excluded from the consideration transferred and
have been recognised as an expense in the current year,
within administrative expenses.

The fair value of trade and other receivable representing
their gross contractual amounts at the date of acquisition
amounted to RMB4,117,000. The best estimate at
acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not
expected to be collected amount to RMBNIl.

The non-controlling interests of 17% in Wanzhi Logistics
recognised at the acquisition date was measured by the
non-controlling interests’ share of recognised identifiable
net assets of Wanzhi Logistics.

As a result of remeasuring fair value of the 8% equity
interest in Wanzhi Logistics held by the Group as available-
for-sale investment (see note 24) before the acquisition,
a gain of RMB4,960,000 was recognised in profit or loss.

Million Ideas Group contributed revenue of approximately
RMB6,478,000 and loss of approximately
RMB11,164,000 to the Group’s results for the period from
date of acquisition to 31 December 2010.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2010,
the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2010 would have been approximately RMB244,558,000
and loss for the year ended 31 December 2010 would
have been approximately RMB28,349,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2010, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

a)

h)

Million Ideas Group (Continued)

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Million Ideas
Group is attributable to the anticipated profitability
generated from the synergy through economies of scale
and sharing of resources, and future market development
through vertical integration of downstream liquefied
coalbed gas logistics business. Million Ideas Group has
experienced management, personnel, marketing and
technical staff who enable efficient operation of the
relevant business. The benefit from these factors are not
recognised separately from goodwill as the future
economic benefits arising from them cannot be reliably
measured.

Goodwill arising on these acquisition is not expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

Allied Rich Group

On 3 July 2009, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
in Allied Rich Group, through Sino Treasure, from
independent third parties for a consideration of
HK$203,163,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB178,841,000), satisfied by the issue of promissory
notes for approximately HK$55,691,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB49,024,000) and 245,786,516
consideration shares of the Company amounting to
approximately HK$147,472,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB129,817,000) based on the published
share price at the date of acquisition of HK$0.60 per share.
Allied Rich Group is mainly engaged in the sales of piped
natural gas in Beiliu City, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region, the PRC. This acquisition has been accounted
for by the acquisition method of accounting.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. KEEPH B AT (&)
b) Allied Rich Group (Continued) by BEEE @
Acquiree’s
carrying
amounts
immediately
before Fair value Fair
combination adjustments values
BEEOtA
s
ZEHEE AP EAE DFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT
Property, plant and equipment ERE Y S
(note 18(a)) (FiF7E18(a) 45,835 565 46,400
Prepaid lease payments for land under & &8 49 T T& 1+
operating leases (note 19) T e (FFE19) 8,991 9 9,000
Intangible assets BEEE
— Exclusive right for piped natural gas BB R ARER 2
operation (note 20) BREF (I F20) - 70,470 70,470
Inventories TE 1,212 - 1,212
Trade and other receivables JFE 5 B 3R
B H A & W sROR 11,683 - 11,683
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEED 1,029 = 1,029
Trade and other payables FE 1~ BR 3K
N EL A FE 1< 3RIE (4,378) — (4,378)
Bank borrowings RITEN (13,000) — (13,000)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 35(b)) RIEHIBEEE
(PF3E35(b)) - (17,761) (17,761)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities ~ A] 3 & &
kEERE 51,372 53,283 104,655
Non-controlling interests IR (2,616)
Goodwill on acquisition (note 16(b)) ~ HRAWE v B2
(K =E16(0) 76,802
Consideration KB 178,841
Total consideration satisfied by: BREUT
FIEER
Promissory notes (note 33) 2% (H533) 49,024
Consideration shares, at fair value RERD - BAFE 129,817
178,841
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: U8 3|22
RERNFE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BB ZH 4%
KEReEEY 1,029
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39. KRB B AT @)

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

h)

Allied Rich Group (Continued)

Allied Rich Group contributed revenue of approximately
RMB5,445,000 and loss of approximately RMB3,565,000
to the Group’s results for the period from the date of
acquisition to 31 December 2009.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2009,
the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2009 would have been approximately RMB93,806,000
and loss for the year ended 31 December 2009 would
have been approximately RMB62,260,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2009, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Allied Rich
Group is attributable to an unexpected rise in the price of
the consideration shares of the Company between the
agreement date and the acquisition date; and the
anticipated profitability generated from the synergy
through economies of scale and sharing of resources, and
future market development through vertical integration of
downstream natural gas business. Allied Rich Group has
experienced management, personnel, marketing and
technical staff who enable efficient operation of the
relevant business. The benefit from these factors are not
recognised separately from goodwill as the future
economic benefits arising from them cannot be reliably
measured.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to the agreements entered into between the Company
and the noteholders, who acted collectively as owners of the
Company, dated 9 February 2010 and 21 April 2010, the
Company disposed of its 100% equity interest in Shine Science
BVI Group at a consideration of RMB60,000,000, which was
satisfied by the discharge of the Company from its payment
obligation under the promissory notes. In addition, the balance
due from Shine Science BVI Group of approximately
RMB15,491,000 to the Company had been waived. The
disposal was completed on 11 May 2010 and resulted in a
deemed contribution from owners of the Company on disposal
of RMB25,160,000 which is recognised directly in consolidated
statement of change in equity as transactions with owners.

40. HEEM B2 R

BERAFEEEREE A (KRE
BERRBEBENRZE—TF=
ANBERZZE—EFMA=+—
BETNHE  ARBIUARE
60,000,0007T 2 K& H & 7 Shine
Science BVI5 B 2 100%[% 7~ 4
7o WERETDBEBRERARQR
RELEBTZHRETRE °
IlE N - Shine Science BVIE & &
HARRRZHEHBHO AR
15,491,000 2 FAE & - HE
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SARFHEARLEEEAR
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continueq) 40. HEMEB AT »)
Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of are as follows: FRATENEERBGEFBOT -
RMB’000
ARETT
Investment properties (note 17) TEYZE (F3E17) 7,330
Property, plant and equipment (note 18(a)) #1% - # 23 & % (15X 18(a) 10,724
Prepaid lease payments for land under  &&MEE M BAE S (KizE19)
operating leases (note 19) 6,878
Deferred tax assets (note 35(b)) EIERIE & B (M 7E35(0)) 1,018
Trading securities BEERS 10,115
Inventories FE 470
Trade and other receivables JiE W B 5% K% EL b 8 Lk SR I8 35,859
Less: Impairment loss B OREEE (9,516)
26,343
Value-added tax recoverable A g Bl A 3,233
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEFEED 34,513
Trade and other payables JE AT BR R % EL A FE < 5K IB (70,701)
Deferred income (note 31) EEWA (FF5E 31) (5,598)
Tax payable (note 35(a)) FEA R I8 (M5 35(a)) (1,676)
Bank borrowings RITHE (8,000)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 14,649
Cumulative translation reserve in ERENBAREEFE
respect of the net assets of 2 EFTMERE
the disposed subsidiaries (1,884)
Deemed contribution from disposal HENBRARIEEAZHEBEATLE
of subsidiaries 25,160
Consideration RE 37,925
Total consideration satisfied by: BREBAUNTHIME
Promissory notes (note 33) A5 EE (H5E 33) 53,416
Waiver of balance due from #\ %, Shine Science BVI& &
Shine Science BVI Group B FE o A5 B (15,491)
37,925
Net cash outflow on disposal: HEELEMFREMRE ¢
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HENHeREEEY 34,513

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments of the Group as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

Financial assets

41. M T RS

AEERRERERNSHESR
THZE®RENT :

EREE

2010 2009
“5-%% ZEENE
Financial assets Financial assets
at fair value at fair value
through profit Available-for- through profit Available-for-
or loss —held Loansand  sale financial or loss — held Loansand  sale financial
for trading receivables assets Total for trading receivables assets Total
WATRERFA DATEFA
BENEHER EXR itHE BRNEHAE EfR AfHE
-KHRA ElzE tHEE @it - BERS EW5E SREE 3t
ARETTR ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR] ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Available-for-sale investment THHERE - - - - - - 4,800 4,800
Derivative component of RRESN
convertible bonds frE TEHHR 6,621 - - 6,621 - - - -
Tradlng securities B5E% - - - - 582 - - 582
Loans and receivables ERRERSE - 17,584 - 17,584 - 31,681 - 31,681
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY - 23,567 - 23,567 - 96,002 - 96,002
6,621 4,151 - 41,172 582 127,973 4,800 133,355
Financial liabilities SRIEE
2010 2009
“E-%% ZETNE
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair Financial liabilities at fair Financial
value through liabilities at value through liabilities at
profit or loss - amortised profit or loss - amortised
held for trading cost Total § held for trading cost Total
NATERA DS & WATEFA S 3¢
ERNeH HA5I% Eanes AR
8E-BHRS  HeEak gl eE-BHERS  WEEaR s
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARETR  AR¥TR| ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Financial liabiliies measured at ~ MEHRAEHLREE
amortised cost - 88,117 88,117 - 63,967 63,967
Bank and other borrowings FOREMER - 68,000 68,000 - 65,000 65,000
Promissory notes AREE - - - - 51,296 51,296
Liabilities components of TAREFNAEDH
convertible bonds - 43,137 43,137 - - -
- 199,254 199,254 - 180,263 180,263
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. I ASE @
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial AEBRHEHERNSESE
instruments of the Company as at the end of the reporting TAZEREEWNT :
period are as follows:
Financial assets SRIEE
2010 2009
ZE-%% ZZENF
Financial assets Financial assets
at fair value at fair value
through profit Available-for- through profit Available-for-
or loss ~held Loansand  sale financial or loss — held Loansand  sale financial
for trading receivables assets Total for trading receivables assets Total
URTFEA WLFEEA
RENEMEE AR TihE BaNEREE g3k AfLE
- -BHRS WA SHEE Eh -BHRS EAE SREE Gy

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARWTR  ARNTz  ARBTR] ARBTR ARRTn ARRTn ARETx

Derivative component of akES
convertible bonds BfFETASH 6,621 - - 6,621 - - - =
Loans and receivables BHRERGE - 144,262 - 144,262 - 164,116 - 164,116
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN - 7,658 - 7,658 - 29,443 = 29,443
6,621 151,920 - 158,541 - 193,559 - 193,559
Financial liabilities SRIE(E
2010 2009
2595 “ITAE
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair Financial liabilities at fair Financial
value through liabilities at value through liabilities at
profit or loss - amortised profit or loss - amortised
held for trading cost Total § held for trading cost Total
NATEHA DS & WATEA b
BHMeR HAR5IE ERNeR A%
- BHRE  NEREER girlafE-Bhns mepak @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR) ARWTT  ARETR  ARETR

Financial liabiliies measured at DEERAGE

amortised cost Hepak - 1,847 1,847 - 1,685 1,685
Promissory notes LS - - - - 51,296 51,296
Liabiliies components of TERERNEEDH

convertible bonds - 43,137 43,137 - - -

- 44,984 44,984 - 52,981 52,981

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, trading securities,
trade and other payables, bank and other borrowings,
promissory notes and convertible bonds. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price
risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

a) Credit risk

i) As at 31 December 2010, the maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance.

ii) In respect of trade and other receivables, in order to
minimize risk, the management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations
of its customers’ financial position and condition is
performed on each major customer periodically.
These evaluations focus on the customers’ past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customers
operate. The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets. Debts are usually due
within 30 to 180 days from the date of billing.

42.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Credit risk (continued)

i)

i)

(Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and country
in which customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 59.03% (2009:
18.09%) and 98.64% (2009: 39.81%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 27.

The Group’s trading securities are blue chips listed
on a recognised stock exchange.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
board approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants to ensure that it
maintains sufficient amount of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
The Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a
source of liquidity.

Also as mentioned in note 2(b)(ii), the Group (1) has
successfully rolled over its other borrowings for 18
months; (2) obtained an undertaking from Mr. Wang Zhong
Sheng not to demand for the repayment of the amount
due to him until the Group is financially viable to do so;
(3) obtained undertaking from Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng to
provide adequate financial support to the Group; and (4)
raised a net proceeds of approximately RMB60,034,000
by way of a share placement subsequent to the end of
the reporting period. All of the above steps have been
enable the Group to mitigate its liquidity risk.

The following liquidity table sets out the weighted average
effective interest rate and the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
and the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay:

2. MEREEHEEERBE
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 2. BERGEEEREHERBR
AND POLICIES (continueq) (&)

b) Liquidity risk (Continued) b) HENE 2 EE (&)

210 2009
Z2-8f 2 k3
Weighted More than  More than Total Weighted Morethan ~ More than Total
average Within ~ 1yearbut 2yearsbut contractual average Within -~ 1yearbut ~ 2yearsbut  contractual
effective ~ fyearor  lessthan lessthan undiscounted Carrying effective 1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  on demand 2years Syears  cash flow amount J interestrate  on demand 2years 5 years cash flow amount
nEY -FRaE -ENL REML  ARAER nETY “ENE O BENL R0AER
BEAE  EREE  REMA IEMR BEREE REEQ BT KR RENA RENN  ReRsE FEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR ARBTZ ARMTL ARETR ARBTL  ARMTT ARBTR ARETR  ARETR
The Group 4 |
Trade payables R NATER 30,886 - - 30,886 30,88 | NATER 9515 - - 9515 9515
Amounts due to directors ERESHE NATER 27,647 - - 21,647 7,641 NATER 1,548 = = 1,048 1,648
Amount due a non-controling Ef-2FERREE
sharefolder NATER 1,569 - - 1,569 1,569 [ NATER 1,069 = - 1,569 1,689
Accrued salaries EitEe NATER 1,035 - - 1,085 1005 || NATER 1,388 = = 1,388 1,388
Payables for acquiston of property, hEhz #3RRE
plant and equipment BRI NATER 24,562 - - 24,562 24562 @ NATER 47910 - - 47910 47910
Accrued expenses and other payables R REBEFE NATER 2418 - - 2418 2418 @ NATER 2,087 - - 2,087 2087
Bank and other borronings EfRARER 1.34% 61,00 8,176 - 69,226 68,000 766% 52,09 5,767 8,144 66,906 65,000
Promissory notes RAEE NATER - - - - - 10.06% - 59,21 - 59,215 51,006
Convertible bonds ThRER 8.67% - - 63,000 63,000 8197 NATER = = = = =
149,167 8,176 63,000 220,343 199,254 116,962 64,982 8,144 190,088 180,263
210 2009
o8-%% ZEENE
Weighted Morethan  More than Total Weighted Morethan ~ More than Total
average Within ~ 1yearbut  2yearsbut  contractual average Within ~ 1yearbut ~ 2yearsbut  contractual
effective ~ 1yearor  lessthan lessthan undiscounted Carrying effective 1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  on demand 2years Syears  cash flow amount [ interestrate  on demand 2years 5 years cash flow amount
METY -FAGER  -FUL  WEAL AHRER METY -ERAEE-FI L WENE  ANAMR
ERAE  ZREE WEMR DENR RERAE  REEQ EEAE O EREE  REMAR RENM ReR4E  BREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR ARBTR ARMTL ARETR AEBTL  ARMTT ARBTR ARETI  ARETR
The Company 547
Amount dug to a subsiciary [l NATER ) - - 484 a4l NARER - - - - -
Amounts du to drectors EREENE NATRER 30 - - 380 300 NATEE 731 - - 73 731
Accrued selaris Eithe NATER 28 - - 28 208 | NATEE - - - - -
Accrued expenses end B RRRAMERNGE
other payables NATER 685 - - 685 685 @ NATER 954 - - 954 954
Promissory notes ESES NATER - - - - - 10.05% - 59,215 - 59215 51,206
Convertible bonds TaRER 867% - - 63,000 63,000 8191 NATER - - - - -
1,847 - 63,000 64,847 44,984 1,685 59,215 - 60900 52,981
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42.

AND POLICIES (Continued)

h)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

None of the bank and other borrowings contain a
repayment on demand clause in relation to HK — Int 5,
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause.

MEREEE R RRBR

(&)

b) RENEE£EE &)

MEBRTLEGBERESEETE
REESH [MBRERNIIHK—E
RAE BB R EBFIEFRIERNE
HIE RO D B R 2 IR ESER

fERR

c) Interest rate risk c) FIZEE[E
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in AEEEH 2R RENEER
relation to variable-rate bank deposits and bank and other B B RRITIF BUA R ERTT &2
borrowings and fair value interest rate risk in relation to HMEFRAER - A FENER
fixed rate bank and other borrowings. % Il B8 [&] 7E A1) 3 2 SR 1T R EL A
TRAEE -
i) Interest rate profile i) FIEHR
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRAJNAREBBRN RS
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting HAR 2 R -
period:
The Group
S 3L |
2010 2009
—E-2F “ETNEF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates rates
BRAE BBRAIx
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARBTR ARETFT
Fixed rate borrowings: [ 5E | 2 fE 3K
Other loans Hith &% 6.95% 50,000 6.83% 50,000
Floating rate borrowings: B KE 5 :
Bank loans RITER 8.41% 18,000 7.88% 15,000
Total borrowings BT 68,000 65,000
Fixed rate borrowings as  [&l5E A/ R & 3%
a percentage of total RBERZ
borrowings ERd 74% 77%
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

i)

Sensitivity analysis
All of the bank and other borrowings of the Group
which are fixed rate instruments are insensitive to
any change in interest rates. A change in interest
rates at the end of the reporting period would not
affect profit or loss.

At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase or decrease the Group’s loss after income
tax and accumulated losses by approximately
RMB180,000 (2009: RMB150,000). Other
components of consolidated statement of changes
in equity would not change in response to the general
increase or decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 100 basis points increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management and represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the end of the
next reporting period. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2009.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

d)

Currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must take
place through The People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign
exchange. The exchange rate adopted for foreign
exchange transactions are the rates of exchange quoted
by the PBOC that would be subject to a managed float
against an unspecified basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance of
earnings outside the PRC, are subject to the availability
of foreign currency (which depends on the foreign currency
denominated earnings of the Group) or must be arranged
through the PBOC with government approval.

All the revenue-generating operations of the Group are
transacted in RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign
currency risk on financing transactions denominated in
currencies other than RMB. Depreciation or appreciation
of the RMB against foreign currencies can affect the
Group’s results. The Group did not hedge its currency
exposure.

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

—EET A=t HLEFE

2. MEREEHEEERBE
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d)

E% e
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2. MERSETEEAERBE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & &

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continueq) (&)
d) Currency risk (Continued) d S&EE®
i)  Exposure to currency risk i) EREMRRE
The Group rEE
Exposure to foreign currency
MR BRARSE
2010 2009
—E2-%F —ETNE
United Hong United Hong
States Kong States Kong
Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
Ep BT T BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®Tr | ARBETRT ARETT
Trade and other B 2 EYARR
receivables R E A e YRR - 1 — 9,547
Cash and cash ReRkBeEED
equivalents 4 6,854 10 35,437
Overall exposure &M R
to currency risk EE 4 6,855 10 44,984
The Company RKAT
Exposure to foreign currency
SN B PR AR
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
United United
States States
Dollars Dollars
EYH ETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBEFIT
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESEFED 4 10
Overall exposure to currency risk & ¥ & f A & EE 4 10

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 2. MEREEEHERBR
AND POLICIES (continueq) (4&)
d) Currency risk (Continued) d S%EM e
ii)  Sensitivity analysis i) WEEST
The following table indicates the approximate TRHE - RMEHRR - K
change in the Group’s loss after income tax and EERAEHEER KRR
accumulated losses in response to reasonably EEAEAEEARE XK
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to ErEXR, SBEESEM
which the Group has significant exposure at the end EEZBOEY -
of the reporting period.
The Group rEE
2010 2009
—E2-%F —ETNF
Increase/ Effect on loss Increase/  Effect on loss
(decrease) after income (decrease) after income
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated
rates losses rates losses
HEREH HRMEHR
BEER BEBEER
Exigm, RiEE | Exgn/ i EE
(R 4) 2 OB ) LB
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
United States Dollars 37T 5% - 5% )
(5)% - 5)% 1
Hong Kong Dollars BT 5% (343) 5% (2,249)
(5)% 343 (5)% 2,249

FEBERREEEERAT
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 & £ —

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

d) Currency risk (Continued)

i)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the Group’s exposure to
currency risk for financial instruments in existence
at that date, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ loss after income tax. The stated changes
are used when reporting currency risk internally to
key management and represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the end
of the next reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2009.

e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as trading
securities.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of
the performance of individual securities compared
to that of the Index and other industry indicators, as
well as the Group’s liquidity needs.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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2. MERSETEEAERBE
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

e)

Equity price risk (Continued)

i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that an
increase or decrease of 5% (2009: 5%) in the relevant
stock market index (for listed investment) with all
other variables held constant, would have decreased
or increased the Group’s loss after income tax and

accumulated losses as follows:

The Group

2. MEREEHEEERBE

(&)

e) Bx{EREPE »

i)

2010
—2-%%

Effect on loss
after income

HRES

RZE—ZTF+_A=+—
B E(BLEmREmS)
R TS AT &
5% (ZZEZFNF : 5%) MFT
BEMEEESTE - B8
BASBRAEHEEER

REtERRED

A%

2009

I pnan R

“ZTNF

Effect on loss
after income

Change in tax and Change in tax and

equity accumulated equity accumulated

price losses price losses

RMB’000 RMB’000

HERFEH HIEMEHR

BEER BERK

25 ER 2 ER

REZE ge REE 7 &

AR¥TR ARETT
Change in the relevant 1B ERKR
equity price risk 22y

variable:
Increase byl 5% - 5% (29)
Decrease i (5)% - (5)% 29
HEBEERREEETRLR

—E-TFFR
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

e) Equity price risk (Continued)

i)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after income tax and
accumulated losses that would arise assuming that
the changes in the stock market index or other
relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to equity price risk
at the end of the reporting period. It is also assumed
that the fair values of the Group’s equity investments
would change in accordance with the historical
correlation with the relevant stock market index or
the relevant risk variable. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2009.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Fair value

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period across the three levels of the
fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair
value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in
which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data.

2. MEREEHEEERBE
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 2. BERBEEEERRBE

AND POLICIES (continueq) (#)
f) Fair value (Continued) f) AFE@®
i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) i) HATEEIKRZEMIA
(&)
2010 —E-=F
The Group The Company
8- K27
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F14 EPEY 38 @ F1 28 £34 @

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTR  AR®TR  ARBTR  ARMTz  ARETR  ARBTR  ARET:R

Assets EE
Derivative MiakES
component of ko)
the convertible
bonds - - 6,621 6,621 - - 6,621 6,621
2009 —EENF
The Group The Company
158 LN
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R EVE 3% @it 18 EVEN £38 it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Assets EE
Trading 2585
securities 582 - - 582 - - - -
ii)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other i) EIFRAFEIRZEMT
than fair value HBZ2A¥FE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the RZZE-—ZEFR-_ZFTNF
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or +ZA=+—8 " X&£EK
amortised cost are not materially different from their PAN/NCIE %N S DNl
fair values as at 31 December 2010 and 2009. ReemT A ZREMEER

APETEEAER -

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

2. MEREEHEEERBE

(&)

g)

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial
instruments.

i)  Trading securities
Fair value is based on the closing bid prices at the
end of the reporting period without any deduction
for transaction costs.

ii) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.

iii) Convertible bonds
Major methods and assumptions used in estimating
the fair values of liability component and derivative
component of convertible bonds are set out in note
34.

43. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

g) fAstAFE(E

ITXAAR G ST AR
B2 EBIEMRE -

i) BSEH
NHETMRBHRE R Z W
MEABEE  AYERR
Z A AVEEARTHIR

i) FEIRMITERRHEMMER
NHERARBSREZR
EmfhEET - XERMAL SR
TRZIBITHISHEYH -

i) SRR ES
EtAmkERaESD &
TR D 2 A EMAZE
2IERBRERHIEESS o

43. X BFBREXH

a)  On 11 May 2010, the Company disposed of its 100% a RIZE—ZFRAA+—H XA
equity interest in Shine Science BVI Group at a A A B A R #60,000,0007T H
consideration of RMB60,000,000, which was satisfied by & H A Science BVIEE 2 100%
the discharge of the Company from its payment obligation AR - ZREUERARF]
under the promissory notes. Further details of the disposal REEAZBTZ2NREEEE -
are set out in note 40. ZEEFH E—DFE  HR

MI5T40 o

b) On 16 July 2010, the Company issued an aggregate b) RZE—ZFLH+B A2
principal amount of HK$187,500,000 zero-coupon AIE1TA S 858 /187,500,000
convertible bonds as part of the consideration for the T2 EBAMRES - LMEARI
acquisition of Million Ideas Group. Further details of the BELEEEZH»NRE - ZUWE
acquisition are set out in note 39(a). FH2E—FHE  HRME

39(a) °
c) During the year, property, plant and equipment of ) FAGTABLERRAEEYK

RMB22,650,000 was acquired and settled by Mr. Wang
Zhong Sheng on behalf of the Group.

YR HEREE WEER
F &% A R%22,650,0007T °

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR
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44. COMMITMENTS

a) In addition to the finance lease arrangements detailed in
note 21(c), the Group had the following capital

44. %Ki

BRPFE21(0) PRttt 2 AR E %
BESN  REBRMBHRERDATD

commitments contracted for but not provided for in the MERBE 2 ERAERNT -
financial statements:
The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBETFIT
Acquisition of: W T3|IEE -
— Plant and equipment — WRREE 58,480 55,506
— Construction in progress — EREIRE 8,198 168
— Intangible assets — BREE - 1,181
Equity investment in respect of R EERTZ
formation of a joint venture BmIE
company 18,000 —
84,678 56,855

The equity investment represents the capital contribution
in respect of the formation of a joint venture company in
the PRC to engage in provision of natural gas (coalbed
methane) exploitation and the associate activities. The
Group and the joint venture partners will hold equity
interests of the joint venture company of 60% and 40%
respectively.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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44. COMMITMENTS (continued) 44. HkiE =)

b)  Atthe end of the reporting period, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of office premises are payable as follows:

RBER - BERRAEMEZ
N HEERETHAIE N 2 RKJE
NREREFALBMOT ¢

The Group The Company
S 3L ARHE

2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-ZE5 | ZTTHNE | ZE-EF —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSTR | ARETT | AR%TR ARETT

Within 1 year —FA 95 586 218 506
After 1 year but —FBERAFA

within 5 years 214 29 - —

After 5 years AFEMNE - - - -

309 615 218 506

The Group leases a number of properties held under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to three years, with an option to renew the
leases with all terms renegotiable. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

AEERBEEEHOAEZEY
XA HB-—RE—E=%F"
BREMBERAB R AR E
EERY - ZFHOBESS X

FEBERREEEERAT
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45. CONTINGENT LIABILITES

Tax exposure in relation to the disposal of Shine
Science BVI Group

Pursuant to the Notice on Strengthening Administration of
Enterprise Income Tax for Share Transfers by Non-PRC
Resident Enterprise (Circular 698) issued by the State
Administrative of Taxation on 10 December 2009, where a
foreign investor transfers it shares in an overseas holding
company which holds chinese resident companies in the PRC,
and if the PRC tax authority considers that the foreign investor
adopts abusive arrangement in order to avoid PRC tax, it will
disregard the existence of the overseas holding company and
the gains derived from such transfer may be subject to the
PRC withholding tax at a rate of up to 10%. Accordingly, the
directors made a provision on tax liability and tax surcharge in
respect of the disposal of Shine Science BVI Group (note 40)
of approximately RMB3,492,000 and RMB410,000 respectively
in the consolidated financial statements.

Apart from the tax liability and tax surcharge mentioned above,
the PRC tax authority may impose a further tax penalty to the
Company. As the amount of tax penalty is not ascertainable, it
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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B 2 H R b

BRERRBBABRNR_TEZENF+=
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(BI%% 4(2009) 6985%) + tRRIFIME &
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10% BB R BURRFL - Bt -
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(BI3E40) RERE MR ERMBEARE
RBWNEEBE TR REBEARE
3,492,0007T & A R #410,0007T °
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46. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had pledged the

46. REEH

RBERR - AEE/AEEERZ

following assets to secure bank borrowings granted to the RITERMBERTIEE :
Group:
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF R ARBEFT
Buildings held for own use (note 18(a)(ii)) ¥ 1E & A 2 & F (M &£ 18(a)(i) 1,471 2,409
Pipelines (note 18(a)(ii)) & 18 (M 5E18(a)(i) 36,690 38,850
Prepaid lease payments for land KEMAOTEN I HES
under operating leases (note 19) (MF5E19) 8,705 10,295
46,866 51,654

FEBERREEEERAT
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47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following material related party

transactions.

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, the directors
are of the view that the followings are related parties of the

Group:

Name of party

Shanxi Wanzhi
Logistics Limited
(“Wanzhi Logistics”)

Shanxi Qinshui
Prefecture Huayu
Trading Limited
(“Shanxi Huayu”)

Luoyang Shunhe Energy
Company Limited
(“Luoyang Shunhe”)

Shanxi Qinshui
Prefecture Chengrong
Investment Limited
(“Chengrong
Investments”)

Relationship

Effectively 8% owned by the
Group as at 31 December 2009
and accounted for as a
subsidiary during the year.
Details as set out in note 39(a).

Effectively controlled by the former
shareholder of Million Ideas
Group, who is a shareholder of
the Company.

A company established in the PRC
with limited liability and indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Wang
Zhong Sheng.

Effectively owned 17% equity
interest in Wanzhi Logistics as
a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary and provided
financing to the Group of
RMB50,000,000 as disclosed
in note 32.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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WKBERRE
BREERA
(TERIRE])

8% ' MERJI
RAMEBAR -
BRAFBEHNK
#£39(a) °

RARARIRRES
SENABRRA
W FE ] ©
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47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

a)

Particulars of significant transactions between the Group a)
and the above related parties for the years ended 31

HE-_Z-—ZFN—
“A=+—HIFE A&EEH

TENF+

December 2010 and 2009 are as follows: FIEEAT ZRAETZERR
SEHBWT :
Name of party Nature of transaction 2010 2009
BFHEEL AW XHEHE —E-BF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBTT

Wanzhi Logistics Logistics services expenses of 5,557 2,925

liquefied coalbed gas

BEEYR RALBEE B2 W) IR B X

Wang Zhong Sheng Interest expenses - 1,404

T BB MER X

Wang Zhong Sheng Underwriting commission - 1,338

T BB BiHAE

Subject to the underwriting agreement dated 8 July 2009
in relation to the Open Offer mentioned in note 36(b), an
underwriting commission of 2.5% of the aggregate
subscription price for 304,165,650 offer shares was paid
by the Company to Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng, as
underwriter. The amount was charged to the share
premium account as transaction costs for the issue of
new shares.

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
a subsidiary of the Group entered into an agreement dated
8 October 2010 with Luoyang Shunhe, in which the
subsidiary agreed to deliver certain pre-sales liquefied
natural gas tanks included in property, plant and
equipment in note 18(a) with a total carrying amount of
approximately RMB4,711,000 as at 31 December 2010
to Luoyang Shunhe for the purpose of trial-operation for
a period of nine months (i.e. up to 30 June 2011) before
signing a formal sales and purchase agreement.

EMIFFS6O)FTtBEA =TT N
FtAN\BEBAREE 2P
WEFTRBRE T - NRAFIE M E
78 F BB 5 A 2 157804, 165,6500%
BERNBRBEZ25%ERE
HA® BRESBEERRDEE
BRI - ERBITHRNH 2R
PN ©

PRZSBA FS ¥Rk Ay 5 PR IR B &
Hh  REEWBARIN -_E—F
F+ANBEEGIEME] S —H
W Bt BRTERFLENN
EE%%#Eﬂ%%HMHZW

qu (Eﬂ@if‘é**ﬁz/\ﬂ fl
‘+mb’&WE ARIRIERZF
—ZEF+ZA=+—HB 5!
E BN /ANRE4,711,0007T.2
%mﬁM%%ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ#WE
18(a) 2 % - #ed k) A
FI&EIEAN o
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47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47T. EXREALTZH @)

(Continued)
b) Balances with related parties b) EHEAEANLTZEER
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the RIE—ZEFEN_FTTNF+

A=1+—R XEE;AQFHE
BEALA THIMEER

Company had the following balances with related parties:

i)  Amounts due from related companies i) MEKFEATIRE
Maximum amount
The Group outstanding during the year
rEE FREEAEESH
2010 2009 2010 2009
—g-%5 | —TTnf | c2-%5 | —TTAS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR | ARETT | ARBTR ARETT
Wanzhi Logistics B - 3,610 7,906 3,984
Shanxi Huayu IWFEES 5,138 — 5,138 —
Chengrong Investment & @& & 1,000 - 1,000 -
6,138 3,610
Maximum amount
The Company outstanding during the year
¥ YN FRBaAEESHE
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-ZE | ZETAF | ZE-2F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTT | AR%TR ARETT
Wanzhi Logistics ~ BE%i - 3,074 3,074 3,074

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED

The amount due from Wanzhi Logistics represents
prepayments for the provision of logistics services
of liquefied coalled gas. There was no provision
made on the amount due as at 31 December 2009.
Wanzhi Logistics became a subsidiary of the Group
after the acquisition as disclosed in note 39(a). The
amount due from Chengrong Investment represents
prepayment for interest on the other borrowings as
at 31 December 2010. The amount were unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 — T —ZF+ - A =+—HILFE

47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

b)

Balances with related parties (Continued)

i)

Amounts due from directors

47. EXREATLTEZ S #)

h) HEEANTZEES 2
i) REWEERIE

Maximum amount

The Group outstanding during the year
rEE FREEAEESH

2010 2009 2010 2009

—g-%5 | —z2hf | ce-%5 | —TIAf

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR | ARETE | AR¥BTR ARBTT

Zhang Qing Lin REM 455 — 455 —

Fu Shou Gang e 15 - 15 —

470 =

Maximum amount

The Company outstanding during the year
b N FREEAEESH

2010 2009 2010 2009

“E-ZE | ZETAF | Z2-2F —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSTR | ARBTT | AR%TR ARETT

Zhang Qing Lin iR B AR 42 — 54 —

As at 31 December 2010, the amounts were
unsecured interest-free and repayable on demand.

RE—ZF+-_H=+—
H  a@cmEasEIME &
BYERERKER -
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 i Z — T —ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

b) Balances with related parties (Continueq)

47. EXRABEALTR S =)

b) HAEFEANT 22488 &)

iii) Amounts due to directors i) FEAEERIE
The Group The Company
r&E PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-E2F | ZTTNEF | ZE-EF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR | ARBTT | AR%ETR ARETT
Wang Zhong Sheng £ 2B 27,266 817 - -
Shi Liang &5 338 350 338 350
Kwok Shun Tim A - 316 - 316
Luo Wei Kun BUEE - 11 - 11
Pang Yuk Fong TER 43 54 42 54
27,647 1,548 380 731
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009. The amount RZE—ZEFR-_TTNF
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on +-A=+—H 6@+
demand. AEER . £ BWAEERK
EE -

iv)  Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries iv) FEW(FER) BRBATIRIE
The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and FRcHEABRER 281
repayable on demand. TAREERIEE -

v) Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a v) Ef—RERBATSZIEER

subsidiary

The amount was unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 B2 — T —ZFF+_A=+—HILFE

47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
c) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel, including

amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
note 9 and certain of the highest paid employees as

47T. EXRAEBEALTR S =)
c) FEBEBASZEHM

TREEABZFHM (BERME
IWB 2N TARAEEZHK
) MRMEI0OREZE T&

disclosed in note 10, is as follows: SHMNEE 2HFMOT -
The Group
KEH

2010 2009

—s-%5 | —==af

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AREFIT
Salaries and other short-term e MEMEEEE R

employee benefits 1,784 4,849

Post employment benefits BEE% 1243 A 14 —
Total remuneration is included in ~ EENAEZEE 8 Tk A&

“Staff costs” (note 7(a)) (B5E7() 1,798 4,849

48. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 48. RERIEREIR

a) On 16 February 2011, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group entered into a sales and purchase agreement with
a liquefying facilities supplier, an independent third party,
in relation to the acquisition of the liquefying facilities
(includes the raw gas external purification system, coalbed
liquefying system, automation control system, electric
control system and recycled water system) at a
consideration of RMB41,000,000. The acquisition of the
liquefied facilities can expand the production capability
of the existing liquefying facilities.

a)

RZZE——F A+ &&E
By —H2ENBARE &
bR TEHER (— 2B E=H)
FUEE R 3R HE (B IS RN
FERES RERKERS - B
BIEHI RS - BRI RS R
BKEFFIL—HEERZE R
845 AR%41,000,0007 ° W&
BRI e AT T R A R R HE A
ERE °
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For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 &2 ~Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIFE

48. iﬁ f'=|= %ﬁ & $ IE (Continued)

48. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

b)  On 26 February 2011, the Company and a placing agent,
who is a third party independent of the Group, entered
into a placing agreement, pursuant to which the Company
has agreed to allot and issue, through the placing agent,
a maximum of 326,830,000 new shares to certain
independent investors at HK$0.225 per share. The placing
was completed on 17 March 2011 and the net proceeds
received from the placing amounted to approximately
HK$71,331,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB60,034,000).

49. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative information in the consolidated income statement
has been restated to present separately the results of the
computer software, computer hardware and maintenance and
other services operations as discontinued operations.

50. IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2010, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Jumbo
Lane, which is incorporated in BVI. Jumbo Lane does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Five year financial summary

AFERBHHRHE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 — T —ZF+ - A =+—HILFE

Results ¥i5
For the year ended 31 December
BEZ+-A=1+—-HLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
ZE-EF | _TENF —TENF TTEF —TIRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARET T ARBTT ARETE ARBTT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&) (B E5) (& E5) (g E5)
Turnover EER 230,989 40,056 — — =
Loss from operations T EE
el it (8,150) (17,645) (11,508) (10,629) (6,325)
Finance costs BEK AR (9,681) (4,260) (1,844) (1,461) (1,731)
Gain on remeasuring B mE
existing interest in an FERHEE
available-for-sale RERARER
investment on acquisiton 2 Wz 4,960 — — — -
Fair value gain on the R ES
derivative component of PTEE M
convertible bonds Z R THEKE 3,223 — - - -
Impairment loss on goodwill 72 5 E &1 - (52,971) = = =
Loss before income tax BRETIS RIS 18 (9,648) (74,876) (13,352) (12,090) (8,056)
Income tax FT{EHt (871) 251 — — =
Loss for the year from REFBELE
continuing operations EBIARFE
B3 10,519) | (746250  (13,352)  (12,090) (8,056)
(Loss)/profit for the year from B B & [ & &
discontinued operations EBIARFE
(B18) /% F (11,947) 15,795 (20,233) 9,590 1,465
Loss for the year RFEEFBE (22,466) (58,830) (33,585) (2,500) (6,591)
Attributable to: NI EL -
Owners of the Company ~ AR &IEA A (20,493) (58,741) (33,585) (2,500) (6,591)
Non-controlling interests ~ JEFRAGE (1,973) (89) - - -
Loss for the year REEER 22,466)] (58,830)  (33,585) (2,500) (6,591)

FEBERREEEERAT
—E-TFFR



Five year financial summary

AFENBHRHE

For The Year Ended 31 December 2010 {2 —E—ZHF+ - A=+—HILtFE

Assets and liabilities EENER

At 31 December

R+t=—A=+-—-8H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-EF | Z2TNF ZTENF ZIZ2TLF ZTERF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARETT ARBTT ARETE ARBTT

Total assets BMEE 713,299 545,025 239,139 162,649 57,100
Total liabilities BmER (258,971)] (275,176) (119,009) (55,990) (14,772)
Non-controlling interests  FE#% i i (21,294) (2,527) — — -

Equity attributable to ARBEBA
owners of the FE(h 1 =
Company 433,034 267,322 120,130 106,659 42,328

CHINA LEASON INVESTMENT GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010






